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West Lothian College
11 December 2018

Board of Governors
Minute of Meeting of the Board Governors held on Tuesday 18 September 2018 at
4.30pm in the Barbour Suite.
Present:

Alex Linkston (Chair)
Sue Cook
Jackie Galbraith
Graham Hope
Simon Ashpool
Frank Gribben
Norman Ross
Richard Lockhart
Iain McIntosh
Claire Probert
Moira Niven
Alan Morton
Julia Simpson
Michelle Low
Gemma Reynolds

In attendance:

Simon Earp (Vice Principal, Curriculum & Enterprise)
George Hotchkiss (Vice Principal, Curriculum & Planning)
Jennifer McLaren (Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum
Services)
Karine McNair (Board Secretary)

18.34 Welcome/Apologies
The Chair welcomed Jackie Galbraith to her first Board Meeting as Principal
of the College. The Chair also welcomed Michelle Low and Gemma Reynolds
in their new role of Student Association President and Vice President. Finally,
the Chair welcomed the newly elected Support Staff Board Member, Julia
Simpson.
Apologies had been received from Tom Bates, Morag McKelvie and Colin
Miller.

18.35 Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
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18.36 Minute of Meeting of 19 June 2018
The Minute of the meeting of the Board of Governors of 19 June 2018 was
approved as a correct record.

18.37 Matters Arising from Minute of Meeting of 19 June 2018
All actions were duly completed and noted.

18.38 Chief Executive’s Report
The Principal & Chief Executive presented Paper 3 highlighting that engaging
with staff had been a key priority of her first few months at the College. The
meetings had reinforced how positive staff were and raised many good ideas
for improvements.
The Principal was keen to take action where issues could be fixed quickly. IT
support had been a regular theme of concern from staff and some short term
measures had been implemented to support the IT team in providing their
service to staff and students.
The Principal will be meeting with the Student Association at least monthly
and many meetings have taken place or are planned with external partners.
Recently, the Senior Team had a very productive strategic curriculum meeting
using feedback from staff to shape the priorities for the College.
The Chair of the Board thanked the Principal & Chief Executive for a very
interesting and informative report.

18.39 Regional Chair’s Feedback (verbal)
The Chair of the Board noted that there had been little activity over the
summer months. There will be an Employers’ Association residential event on
19 and 20 September to allow further strategic discussion.
The Chair will be meeting the new Minister for Further Education, Richard
Lochhead, on Thursday.
The Chair commented that there would be a Parliamentary reception on 25
September at Holyrood to which all Board Members were welcome to attend.
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18.40 Student Association Report (verbal)
The Student Association President stated that the Student Association were
underway in their recruitment of class ambassadors and they would be taking
steps next week to ensure more staff engagement where recruitment had
been slow.
‘Sparkle’ feedback had been reduced to twice a year; at the end of Block1 and
the end of Block 2. The feedback will be reviewed and discussed at the
Compliance and Quality Committee. A small number of classes have opted to
not have class ambassadors so the Student Association team will ensure that
feedback is obtained from these classes to ensure fair representation.
The Fresher’s Fair was very well received with over 40 organisations
participating and a good turn out from staff and students. Short evaluation
sheets were handed out to attendees and any useful feedback will be
provided to the Board at the next meeting.
Happy Hour breakfast has been reinstated in the College canteen and the
Student Association are looking to introduce a similar initiative for afternoon
students.
The Student Association social media had been very successful with
significant traffic to Facebook and Twitter and Board Members were
encouraged to follow the pages.
The Chair thanked the Student Association President for a comprehensive
report.

18.41 Board Development: Report from the Board Secretary
i)

Feedback from 1-2-1 Review Meetings – Chair’s Report
The Chair remarked that he thoroughly enjoyed the opportunity to meet
individually with all Board members and found the review process very
encouraging. The Chair thanked all Board members for taking the time
to attend the meetings and for their open and honest contribution to the
discussion.
Paper 4 outlined the key strengths, good practice and actions points
which had been raised in the meetings. The Chair and the Board
Secretary will take the points forward and update the Board as
required.
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ii)

Report from Board Secretary – Board Development
The Board Secretary thanked Jan Taylor, Moodle Coordinator, for her
support with the Staff Election and noted the error in Paper 5 which
should read ‘congratulate Julia Simpson on her appointment to the
Board’.
The summary of forthcoming agenda items and Committee visits was
discussed, noting that some dates are subject to change and if Board
members wish to attend another Committee, they should contact the
Board Secretary as soon as possible so that they can be added to the
contact list should anything change.
It was confirmed that the Extra Ordinary meeting of the Learning &
Teaching Committee would take place on Thursday 25 October at
11.30am after the Learner Attainment Sub Group.

The Chair thanked the Board Secretary for the update.

18.42 Finance & General Purposes Committee
i)

Update from the Chair of the Finance & General Purposes Committee
from draft minute of 31 August 2018
Moira Niven, member of the Finance & General Purposes Committee,
presented paper 6 in the Chair’s absence, noting that the Committee
had discussed updating the College’s Absence Policy so the Policy
would be ready to integrate into the new occupational health service
system.
The Committee had also recommended that the College be prepared
with projects should any last minute capital funding become available.
The Financial Forecast Return was recommended for approval by the
Board on the basis that the College’s growth stance had been agreed
with the Outcome Manager.
The Committee had approved the Children’s Hearing Scotland contract
and acknowledged the hard work of the Senior Team in achieving a
successful outcome for the College and CHS staff.
Finally, the Committee had noted some complaints and recommended
that the College remind staff about the standards and expectations it
has when interacting with students.
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ii)

Financial Forecast Return 2018
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services presented paper 7,
highlighting that there had been agreement for West Lothian College to
base the Financial Forecast Return on growth given the demographics
of the region and the ambition of the College.
Any comments on the Financial Forecast Return from the Scottish
Funding Council will be monitored through the Risk Register.
The Board approved the Financial Forecast Return 2018.

The Chair of the Board thanked the Committee Member for their update.

18.43 Audit Committee
i)

Update from the Chair of the Audit Committee from draft minute of 6
September 2018
Chair of the Audit Committee directed the Board to the minutes and
highlighted that the Committee had received assurance that all
mandatory staff training was up to date.
The Principal had proposed a change of format to the Strategic Risk
Register and the Committee had offered some suggestions which the
Principal would consider before bringing the revised version to the next
meeting.
The Board queried whether Data Protection had been reviewed by the
Audit Committee given the new GDPR rules. The Chair confirmed that
the Audit Committee had been given reassurance that the College was
preparing for GDPR in a previous report. The Officer in charge of Data
Protection was now in post and they will report to the Senior Team. All
staff have been given access to mandatory GDPR online training, which
more than 50% have completed and senior staff will be monitoring for
full completion in coming weeks.

ii)

Financial Regulations and Scheme of Delegation
The Audit Committee had reviewed the changes to the Financial
Regulations and Scheme of Delegation and recommended these for
approval by the Board.
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The Board approved the Financial Regulations and Scheme of
Delegation.
The Chair of the Board thanked the Committee Chair for their update.

18.44 Learning & Teaching Committee
i)

Update from the Chair of the Learning & Teaching Committee from
draft minute of 5 September
The Chair commented that the KPIs showed an improvement in some
areas and that Higher Education Full Time had declined. Bespoke
targets were being set for each curriculum area aiming for at least 75%
success however the Committee conceded that some courses may
need to be supported despite low success.
The Committee had requested a further review of the Quality
Assurance and Enhancement Report, which will be dealt with at an
Extra Ordinary Committee meeting.

The Chair of the Board thanked the Committee Chair for their update.

18.45 Update from Chair of the Remuneration Committee
The Chair of the Remuneration Committee noted that the Committee had met
on Tuesday 18 September to discuss the job matching for Deputy Heads
under the NRPA. The Committee had recommended that the Principal start
negotiations with relevant staff.

18.46 Update from Chair of the Nominations Committee
The Chair of the Nominations Committee noted that the Committee had met
on Tuesday 18 September. It was announced that Morag McKelvie will step
down as Chair of the Finance & General Purposes Committee and the Chair
invited Board Members to self-nominate if they were interested in the position.
There were a number of Board members coming to the end of their 4 year
term in 2019 and the Board needed to start considering recruitment. Most of
the positions could be reappointed however the Chair was conscious that the
Board needed to be mindful of gender equality and board diversity in any
Board appointments.
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In order to have a robust Board recruitment programme, it would be
necessary to co-opt some members onto the Nominations Committee who
were not personally involved in the reappointment or recruitment in 2019.
The Board approved the co-opting of members onto the Nominations
Committee.

18.47 Any Other Business
There were no other items of business.

18.48 Review of Meeting, Supporting Papers and Development Needs
The Board of Governors was content with the meeting and supporting papers
presented.

18.49 Date of Next Meeting
The next meeting would take place on Tuesday 11 December 2018 at
4.30pm.
Note: There were no matters discussed during the meeting, during which Members
declared any conflict of interest, or the Secretary to the Board was aware from the
Register of Interests that discussion could give rise to such a conflict.

Signed

………………………………………………….
Chair, Board of Governors

Date

…………………………………………………
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Board of Governors
Action update from the Board of Governors of 18 September 2018

No actions arose during the meeting of 18 September 2018.

Subsequent Action 1: Approval of FFR 2018 - Vice Principal, Finance &
Curriculum Services
At the request of SFC and, to allow SFC to consolidate the financial
information at sector level, the Financial Forecast Return for 2018 had to be
resubmitted using the credit assumptions in the SFC guidance. The guidance
stipulated no change to the number of credits and flat cash until 2022-23
when the grant and credits decrease with the ending of the ESF programme.
The submission deadline was before 11 December 2018 so it was not
possible to bring the FFR 2018 to the Board for approval.
In accordance with the Scheme of Delegation, the revised FFR 2018 was
circulated to the Finance & General Purposes Committee for approval. The
Chair of the Finance & General Purposes Committee and the Principal then
approved the revised FFR 2018 and delegated the Chair of the Board to
approve the FFR 2018 on behalf of the Board. Approval was given on 5
November 2018 allowing the FFR 2018 to be submitted to SFC.
Duly completed - The revised FFR 2018 as submitted is included as a Board
paper at agenda item 18.58 (ii) for formal Board approval.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT, SEPTEMBER 20 TO 6 DECEMBER 2018
Colleges Scotland Parliamentary Reception, 25 September
The Chair and I joined students and staff at a parliamentary reception celebrating
colleges, at which we showcased our successful Women in STEM course. Our
students had the opportunity to talk to the new Minister, Richard Lochhead.
Students from Childhood Practice and Travel and Tourism attended another
parliamentary reception where they spoke to MSPs about the difference
international placements makes to the learning experience. MSPs were
particularly impressed with the confidence of our students and how dealing with
the challenge of an overseas experience had instilled this confidence.
Graduation Ceremony, 27 October
Our 2018 Graduation Ceremony was attended by 230 graduating students and
nearly 700 guests, making it the largest yet. The games hall and college square
were transformed, and an enormous cross-college team effort ensured that the
event ran successfully. Many graduates and their families spoke about the effort
that lecturers and other staff made to help them overcome difficulties with their
learning, as well as some of the personal challenges they faced. Three of our
local MSPs – Angela Constance, Neil Findlay and Fiona Hyslop – attended the
ceremony, and two of them submitted parliamentary motions congratulating
students and staff.
Ministerial Meeting with College and University Principals, 20 November
On November I attended a meeting with Richard Lochhead MSP, the new
Minister for Further Education, Higher Education and Science, at which he shared
his priorities for both sectors. He asked us to consider what the sectors will look
like in five years, taking account of demographic, social and economic trends. For
colleges, he wants us to continue to focus on developing skills for young and
older people, widening access to higher education, and supporting our students’
health and wellbeing. He reminded us that finances over the next few years will
be challenging and that we will need to maximise income opportunities through
more links with business.
Ministerial Visit, 5 December
Richard Lochhead MSP, Minister for Further Education, Higher Education and
Science, launched Colleges Scotland’s Statement of Ambition at the college on 5
December to an audience of chairs, board members, principals and employers.
The Statement of Ambition is a short publication that spells out the purpose of
BOG/111218/Ser
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colleges in supporting individuals, communities and regional economies. In
preparation for the launch, Colleges Scotland produced a short film which
features some of our male Childhood Practice students and was shown at the
event. After the launch, the Minister toured the college and met students and
staff.
Performance
Credit Target 2017-18
Our final credit activity for 2017-18 was 45,326 credits delivered against a target
of 43,988.
Key Performance Indicators
Successful student outcomes for 2017-18 were:
West Lothian
College

FE full time (FEFT)
HE full time (HEFT)
FE part time (FEPT)
HE part time (HEPT)

2015-16 2016-17
(SFC
(SFC
publishe publishe
d
d
figures) figures)
64.1%
61.9%
66.3%
72.5%
70.6%
77.7%
65.5%
74.6%

2017-18
(College
audited
figures)

Change
on year

Change over
3 years

65.1%
70.1%
77.5%
80.6%

+3.2%
-2.4%
-0.2%
+6.0%

+1.0%
+3.8%
+6.9%
+15.1%

Evaluative Report and Enhancement Plan
The college submitted its Evaluative Report for 2017-18 and Enhancement Plan
for 2018-21 to Education Scotland on 31 October. All college reports are now
being considered for endorsement by Education Scotland and the Scottish
Funding Council.
College Leaver Destinations Report
SFC published the College Leaver Destinations 2016-17 Report on 9 October,
which showed that our students had the highest rate of positive destinations
(97.3%) of all other college regions outside of Glasgow and the lowest rate of
negative destinations (1.8%) of all regions.
Student Satisfaction and Engagement Survey
Each year the SFC works with the college sector to conduct a Student
Satisfaction and Engagement Survey based on a set of ten questions. Survey
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results of 2017-18 were published on 31 October. For almost all questions, our
students demonstrated greater satisfaction than the sector average. The only
question that was below the sector average was the one about the Student
Association influencing change for the better. This is probably a reflection of a
Student Association structure that didn’t work well last year and I am confident,
with the changes that have been put in place this year, that students will respond
much more positively to this question in this year’s survey.
Free Soup for Students
A consistent issue raised during my drop-in sessions with staff in September and
in my regular meetings with the Student Association is the poverty faced by an
increasing number of students and the negative impact that not being able to
afford lunch has on their learning. Although college finances are tight, I have
identified a small budget to cover the costs of this initiative which will run for the
remainder of this academic year, at which point we will evaluate its impact. From
November, all students have been able to get a free bowl of fresh soup and a roll
each day from 11am to 1pm. This is a good example of the Student Association
influencing change for the better.
Stakeholder Meetings and News
I met a number of stakeholders over the period covered by this report including
Paul Smart, Deputy Director (Colleges) from the Scottish Government, a range of
managers from Skills Development Scotland, and ongoing meetings with our SFC
Outcome Agreement (OA) colleagues. Our OA Manager, Seamus Spencer, has
been promoted to SFC Assistant Director responsible for UHI. I will continue to
work with Ken Rutherford, SFC Assistant Director: Outcome Agreements, and
look forward to finding out who our new OA Manager will be in the new year.
SFC, 30 October
I met SFC Finance Director Lorna McDonald and her colleagues to seek advice
on how we might fund a number of improvements to make our IT network more
secure and robust. This was a helpful meeting and we are exploring a number of
options suggested.
West Lothian Council
I had a number of follow-up meetings with West Lothian Council Depute Chief
Executive, Elaine Cook, and her colleagues to discuss college engagement with
new developments arising from the Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Deal, and with local employers on their skills needs. Subsequent to that, Jim
Henderson from Business Gateway is arranging for me to visit some companies,
the first of which was at JBT on 16 November where I met Manufacturing
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Director, Bill Lees who gave me a tour of the factory and discussed a range of
opportunities to work together.
I also had an introductory meeting with West Lothian Council colleagues who lead
on our shared services arrangements.
Business Breakfast, 27 September
I attended a business breakfast in October organised by West Lothian Council’s
economic development team, which was focused on the data driven innovation
aspect of the Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Deal. Ambitions include:
•
•
•
•
•

Transforming the digital and data skills for 30,000 students across the city
region over 8 years
Embedding digital and data literacy skills in full time courses
Upskilling college staff to be able to deliver the skills needed
Creating pilot courses and new training opportunities to different groups of
students across the city region
Creating a pipeline of skills for data driven innovation at SCQF levels 4–8.

Engaging with Other Colleges
I have visited principals in a number of colleges (so far, Borders, Dumfries &
Galloway, South Lanarkshire) to find out how their colleges are performing, learn
from any innovations they have introduced, share good practice from West
Lothian College and identify opportunities for working together. These have been
useful meetings and I will be meeting the principals of Forth Valley, Edinburgh,
and Dundee & Angus in the next few weeks.
Promoting/Representing the College
I attended my first Community Planning Partnership (CPP) Board meeting on 26
November which was a very good introduction to CPP partners. I am arranging
follow up meetings with a number of partners to explore opportunities for
partnership working.
On 4 October I delivered a keynote speech to DYW’s Girls Mean Business
conference which was attended by 100 S5 and S6 female pupils studying Higher
and Advanced Higher Business Management. I was invited to speak at the SFC
National Gender Conference on 25 October. The college’s work with employers
on mentoring female modern apprentices was referred to as good practice by
another speaker at the event.
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I attended the West Lothian Chamber of Commerce Business Awards on 30
November as a guest of the Chamber. The Chair and Vice Chair hosted the
college table, joined by staff and representatives from three companies the
college is supporting through the Flexible Workforce Development Fund (JBT,
Dalmahoy and Glenmorangie). On 6 December, I attended the Scottish Chamber
of Commerce Business Awards in Glasgow as a guest of Skills Development
Scotland.
National Bargaining
I participated in my first Employers’ Association residential on 19-20 September,
and have been working with colleagues and trade union representatives in the
college since then on the implementation of national bargaining. In October,
members of the support staff trade unions (UNISON, UNITE and GMB) voted to
accept a two-and-a-half-year pay and conditions of service offer. However, EIS
members rejected the final pay offer from the Employers’ Association and the
union is currently balloting members on a series of strike days in January,
February and March 2019. Appendix 1 contains details of both pay offers.
Equality and Diversity
White Ribbon Campaign
The White Ribbon Scotland campaign aims to end violence against women by
men, through getting more men to speak out against domestic abuse and sexual
violence. During the campaign’s 16 Days of Action this month, the Student
Association invited White Ribbon’s Scottish director, Davy Thompson to speak to
a number of classes. I sat in with the level 4 Prep for Construction class and was
very impressed with how many students signed up to the White Ribbon pledge.
LGBT Charter
In partnership with the Student Association, we want to achieve LGBT Charter
status. The LGBT Charter has been developed to support organisations to
undertake training and review policies, practice and resources to make sure that
we are as inclusive as we can be. As part of the process all college managers,
including myself, took part in an excellent training session delivered by LGBT
Youth Scotland in November. Training will be available to staff during Equalities
Week (10-14 December) and throughout 2019.
New Website
Our new website went live in November and is a major improvement on its
predecessor. This is the culmination of months of hard work by the marketing
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team who prepared over 400 pages of content ahead of the launch. Courses for
2019-20 went live on 8 December.
Men in Early Years Challenge Fund
The college was informed by the SFC on 29 November that our application for the
Men in Early Years Challenge Fund had been selected as one of two successful
bids. We have been awarded £22,600. Feedback from SFC is that it was a very
strong bid although they want to see a clearer structure of measures of success
on a quarterly basis throughout the year and as part of the evaluation.
Awards
The college won the Success in Partnership award at the Scottish Training
Federation Awards for our project where HND Engineering students spent time at
Mitsubishi and visited Malaysia.
Student Success
Former Foundation Apprentice and now HNC Civil Engineering student, Conor
Jackson, won the Foundation Apprentice of the Year award at the recent West
Lothian Council Stellar Awards, which celebrate educational excellence.
Staff Updates
In October, estates technician Jim Davidson marked his 40th year working at
West Lothian College. He started in 1976 at the age of 16, having just completed
a 13 week TSA engineering course which led to him obtaining the post of
storeman looking after the engineering workshops. Jim did this for many years
before moving to the Scottish Advanced Manufacturing (SAM) Centre where he
became a member of the janitorial team. When the SAM Centre closed in 2007
Jim took up a new position as trainee technician in the IT team, where he worked
for seven years before joining the Facilities team as an Estates Technician. When
I met Jim he showed me photos and news clippings of the former Bathgate
Technical College. It was fascinating to see staff and students taking part in a
range of vocational classes from typewriting to brickwork!

Jackie Galbraith
Principal & Chief Executive
December 2018
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APPENDIX 1 – NATIONAL BARGAINING

Support Staff Pay Award (agreed and being implemented)
•

Year one: 1 April 2018 - 31 March 2019
3% increase for staff earning less than £36,500 with a minimum payment of
£650 (FTE) 2% increase for staff earning more than £36,500, with a maximum
payment of £1,600 (FTE) for those earning more than £80,000.

•

Year two: 1 April 2019 - 31 March 2020
3% increase for staff earning less than £36,500 with a minimum payment of
£650 (FTE) 2% increase for staff earning more than £36,500, with a maximum
payment of £1,600 (FTE) for those earning more than £80,000.

•

Year three: 1 April 2020 – 31 August 2020
£300 (FTE) or 5/12ths Public Sector Pay Policy, whichever is greater.

Final Pay Offer for Lecturers (rejected)
•

Year 1: 1 April 2017 – 31 March 2018
All lecturers who received less than £600 during the first 25% of
harmonisation will receive an additional unconsolidated payment to ensure
that every lecturer will receive a minimum of £600.

•

Year 2: 1 April 2018 – 31 March 2019
All lecturers who received less than £1,000 during the second 25% of
harmonisation will receive an additional unconsolidated payment to ensure
that every lecturer will receive a minimum of £1,000.

•

Year 3: 1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020
Immediately following the final 50% migration pay uplift, a consolidated cost
of living pay award of 2.5% for all lecturers will be made.
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APPENDIX 2 – STUDENT AND COMMUNITY FEEDBACK
Some examples of positive feedback I have received from students and
community stakeholders about staff in the past two months.
Student Feedback
Support for Learning
It was uplifting to see the feedback that former student Weronika sent in about the
support she had received from Support for Learning Assistant Audrey Gunn while
she was at college. Weronika said:
“I wanted to thank you for all of your help and support throughout my studies. I
am also ever so thankful for your support with my mental health, always trying to
make me look at the bigger picture and believe in myself. However, I am most
grateful for your recommendation to get involved in volunteering with girlguiding.
Not only has volunteering improved my state of mind and made me more positive,
it has opened up so many opportunities for me to work on my confidence and
gain valuable experience. I now work with Girlguiding Scotland as an
administrator and it’s like a whole new world out there. Thank you, because I
wouldn’t be where I am without your help and support”
Business
A level 5 business student took the time recently to write to the college about their
college experience so far highlighting lecturer Claudia Nasseri for giving them
exceptional support, guiding them to a counsellor for additional support out of
college and by being available on email outwith working hours. The student said
that they would not have been able to do the course without Claudia’s support, a
view that was shared by classmates.
Computing
Former HNC Interactive Media student Mike Hart contacted computing lecturer
Scott Fleming recently to thank him for his encouragement during his time at the
college, particularly the advice he was given on freelancing. Mike graduated from
Napier University with a 1:1 for BSc Web Design and Development and last
month started work in a start-up company as their designer and front-end web
developer. Mike said that everyone who went from his HNC class to university still
remember that year as the best in their education and the one that gave them
their first insights into the industry.
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Community Feedback
Hospitality
We received the following very positive feedback from Margaret Wills, Chair of
Livingston Village Pensioners about their Christmas lunch in the Terrace
restaurant on 20 November.
“We would like to take the opportunity to thank all the staff and students for once
again providing a first class meal for our annual Pensioners Xmas Party Lunch.
This is now the third year that we have held this event in your restaurant and our
guests told us on the day that it just gets better every time! Every year we receive
many positive comments, both on the quality of the food and your friendly and
helpful staff.
Our older residents are of particular value to us and each year we like to
demonstrate that by treating them to a meal and a small gift. Your staff and
students help immensely in delivering that feeling of welcome and belonging, as
nothing is too much trouble and each student provides outstanding service, both
at the table and with any ancillary requests. Often, older people in our
communities feel neglected but on this day they were made to feel a part of
something uplifting and happy - and this is in no small part down to your
department. We are so grateful, thank you.”
Creative
Barbara-Ann Greig delivers Mindfulness sessions in and outwith the college, and
this week received some lovely feedback on some of the sessions she has run
externally.
Craigsfarm Community Centre
“My participants loved your session. You really reached people and your style
and approach was amazing, inclusive and very engaging. You did this whilst
maintaining a professional style but one people could relate to. You helped
empower vulnerable people and gave them and me much food for thought.”
Livingston Court Wellbeing Day
“Thanks so much for the amazing morning that you and your colleagues
organised for my staff. Every single attendee really enjoyed all of the sessions
and spending time with the college staff and students for each of them. The
fitness testing has already prompted some of them to have a think about their
health and how they can improve in certain areas and all said that the
mindfulness coaching has opened their eyes to how they think about and deal
with situations.
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Board of Governors - Student Association Report - November 2018
In this first year of the revised Student Association structure, there has been
increased activity in students approaching the Student Association for advice and
support.
The introduction of full time President and Vice President roles is proving to be more
effective both as a support for each other and facilitating attendance at cross college
meetings. Student participation and feedback is being requested throughout the
college and at every level. This is very positive, however there are increasing
demands being made on these two posts which we will need to monitor.
Non-paid members of the Executive team have also been elected. Five candidates
nominated themselves for the three Executive Officer positions and 51 students
voted. The successful elected officers are:
•
•
•

Martin Melderis, HNC Social Sciences
Lorna Reid, HND Accounts
Ben Snodgrass, Business level 6

63 Class Ambassadors were elected out of a total of 136 class groups. 51 students
have undertaken the training and 12 did not attend and did not provide a reason.
Positive feedback on the training was provided by 100% of participants.
However, 85 courses do not have a Class Ambassador. In previous years this
would have meant that there would be no student voice in these classes but, due to
the new structure, Centre Ambassador volunteers have been appointed to speak to
all of the non-represented classes.
Any Class Ambassadors who did not complete the online form, or who did not attend
one of the four training sessions, were unable to complete SPARKLE. In these
cases, a trained Centre Ambassador was allocated to these classes to ensure that
SPARKLE was completed effectively, so all students had a voice.
Class Ambassadors are incentivised to complete SPARKLE evaluations with their
classes by providing them with £10 Centre Voucher as a thank you for collating and
reporting on the information. Centre Ambassadors include:
•
•
•

Victoria Paterson: Access to Nursing
Caitlynn Helen Maria Cameron: HNC Social Services
Caroline Walker: Social Sciences
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Until 30 November all Class and Centre Ambassadors will be working hard to
complete SPARKLE. The feedback is collected online which will make it earlier for
the Student Association to download and report on. Centre Managers will receive
the report in December for consideration. The report will then be discussed in detail
at a full Quality Compliance and Learner Services Committee meeting in January
2019 which will be given over to discussing feedback with managers and exploring
required actions for improvement. A report will then come to the next Learning &
Teaching Committee.
Student Association Activities 2018-19
Over the past few months the Student Association has been dealing with two major
areas of concern for students:
•
•

Financial concerns
Mental Health and wellbeing

In order to support students the Student Association is working on a number of key
projects to alleviate financial stress and provide a range of services that support
good mental health and wellbeing. These include:
•

•

•
•
•
•

The SA wants to provide students with free/low cost healthy soup and has been
in discussion with the Principal on how this can be implemented. This is now
agreed and being implemented for all students from 19 November.
Last year the SA was granted funding to establish a Breakfast Club. From
September-October, 242 porridge at 30p and 152 toasts at 30p were purchased
showing a need for this service. This service will continue for the rest of this
academic year.
The Student Association issued 113 C Cards to students in September/October.
The Student Association wants to establish a College Mental Health Policy and
NUS Mental Health Agreement.
Student Association is working on achieving the Healthy Body Healthy Mind
Award.
Implementation of a welfare hub to issue toiletries such as soap, toothbrush,
toothpaste, shampoo and conditioner for students. The Student Association is
looking for donations in order to make up packs for students in need of these
items. There was a noted high demand for this service after only one hour of
launching the service to staff and students.

Other major projects underway include:
•
•

Collaboration with the College in order to achieve LGBTI Charter recognition.
The Student Association is working to establish Clubs such as Archery and LGBT
A-Z Club at the request of students. (At Fresher’s 33 students showed interest in
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•

•

•
•
•
•
•

•
•

the LGBT Club) There have been two meetings and regular meetings are now
established.
Black History Month Celebration. This year every day on our social media
platforms Facebook and Twitter we have been sharing posts with pictures of
famous black people throughout history. We used influential characters such as
Kimberly Bryant who is a leading name in Stem and also founder of Black Girl’s
Code, a training course that teaches basic programming concepts to black girls
who are underrepresented in technology careers. Booker T. Washington was
another fitting example as he was best known as a prominent black educator.
We also promoted Climate Week, Money Skills workshops (30 students
attended), Smoking Cessation workshops (over 200 students have been booked
in so far), Mental Health You Look After You 35 week campaign, promoted
activities, events, jobs and other social media activity.
Student Association is now a presence on every College committee, the Board
and has an input to all lecturer recruitment.
SPARKLE activity and evaluation of findings in order to represent feedback from
130 classes on the learning and teaching and college experience.
Revision of Student Association Strategic Plan 2019-20, now working in
partnership with the College to inform the Outcome Agreement.
The Student Association is currently completing a self-evaluation.
We worked with SQW (a leading independent provider of research, analysis and
advice in economic and social development) commissioned by Scottish
Government to provide research on the financial behaviour of FE students. 9
students participated in this research.
Research into accommodation layout and student opinions for improvement.
The Student Association will continue to support students in providing advice and
support to access internal and external services.

Social Media
Our social media presence has been very good this year with huge numbers of
students accessing information and engaging with our posts. We had one post, a
free theory driving course which had a massive reach of 57.6 thousand people,
which shows the demand for these types of courses. This provided us with a great
opportunity to market our Student Association and West Lothian College. Our figures
have now dropped to a steady 15-16 thousand reach. Jobs and volunteering posts
get the most response showing the need for students to access work whilst at
College.
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Data analysis statistics
August-September
70.4 thousand reached.
16.8 thousand people engaged in our posts
492 students reacting to posts with smiley faces or likes etc.
1175 students commenting on our posts
664 shares of our posts
990 hits of the Student Association website due to the Facebook throughput
218 new likes
220 new followers
1582 friends
September-October:
15.9 thousand reached
8.4 thousand engaged
841 page views
111 new page likes
112 new followers
1710 friends
The Student Association has started visiting other Student Associations which
included Ayrshire College Student Association in October. We will visit Borders
College in November and Edinburgh College in the New Year in order to share good
practice.
The Student Association is striving to ensure that there is a strong student voice
within the College and hopes to continue to work in partnership with college staff to
make a positive difference.

Student Association
11 December 2018
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Board of Governors
Report from Board Secretary - Board Development
This paper provides a brief update on Board development issues.

Training
The External Auditors, Mazars, presented a Financial Statements Workshop on
Tuesday 18 September 2018 before the Board Meeting. Five Board Members
attended and the overall feedback was that although generally well received, the
attendees would have welcomed more focus on the College’s accounts in the
workshop. Feedback and thanks have been passed onto Mazars for this training.
Online training for Audit Committee members is available through CDN and an
earlier email of 24 September has directed Board Members to the relevant page.
All Audit Committee members are recommended to complete the training
although there may be aspects of relevance for all Board Members.

1-2-1 Review Meetings
All Board Members are requested to review the outcomes from their 1-2-1 review
meetings and contact me if they require any help.

Register of Interests
Thank you to all Board Members for their prompt responses to the Register of
Interest update requests. The updated Register of Interests was uploaded onto
the College website.
Board members are reminded that it is your personal responsibility to ensure that
interests are registered whenever your circumstances change in such a way as
to require change or an addition to your entry and your duty to ensure any
changes in circumstances are reported within one month of them changing.

Board Recruitment
In order to recruit for the vacancies on the Board, it is planned to have an ‘Open
Evening’ on Tuesday 29 January. Invitations will be sent to a wide range of
groups and Board members are asked to advertise the invitation and share on
social media to try and encourage as many people as possible to attend. The
event will be supported by Changing the Chemistry, which is a charitable
organisation whose aim is to diversify board membership.
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Following the event, applications will open for positions on the Board and the
Recruitment Panel will consider these by the end of February with a view to
interviews taking place at the beginning of March. The joining date of new Board
Members will be subject to Ministerial approval being obtained.

Useful Dates
An update of useful dates in the forthcoming months;
(i) Board of Governors
2019

Main Agenda Item(s)

14
February

Learner
Attainment
Sub Group

9.30am

Post January
recruitment update

28
February

Finance &
General
Purposes
Committee

9.30am

Normal Business
+
Committee Self
Evaluation

6 March

Learning &
Teaching
Committee

9.30am

7 March

Audit
Committee

9.30am

19 March

Board
Meeting

4.30pm

ROA updates
+
Committee Self
Evaluation
Health & Safety
Annual Report
+
Committee Self
Evaluation
Board Recruitment
Updated

Visit /
Presentation

Engineering &
Construction

Social Event

Please note all dates and proposed visits or presentations can be subject to
change. Committee members will always be informed in advance of any changes
to the proposed dates, however if you would like to attend a Committee as an
observer, please let me know in advance so that I can keep you informed of any
changes.
For information, I attach the final 2019 Calendar at Appendix 1. Please note all
future dates and I would particularly draw your attention to the Strategy Day on
16 May 2018.
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(ii) CDN
Ongoing – Online CDN Audit Committee training (for all board members but
especially Audit Committee members)
4 December – Staff Board Member Induction Workshop
12 December – Corporate and Social Responsibility Workshop (Stirling)
21 February – Board Member Induction Workshop (Inverness)
14 March – Board Member Induction Workshop (Glasgow)
20 March – Learning and Teaching Workshop (tbc)
25 April – Board Member Induction Workshop (Edinburgh)
2 May – Governance & Leadership Summit: Thinking Through Change (Stirling)

(iii) West Lothian College
8 December – 2019/20 Applications ‘go live’
24 December to 4 January – College closed for Winter Break

Action
The Board is asked to note the update on Board development work

Karine McNair
Secretary to the Board of Governors
11 December 2018
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Appendix 1
West Lothian College - Board of Governors
Calendar of Meetings 2019

January

Learning &
Teaching
Committee

Finance &
General
Purposes
Committee

Audit
Committee

Remuneration
&
Nominations
Committees

Board of
Governors

Learner
Attainment
Sub Group

Wednesdays
9.30am

Thursdays
9.30am

Thursdays
9.30am

Tuesdays
4.00pm

Tuesdays
4.30pm

Various
9.30am

February
March

28 February

14 February

6 Mar

7 Mar

19 Mar

19 Mar

April
May
June

5 June

13 June

6 June

18 June

Thurs 16*
May
18 June

4 Sept

5 Sept

12 Sept

17 Sept

17 Sept

27 Nov

21 Nov

28 Nov

July
August
September
October
November
December

10 Dec

* Board Away Day
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Board of Governors
Minute of Meeting of the Finance & General Purposes Committee held on
Thursday 22 November at 9.30am in the Barbour Room, in the College.
Present:

Moira Niven (Chair)
Jackie Galbraith (Principal & Chief Executive)
Richard Lockhart
Claire Probert
Alex Linkston
Frank Gribben
Julia Simpson

In attendance:

Jennifer McLaren (Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum
Services)
George Hotchkiss (Vice Principal, Curriculum &
Planning)
Simon Earp (Vice Principal, Curriculum & Enterprise)
Derek O’Sullivan – Senior HR Business Partner (item
18.44 only)
Karine McNair – Secretary to the Board

18.38 Welcome/Apologies
Apologies were received from Morag McKelvie.

18.39 Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

18.40 Minute of Meeting of 31 August 2018
The Minute of the meeting of 31 August 2018 was approved as a correct
record.

18.41

Matters Arising from Minute of Meeting of 31 August 2018
The Committee noted all actions as duly completed.
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18.42 Financial Progress
(i) Annual Report & Financial Statements 2017-18
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented the Annual
Report & Financial Statements 2017-18 highlighting that they were
prepared in accordance with all regulatory requirements. The
requirements had not significantly changed from 2016-17 however
the Committee noted the addition information relating to Trade Union
activity which is now a reporting requirement for all public bodies and
the information will be published on the College website.
The Committee commented that it was difficult to judge the financial
sustainability of the College based on the accounts since external
factors such as pension revaluations had such an impact on the
figures. However, the Committee appreciated the 2017 summary
sheet provided by Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services,
since it focussed on the ‘trading’ position and allowed the Committee
to conclude that the College had had a positive year financially.
It was noted that as a result of the good trading position the college
had been able to undertake investment projects in the College and
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services confirmed that the
Fiscal Year position is monitored to ensure that any surplus forecast
at the end of March is re-invested in the college.
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, highlighted that the
additional £1m of staff costs compared to 2016-17 included some
pension revaluation costs however they mainly related to the impact
of harmonisation for lecturing staff.
The Committee asked for some minor text corrections within the
Performance and Accountability Report and Vice Principal, Finance
& Curriculum Services undertook to make these corrections and
have a final proof read of the Report for consideration by the Audit
Committee.
Action 1: Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services
The Committee recommended the Annual Report & Financial
Statements 2017-18 for approval by the Audit Committee.
Action 2: Board Secretary
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(ii) Reconciliation of Final Outturn for 2017-18 with Forecast at
June 2018
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented paper 4
stating that the figures presented at the last Committee meeting had
now been finalised and reconciled for the final position for 2017-18.
It was noted that the increase in the bad debt provision of £56k was
due to the increase in debtors over a certain age and Vice Principal,
Finance & Curriculum Services, informed the Committee that the
Finance Team would have a particular focus on debt collection
during 2018-19.
The Committee noted the paper.

(iii) College Certificate 2017-18
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented paper 5
noting that the final Credit claim was 3% above target and the final
Credit claim had been adjusted by only 10 credits at the yearend
audit. The Committee commended the College on the accurate
Credit records.
The Committee appreciated the balance to be struck between a
Credit claim which reflected the funded position and also a Credit
target which evidenced the College’s desire for growth in Credits.
The Committee noted the report.

(iv) Management Accounts
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented paper 6
commenting that any significant variance in fee income is being
closely examined and action will be taken. Subsequent to the paper
being issued, it had been confirmed that student placement costs
will be met within the budget so this would no longer be an area of
concern.
The Committee noted that staff should be redeployed where
courses had not run rather than new staff being recruited.
The Principal highlighted an initiative which is being run by the
College after feedback from the Student Association and staff to
provide free soup and roll to all students at lunchtime. A small
budget has been identified to fund the initiative after students and
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staff had raised concerns about students coming to afternoon
classes without having eaten at all that day and the negative impact
this was having on their learning. The actual costs and impact of the
initiative will be monitored and reviewed at the end of the academic
year.
The Committee praised the College for responding quickly to the
concerns and considered future funding models to sustain the
initiative, for example, fundraising or approaching local
philanthropists.
The Committee noted the paper.

(v) Income Generation Report
Vice Principal, Curriculum & Enterprise, presented paper 7
highlighting the aim for 26 Flexible Workforce Development Fund
placements by the end of January as there could be a potential
redistribution of funds if Colleges are not fully using the fund.
It was acknowledged that the Foundation Apprenticeships target of
194 learners was ambitious but Vice Principal, Curriculum &
Enterprise, pointed out that many aspects of the scheme have
changed. The relationships developed last year with schools are
allowing more integrated working with the schools to intelligently
plan for more learners.
Vice Principal, Curriculum & Enterprise, offered to give a brand
development presentation at the next Board meeting to update all
Board members on the progress of the rebranding exercise.
Action 3: Vice Principal, Curriculum & Enterprise
The Childhood Practice event had been well received and it was
likely that the model would be used for future events with other
sectors. It was also noted that the Children’s Hearing delivery model
could be used to expand into other businesses leveraging the
capabilities and skills developed within the team.
The Committee commented on the very positive report and noted
the paper.
(vi) Infrastructure Update
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented paper 8 to
highlight the investment priorities within the College.
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The Principal commented that the College has had no
reconfiguration since 2001 which is having a negative impact on the
student experience and has not taken into account the evolution of
the curriculum. Other Colleges have been visited to consider how
they have used technology and existing campus layouts to improve
the student experience.
The Committee encouraged the College to be ambitious in their
strategy taking into account the future plans to outreach to the wider
community and the need to train staff to exploit the full capability of
technology. The Committee felt that the business community
expected students to have been trained using the latest software
and equipment. It was commented that any infrastructure strategy
should be linked with any other teaching, commercial etc. strategies
being developed for the College.
The Committee noted the paper.

18.43 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 2017-2018
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented the KPIs
noting that there has been improvement in the non-financial KPIs over
three years in all four indicators.
The Committee noted the paper.

18.44 Organisational Well-being
(i) Human Resources Report
The Senior HR Business Partner presented the report covering the
quarter to September and noted that absences were below the
target of 4% for the first time during this period. There were no
grievance procedures and employee turnover includes all leavers
(retirements, fixed term contact etc.)
The Committee commented on the improved format of the report.
The Committee noted the report.

(ii) Employers Association Update
The Chair of the Board of Governors provided a verbal update
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noting that the support staff deal had been agreed to 2020 and the
teaching staff were being approached for a ballot on industrial
action.
The Committee were concerned that any increase to the deal
offered to teaching staff would put Colleges in a difficult financial
position given that the College is not funded for the cost of pay
awards and the already tight finances, resulting in students suffering
and less funds available for investment in infrastructure.
The Committee thanked the Chair of the Board of Governors for the
report

18.45 Complaints Report
Vice Principal, Curriculum & Planning, presented the Complaints Report
and noted the proactive early intervention of the Student Association
which has prevented the escalation of ‘concerns’ to ‘complaints’ in
many cases.
The Principal suggested that for balance the Committee may also like to
hear about the unsolicited compliments received about College staff
and Vice Principal, Curriculum & Planning, undertook to include
compliments into the Complaints Report in the future.
Action 4: Vice Principal, Curriculum & Planning
The Committee noted the report.

18.46 Any Other Business

.

.*
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No other matters of business were raised.

18.47

Review of Meeting, Supporting Papers & Development Plan
The Committee were content with the meeting, the information received
and the papers presented.

18.48

Date of Next Meeting
The next meeting was scheduled for 28 February 2019 at 9.30am.

Note: There were no matters discussed during the meeting, during
which Members declared any conflict of interest, or the Secretary to the
Board was aware from the Register of Interests that discussion could
give rise to such a conflict.

Visit of the Committee to the NHS Simulation Area
The College had recently been the recipient of some donated NHS
equipment which was being used to create a practical learning
environment for healthcare students. The Committee visited the NHS
Simulation area and observed it being used by the NQ Access to
Nursing course.
The Committee were impressed by the commitment shown by the
returning adult learners to the course and their enthusiasm to learn. The
students and staff were keen to show the difference the equipment was
making to their learning experience and the staff particularly
commented on the benefit using the equipment has to the students’
confidence when they are on placement.
The Committee thanked Linda Brown and Annette Miller for the
excellent presentation of the equipment and the students for their
engagement with Committee members.

Signed

………………………………………………….
Chair, Finance & General Purposes Committee

Date

…………………………………………………

*Redacted under s.33 Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002
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Board of Governors
Financial Forecast Return (FFR)
The Finance & General Purposes Committee recommended approval of the 2018
FFR at the meeting held in August 2018. In the covering paper the Committee was
advised that SFC had provided guidance in relation to key assumptions that should
be used in producing the financial forecasts and, in relation to SFC grant income,
that guidance stated that colleges should assume no change to their credit allocation
until 2022-23 and then assume a decrease of 3.2%.
However, in line with the college’s strategy for growth, the financial forecast
presented assumed a 2% growth in credits in 2020-21 and from 2021-22 onwards
the activity target equalled our 2020 aspirational target of 45,706 credits.
Not unexpectedly SFC came back and asked the college to resubmit the FFR based
on the credit assumptions in their guidance. This is because SFC wants to
consolidate the sector position and to do that needs all colleges to use a common
set of assumptions.
In line with that request the FFR was revised and credit growth assumptions were
removed. This led to an underlying deficit position particularly in relation to the last
three years of the forecast and a worsening cash position. It was recommended to
the Committee that we show a deficit rather than increase other income or reduce
costs as we do not have a strategy in place to either generate the additional income
or achieve the cost savings. The commentary was amended to indicate that our
strategy is for growth and we would take the necessary steps to achieve a breakeven position if we do not receive that growth.
The Committee was reassured that the college is currently reviewing the
organisational model and, once the impact of that is known, the Senior Team will be
scenario planning in relation to the college’s 5-year forecasts. This will identify what
steps need to be taken to prevent the college going into deficit and the revised
modelling will form the basis of the 2019 FFR.
Action
The Board is asked to approve the revised FFR as submitted to SFC.

Jennifer McLaren
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services
11 December 2018
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College

West Lothian College

Contact

Jennifer McLaren

Telephone

01506 427806

Email:

jmclaren@west-lothian.ac.uk

DECLARATION:
The attached worksheets represent the financial forecasts for the College. They reflect a financial
statement of our academic and physical plans from 2017-18 to 2022-23. Adequate explanations
have been provided where requested on the return. The worksheets and their underpinning
assumptions have been reviewed and approved by the Board of Management in accordance with
their agreed practices. In preparing this financial forecast the College has fully considered the
financial implications of all aspects of its strategy and has properly reflected these in the forecast.

Signed:
Principal/Chief Executive Officer
Date:

West Lothian College
KEY RISKS
Please use the boxes below to provide a commentary on material risks to income and
expenditure as identified in the Risk Register. Where possible these risks should be
quantified.

Please use the boxes below to describe the actions planned by the College to
address/mitigate the identified risks.

The new Childrens Hearings Scotland training contract is due to start in January 2019 but the winning tender
has not yet been announced. The forecasts assume the College will continue as service provider for this
contract.

Forecast expenditure includes an investment budget equivalent to the surplus from the CHS contract. In the
event of losing this contract this spend will not go ahead.

The credit and grant-in-aid assumptions are in line with SFC guidance. However the college's strategy is for
growth in credits. This strategy has been discussed with the college's Regional Outcome Manager

In the event that the college does not receive additional credit activity it will take the necessary steps to
achieve a break-even position.

The Commercial Team has a good track record of successfully bidding for contracts and it has been assumed
that SDS Foundation Apprentice income will increase by £371k in 2019/20 and Modern Apprentice income by
£229k in 2020/21. Additional salary costs of £289k and £108k are also included.

In the event that additional funding is not allocated an equivalent saving will be made from salaries.

The Commercial Team has a good track record of successfully bidding for contracts and an increased level of
workplace SVQ activity has been assumed from 2020/21 increasing fees income by £346k. Additional salary
costs are estimated at £200k.

In the event that additional SVQ activity is not acheived an equivalent saving will be made from salaries.

West Lothian College

Actual
2016-17

Forecast
2017-18

Forecast
2018-19

Forecast
2019-20

Forecast
2020-21

Forecast
2021-22

Forecast
2022-23

2016-17 2017-18

2017-18 2018-19

2018-19 2019-20

2019-20 2020-21

2020-21 2021-22

2021-22 2022-23

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

%

%

%

%

%

%

3,020
11,114
0
0
0
0
2,511
1,971
2
18,618
0
18,618

3,173
12,197
0
0
0
0
457
2,017
0
17,844
0
17,844

3,602
12,650
0
0
0
0
457
1,804
0
18,513
0
18,513

4,089
12,906
0
0
0
0
457
1,816
0
19,268
0
19,268

4,594
12,906
0
0
0
0
457
1,816
0
19,773
0
19,773

4,576
12,906
0
0
0
0
457
1,826
0
19,765
0
19,765

4,528
12,560
0
0
0
0
457
1,836
0
19,381
0
19,381

Staff costs
Staff costs - exceptional restructuring costs
Exceptional costs - non-staff
Other operating expenses
Donation to Arms Length Foundation
Depreciation
Interest and other finance costs

10,923
10
0
5,038
0
2,710
214

11,301
4
0
5,724
0
795
104

12,884
0
0
4,882
0
782
104

13,461
0
0
5,060
0
782
104

14,018
0
0
5,099
0
782
104

14,154
0
0
4,995
0
782
104

Total expenditure

18,895

17,928

18,652

19,407

20,003

(277)

(84)

(139)

(139)

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

(277)

(84)

(139)

Explanation for variance

Statement of Comprehensive income and expenditure (Consolidated)
INCOME
Tuition fees and education contracts
Funding council grants
Research grants and contracts
Revenue grants from Arms Length Foundation
Capital grants from Arms Length Foundation
Other non-government capital grants
Deferred capital grant release (SFC and non-SFC Government)
Other income
Investment income
Total income before donations and endowments
Donations and endowments
Total income

5.1%
9.7%

13.5%
3.7%

13.5%
2.0%

12.4%
0.0%

-0.4%
0.0%

-1.0%
-2.7%

See Commentary
See Commentary

-81.8%
2.3%
-100.0%
-4.2%

0.0%
-10.6%

0.0%
0.7%

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.6%

0.0%
0.5%

Revaluation at 31/07/17
See Commentary

3.7%

4.1%

2.6%

0.0%

-1.9%

-4.2%

3.7%

4.1%

2.6%

0.0%

-1.9%

13,944
0
0
4,964
0
782
104

3.5%
-60.0%

14.0%
-100.0%

4.5%

4.1%

1.0%

-1.5%

13.6%

-14.7%

3.6%

0.8%

-2.0%

-0.6%

-70.7%
-51.4%

-1.6%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%

20,035

19,794

-5.1%

4.0%

4.0%

3.1%

0.2%

-1.2%

(230)

(270)

(413)

-69.7%

65.5%

0.0%

65.5%

17.4%

53.0%

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

(139)

(230)

(270)

(413)

-69.7%

65.5%

0.0%

65.5%

17.4%

53.0%

65.5%

0.0%

65.5%

17.4%

53.0%

EXPENDITURE

Surplus/(deficit) before other gains and losses and share of operating
surplus/deficit of joint ventures and associates

Gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets
Gain/(loss) on investments
Share of operating surplus/(deficit) in joint venture(s)
Share of operating surplus/(deficit) in associate(s)
Surplus/(deficit) before tax
Other taxation

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

(277)

(84)

(139)

(139)

(230)

(270)

(413)

-69.7%

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of land and buildings
Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect of pension schemes
Other comprehensive income

2,221
924
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

-100.0%
-100.0%

Total comprehensive income for the year

2,868

(84)

(139)

(139)

(230)

(270)

(413)

-102.9%

See Commentary

Revaluation at 31/07/17
Forecasts per actuarial report for July 2017 accounts

2016/17 includes actuarial gain on Lothian Pension Fund

65.5%

0.0%

65.5%

17.4%

53.0%

West Lothian College

UNDERLYING OPERATING RESULT

Surplus/(deficit) before other gains and losses and
share of operating surplus/deficit of joint ventures
and associates
Add:
Total depreciation (Government-funded, privately
funded and NPD-funded assets) net of deferred capital
grant release (incorporated colleges only)
Exceptional non-restructuring items (e.g. impairment
costs)
Non-cash pension adjustment - net service cost
Non-cash pension adjustment - net interest cost
Donation to Arms Length Foundation (incorporated colleges
only)

Actual
2016-17
£000

Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
£000
£000
£000
£000

Forecast
2021-22
£000

Forecast
2022-23
£000

(277)

(84)

(139)

(139)

(230)

(270)

(413)

199

338

325

325

325

325

325

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

2016-17 - 2017-18 - 2018- 2018-19 - 2019- 2019-20 - 2020- 2020-21 - 2021- 2021-22 - 20222017-18
19
20
21
22
23
%
%
%
%
%
%

69.8%

-3.8%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

-27.5%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

-79.0%

-106.3%

0.0%

2275.0%

42.1%

105.9%

Explanation for variance

Revaluation at 31/07/17

-100.0%
-100.0%

524
121
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

262

190

190

190

190

190

190

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

305

64

(4)

(4)

(95)

(135)

(278)

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

Capital priorities
Loan repayments
NPD / PFI repayments
Estates costs
Provisions pre 1 April 2014
Total capital

158
0
0
104
262

158
0
0
32
190

158
0
0
32
190

158
0
0
32
190

158
0
0
32
190

158
0
0
32
190

158
0
0
32
190

Total cash budget for priorities spend

262

190

190

190

190

190

190

Deduct:
Non-Government capital grants (e.g. ALF capital grant)
Exceptional income (if disclosed as exceptional in
accounts)
CBP allocated to loan repayments and other capital
items (incorporated colleges only)
NPD payments to reduce NPD balance sheet debt
Underlying operating result

Cash budget for priorities (incorporated colleges) :
Revenue priorities
Student support funding
2015-16 pay award
Voluntary severance
Estates costs
Other - please describe
Total impact on operating position

SFC Loan plus £32k for ERP not included in Surplus / (deficit)

West Lothian College

Staff costs

Salaries
Social Security costs
Other pension costs
FRS 102 pensions adjustments
Total

Actual
2016-17
£000
8,246
775
1,378
524
10,923

Forecast
2017-18
£000

Forecast
2018-19
£000

Forecast
2019-20
£000

Forecast
2020-21
£000

Forecast
2021-22
£000

Forecast
2022-23
£000

9,109
847
1,345

10,556
983
1,345

11,083
1,033
1,345

11,580
1,093
1,345

11,699
1,110
1,345

11,488
1,111
1,345

11,301

12,884

13,461

14,018

14,154

13,944

2016-17 - 2017-18 - 2018-19 - 2019-20 - 2020-21 - 2021-22 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
%
%
%
%
%
%

Explanation

10.5%

15.9%

5.0%

4.5%

1.0%

-1.8%

See Commentary

9.3%
-2.4%
-100.0%

16.1%
0.0%

5.1%
0.0%

5.8%
0.0%

1.6%
0.0%

0.1%
0.0%

Forecasts per actuarial report for July 2017 accounts

3.5%

14.0%

4.5%

4.1%

1.0%

-1.5%

West Lothian College

West Lothian College

Balance Sheet

1 Non-current assets

a) Intangible assets
b) Fixed assets
c) Investments

Total non-current assets
2 Current assets

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

Stock
Debtors
Investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Other (e.g. assets for resale)

Total current assets
3 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)

Total creditors < 1year

Bank loans and external borrowing
Bank overdrafts
Lennartz creditor
Obligations under finance leases and service concessions
Payments received in advance
Amounts owed to Funding Council
Obligations under PFI/NPD
Other creditors and accruals

Share of net assets/(liabilities) in associate
NET CURRENT ASSETS/LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
4 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one

year

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

Local authority loans

Bank loans and external borrowing
Lennartz creditor

Finance leases and service concessions
Obligations under PFI/NPD
f) Amounts repayable to Funding Council
Other
creditors
g)
Total creditors >1 year
5 Provisions

a) Pension provisions
b) Other

Total provisions
TOTAL NET ASSETS
9 Restricted Reserves

10 Unrestricted reserves

11 Non-controlling interest

TOTAL RESERVES

Forecast
2017-18

Forecast
2018-19

Forecast
2019-20

Forecast
2020-21

Forecast
2021-22

Forecast
2022-23

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

%

%

%

%

%

%

0
19,660
0
19,660

0
18,865
0
18,865

0
18,083
0
18,083

0
17,301
0
17,301

0
16,519
0
16,519

0
15,737
0
15,737

0
14,955
0
14,955

-4.0%

-4.1%

-4.3%

-4.5%

-4.7%

-5.0%

-4.0%

-4.1%

-4.3%

-4.5%

-4.7%

-5.0%

0
559
0
1,530
0
2,089

0
596
0
729
0
1,325

0
621
0
729
0
1,350

0
621
0
729
0
1,350

0
621
0
638
0
1,259

0
621
0
507
0
1,128

0
621
0
233
0
854

6.6%

4.2%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

-52.4%

0.0%

0.0%

-12.5%

-20.5%

-54.0%

-36.6%

1.9%

0.0%

-6.7%

-10.4%

-24.3%

0
0
0
0
0
217
0
2,706
2,923

0
0
0
0
0
158
0
1,904
2,062

0
0
0
0
0
158
0
1,901
2,059

0
0
0
0
0
158
0
1,873
2,031

0
0
0
0
0
158
0
1,845
2,003

0
0
0
0
0
158
0
1,817
1,975

0
0
0
0
0
158
0
1,789
1,947

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

-29.6%
-29.5%

-0.2%
-0.1%

-1.5%
-1.4%

-1.5%
-1.4%

-1.5%
-1.4%

-1.5%
-1.4%

(834)

(737)

(709)

(681)

(744)

(847)

(1,093)

-11.6%

-3.8%

-3.9%

9.3%

13.8%

29.0%

18,128

17,374

16,620

15,775

14,890

13,862

-3.7%

-4.2%

-4.3%

-5.1%

-5.6%

-6.9%

0
0
0
0
0
2,527
12,763
15,290

0
0
0
0
0
2,370
12,306
14,676

0
0
0
0
0
2,212
11,849
14,061

0
0
0
0
0
2,054
11,392
13,446

0
0
0
0
0
1,896
10,935
12,831

0
0
0
0
0
1,738
10,478
12,216

0
0
0
0
0
1,580
10,021
11,601

-6.2%
-3.6%
-4.0%

-6.7%
-3.7%
-4.2%

-7.1%
-3.9%
-4.4%

-7.7%
-4.0%
-4.6%

-8.3%
-4.2%
-4.8%

-9.1%
-4.4%
-5.0%

4,416
3,953
8,369

4,416
3,953
8,369

4,416
3,953
8,369

4,416
3,953
8,369

4,416
3,953
8,369

4,416
3,953
8,369

4,416
3,953
8,369

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

(4,833)

(4,917)

(5,056)

(5,195)

(5,425)

(5,695)

(6,108)

1.7%

2.8%

2.7%

4.4%

5.0%

7.3%

-1.9%
-4.6%

-1.4%
-4.8%

-1.4%
-5.1%

-0.6%
-5.4%

-0.3%
-5.7%

1.1%
-6.0%

1.7%

2.8%

2.7%

4.4%

5.0%

7.3%

a) Endowment Reserve

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-11,273

-11,060

-10,902

-10,744

-10,677

-10,650

-10,766

6,440

6,143

5,846

5,549

5,252

4,955

4,658

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(4,833)

(4,917)

(5,056)

(5,195)

(5,425)

(5,695)

(6,108)

a) Income and Expenditure Reserve

-27.2%

18,826

b) Restricted Reserve

b) Revaluation reserve

2016-17 - 2017-18 - 2018-19 - 2019-20 - 2020-21 - 2021-22 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Actual
2016-17

Explanation for variance

CEEP grant of £647k

CEEP grant of £647k

West Lothian College
Capital Expenditure Projects and Forecast Methods of Financing

Expenditure:
Land & Buildings
Equipment & Others
Financed by:
Cash reserves
Arms Length Foundation
Leasing
SFC grant
Re-investment of proceeds from disposal of assets *
Non-SFC grants
PFI/NPD
Other - please specify if material

Actual
2016-17

Forecast
2017-18

Forecast
2018-19

Forecast
2019-20

Forecast
2020-21

Forecast
2021-22

Forecast
2022-23

2016-17 2017-18

2017-18 2018-19

2018-19 2019-20

2019-20 2020-21

2020-21 2021-22

2021-22 2022-23

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

%

%

%

%

%

%

34
55

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

89

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0
0
89
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

89

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

* to be included only where this has been agreed by SFC

Capital disposals
Disposal proceeds:
Asset description
Asset description
Asset description
Asset description

Gain/(loss) on disposal:
Asset description
Asset description
Asset description
Asset description

-100.0%
-100.0%
-100.0%

-100.0%

-100.0%

West Lothian College

ALF Funding

Actual
2016-17

Forecast
2017-18

Forecast
2018-19

Forecast
2019-20

Forecast
2020-21

Forecast
2021-22

Forecast
2022-23

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Estimated balance of cash in ALF as at 1 August

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Donation to Arms Length Foundation

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Grant from Arms Length Foundation - capital
Grant from Arms Length Foundation - revenue

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Estimated balance of cash in ALF as at 31 July

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Note:

For most foundations, the most recent accounts available are for periods ending in 2017. Colleges' forecast movements will not
include governance costs, donations from third parties, payments to third parties or investment income.

Grant from Arms Length Foundation - capital:
Description
Description
Description
Description
Description
Description
Total

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Grant from Arms Length Foundation - revenue
Description
Description
Description
Description
Description
Description
Total

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

West Lothian College

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Actual 2016-17
£000

Forecast 2017-18
£000

Forecast 2018-19
£000

Forecast 2019-20
£000

Forecast 2020-21
£000

Forecast 2021-22
£000

Forecast 2022-23
£000

18,513
68%
32%
19%
0%
10%

19,268
67%
33%
21%
0%
9%

19,773
65%
35%
23%
0%
9%

19,765
65%
35%
23%
0%
9%

19,381
65%
35%
23%
0%
9%

19,407
69%
26%

20,003
70%
25%

20,035
71%
25%

19,794
70%
25%

Total Income
Total Funding Council Grant as % of Total Income
Total non-Funding Council Grant as % of Total Income
Total Education Contracts and Tuition Fees as % of Total Income
Total Research Grants and Contracts as % of Total Income
Total Other Income as % of Total Income

18,618
60%
40%
16%
0%
11%

Income ratios
17,844
68%
32%
18%
0%
11%

Total Expenditure
Salaries as % of Total Expenditure
Other operating costs as % of Total Expenditure
Depreciation/amortisation as % of Total Expenditure

18,895
58%
27%
14%

Expenditure ratios
17,928
63%
32%
4%

18,652
69%
26%

Operating Surplus/(deficit)
Operating Surplus/(deficit) as % of Total Income
Underlying operating surplus/(deficit)
Underlying operating surplus/(deficit) as % of Total Income

-277
-1%
305
1.6%

Operating position
-84
0%
64
0.4%

-139
-1%
-4

Cash and Current Asset Investments
Overdrafts
Days Ratio of Cash to Total Expenditure

1,530
0
35

Cash Position
729
0
16

Unrestricted reserves
Current Ratio
Unrestricted reserves as % of Total Income
Total borrowing (Overdrafts, Loans, Finance Leases, PFI/NPD)
Interest cover

(11,273)
0.71
-61%
0
-0.29

4%

4%

-139
-1%
-4
0.0%

729
0
15

Balance Sheet strength
(11,060)
(10,902)
0.64
0.66
-62%
-59%
0
0
0.19
-0.34

4%

-230
-1%
-95
0.0%

4%

-270
-1%
-135
-0.5%

4%

-413
-2%
-278
-0.7%

-1.4%

729
0
14

638
0
12

507
0
10

233
0
4

(10,744)
0.66
-56%
0
-0.34

(10,677)
0.63
-54%
0
-1.21

(10,650)
0.57
-54%
0
-1.60

(10,766)
0.44
-56%
0
-2.97
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Board of Governors
Minute of Meeting of the Audit Committee held on Thursday 29 November at
9.30am in the Barbour Suite.
Present:

Graham Hope (Chair)
Simon Ashpool
Colin Miller
Norman Ross

In attendance:

Jackie Galbraith (Principal & Chief Executive) to item 18.57
Jennifer McLaren (Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum
Services) to item 18.57
George Hotchkiss (Vice Principal, Curriculum & Planning) to
item 18.57
Simon Earp (Vice Principal, Curriculum & Enterprise) to item
18.57
Ruth Weir (Scott-Moncrieff, Internal Auditors)
Lucy Nutley (Mazars, External Auditors)
Emily Purdie (Health & Safety Officer) item 18.55 only
Karine McNair (Board Secretary)

18.46 Welcome/Apologies
The Chair welcomed Ruth Weir from Scott-Moncrieff.
Apologies were received from Sue Cook.

18.47 Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

18.48 Minute of Meeting of 6 September 2018
The Minute of the meeting of the Audit Committee of 6 September 2018 was
approved as a correct record.

18.49 Matters Arising from Minute of Meeting of 6 September 2018
All other actions were duly completed and noted.
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18.50 External Audit
(i)

Annual Report & Financial Statements 2017-18
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented the Annual
Report & Financial Statements 2017-18 highlighting that they were
prepared in accordance with all regulatory requirements. The
requirements had not significantly changed from 2016-17 however the
Committee noted the addition information relating to Trade Union activity
which is now a reporting requirement for all public bodies and the
information will be published on the College website.
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, highlighted that the
additional £1m of staff costs compared to 2016-17 included some
pension revaluation costs however they mainly related to the impact of
pay harmonisation for lecturing staff.
It was noted that as a result of the good trading position the college had
been able to undertake investment projects in the College and Vice
Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, confirmed that the Fiscal Year
position is monitored to ensure that any surplus forecast at the end of
March is re-invested in the college.
The Committee noted the requirement for the Board to confirm that the
College is a ‘Going Concern’. The External Auditor confirmed that the
definition of ‘Going Concern’ for the purposes of a College is that there is
no indication that the Scottish Funding Council would cease funding in
the 12 months past the point of signing.
The Committee discussed the commentary on page 23 regarding the
malware attack and noted that the Strategic Risk is still classified as
‘very high’ for IT Security. Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services,
confirmed that the commentary outlined steps that were taken at the
time to mitigate against any further attacks but further action needs to be
taken to secure the College against the continuous threat of malware
attacks and this is highlighted in the risk register.
The Committee recommended the Annual Report & Financial
Statements 2017-18 for approval by the Board.
Action 1: Board Secretary

BoG/111218/iShare
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(ii)

Annual Report to the Board of Governors & Auditor General
The External Auditors presented paper 4 commenting that the report
gave an unqualified opinion on all 3 requirements. The External Auditors
were content that the College had a stable financial position and once
any external volatile movements were removed, e.g. pension
revaluations, they were satisfied that the College was operating
sustainably within its funding allocation.
It was noted that the Financial Forecast Return had been resubmitted to
the Scottish Funding Council after a request by the Scottish Funding
Council. Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, commented that
the request had been made after the last Board meeting but that the
resubmission deadline was before the next Board meeting. Governance
procedures had been followed to allow approval of the resubmitted
version by the Finance & General Purposes and the Chair of the Board
used delegated powers to approve the document on behalf of the Board.
The resubmitted Financial Forecast Return would be presented at the
next Board meeting for information.
Action 2: Board Secretary
The External Auditors/Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services,
commented that the resubmission of the Financial Forecast Return had
been requested so that the Scottish Funding Council was able to
produce a consolidated college sector position using the assumptions
contained within the guidance issued with the Financial Forecast Return.
The Committee queried if the resubmitted version was realistic given the
growing young population in West Lothian and the College’s desire for
growth. It was noted that the resubmitted version of the Financial
Forecast Return was one scenario but the College was hopeful for
growth funding.
The Committee recommended the report to the Board for approval.
Action 3: Board Secretary

(iii)

Letter of Representation to Mazars
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented paper 5 which
the Committee were satisfied with. However, the Committee requested
that the wording on page 2 is changed to ‘adequate’.
Action 4: Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services.
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The Committee recommended the Letter of Representation be signed by
the Chair of the Board on behalf of the Board.
Action 5: Board Secretary
18.51 Internal Audit Reports
(i)

Student Support Funds & Educational Maintenance Allowances
(EMA) 2017-18
The Internal Auditor presented paper 6 noting one recommendation.
Regarding that recommendation, Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum
Services, confirmed that the team were in discussion with Capita who
provide the software to request a change to the software which would
prevent any potential redirection of funds.
It was also noted that currently the risk of redirection is low given the
small team who control the information and the likelihood that any
students would alert the team if funds had not been received. However,
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, appreciated that the
current situation was not ideal and would work with Capita to resolve the
software issue as soon as possible.
The Committee noted the report.

(ii)

Review of 2017-18 Credit Return
The Internal Auditor presented paper 7 highlighting that 3% above the
Credit target was an encouraging position. Vice Principal, Finance &
Curriculum Services commented that following the audit, the Credit
position had been adjusted by only 10 Credits compared to 300 Credits
in previous years. The work by the Student Systems Manager in keeping
accurate records was commended by the Committee.
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, confirmed that following
completion of the Internal Auditor’s report, actions 1 and 4 had been
completed. Regarding actions 2 and 3, weekly reports to Centre Heads
had been implemented showing absences and withdrawals from which
Centre Heads were taking action.
The Committee noted the paper.

(iii)

Annual Internal Audit Report 2017-18
The Internal Auditor presented paper 8, commenting that ‘reasonable
assurance’ was the highest possible level of assurance.
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The Committee noted the paper and commented on the positive report.

18.52 College Audit Rolling Action Plan
Vice Principal, Curriculum & Enterprise, commented on paper 9 highlighting
that the Commercial and Corporate Engagement Strategy was drafted and in
the final stages of internal approval. It was confirmed that a number of actions
are already underway and the team are still working towards the 2018-19
targets, which are on track. The Strategy has taken into account many views
from around the College and should therefore be in the final stages to be
finalised in the New Year.
The Committee commented that the Commercial and Corporate Engagement
Strategy should align with any other college strategies. Vice Principal,
Curriculum & Enterprise, confirmed that the other strategies had been taken
into account as well as the Outcome Agreement.
The Committee noted the plan.

18.53 Audit Committee’s Annual Report to the Board of Governors
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented paper 10 noting that
the format is prescribed by the Scottish Funding Council and the content is
very similar to last year.
The Committee approved the report for presentation to the Board.
Action 6: Chair of the Audit Committee

18.54 Strategic Risk Register
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented paper 11
commenting that the majority of risks have been maintained at their original
risk category.
Regarding Risk 4, the Principal undertook to share her email to staff regarding
the potential industrial action ballot with the Board.
Action 7: Principal
Regarding Risk 5, the Principal confirmed that the Finance & General
Purposes Committee had recommended that the Senior Team produce an
ambitious Infrastructure Strategy and encouraged the Senior Team to
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continue to seek funding from the Scottish Funding Council. It was agreed
that the College needed modernisation in all areas of infrastructure to
enhance the student experience. Following feedback from staff and students,
it was clear that the Street Building was the priority area and plans are
underway to consider how best to use the space for the benefit of all staff and
students.
The Committee concurred with the Finance & General Purposes Committee
and encouraged the Senior Team to consider all funding options such as
partnerships with employers and West Lothian Council as well as possible
corporate sponsorship.
Regarding Risk 6, Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, confirmed
that the risk had been raised to ‘very high’ following the late guidance issued
regarding TQFE holders. The guidance had been issued after the Budget for
2018-19 had been agreed and has a significant financial impact on the
College. The Principal and Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services,
have approached the Scottish Funding Council for additional funding to help
with the increased costs as a result of the guidance.
Regarding Risk 8, Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, confirmed
that the risk had been raised to ‘very high’ as a result of issues which had
been identified by Edinburgh Napier University and the need to have a
fundamental upgrade of the College’s IT systems.
The Committee agreed to note the report.

18.55 Health & Safety Quarterly Report
The Health & Safety Officer, presented paper 12 noting that the reported
incidents in the quarter had reduced compared to the prior year. The start of
the academic year was typically when students began showing their medical
conditions and the majority of reported incidents related to a small number of
individuals.
The Committee noted that reported incidents with sharp implements had
reduced. The Health & Safety Officer expanded on the incidents which related
to one student and explained the unique circumstances which had contributed
to the number of reported incidents involving that student. The Committee
were satisfied that safeguards were in place to prevent future incidents and
noted that the Annual Report would be presented at the next meeting.
The Committee thanked the Health & Safety Officer for the report.
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18.56 Key Performance Indicators 2017-18
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented paper 13 and the
Committee noted the improvement in all non-financial KPIs over 3 years.
The Committee noted the paper.

18.57 Review of IT Service
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, presented paper 14
highlighting that after their initial review, Edinburgh Napier University had
presented their conclusion and options for enhancing the IT service. The
College had requested information about the associated costs.
The Principal confirmed that after the initial review, steps had been taken to
ensure that the system was as safe as possible and now the College was
focussing on a strategy to ensure that the IT infrastructure was as robust as
possible and also fit for purpose in the high technology environment in which
students operate.
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum, confirmed that in the unlikely event a
malware attack was to affect the launch of applications, a paper contingency
plan was in place and had been discussed with all Centres.
The Committee encouraged the Senior Team to consider all the IT support
options available including West Lothian Council and private sector providers.
The Committee noted the report.
18.58 Meeting of the Committee without Management
The Management Team left the meeting.
The Internal Auditors confirmed that they had not experienced any issues
working with College staff when compiling their reports.
The External Auditors commented that accounts were not available to them
on the first planned day of the audit. This was unusual for the College team
and could be explained by some late guidance adjustments which had been
issued by Audit Scotland.
The Committee commented that they would monitor whether the Finance
team were compliant with the agreed audit timetable in future years.
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The Committee thanked the Internal and External auditors for their input.

18.59 Any Other Business
There were no items of other business.

18.60 Review of Meeting, Supporting Papers and Training Needs
The Audit Committee requested a visit to see the Engineering and
Construction Centres at the next meeting.
Action 8: Board Secretary
The Audit Committee was content with the meeting and supporting papers

18.61 Date of Next Meeting
The next meeting would take place on Thursday 7 March 2019 at 9.30am.
Note: There were no matters discussed during the meeting, during which Members
declared any conflict of interest, or the Secretary to the Board was aware from the
Register of Interests that discussion could give rise to such a conflict.

Signed

………………………………………………….
Chair, Audit Committee

Date

…………………………………………………
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Board of Governors
Annual Report & Financial Statements for 2017-18
Introduction
The annual financial statements for financial year 2017-18 are attached to this
paper. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) and with Financial
Reporting Standards FRS102. They also comply with the 2017-18
Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by the Scottish
Government.
Financial Results for the year ended 31 July 2018
The College generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of
£939,000 (2017 - deficit of £277,000), with total comprehensive income
surplus of £1,712,000 (2017 – surplus of £2,868,000). The total
comprehensive income in 2017 included an unrealised surplus on revaluation
of assets of £2,221,000. The total comprehensive income in 2018 recorded
an actuarial gain in respect of pension funds of £2,651,000 (2017 – gain of
£924,000). After transfer of £299,000 from the revaluation reserve, the
cumulative deficit on the Income and Expenditure account decreased by
£2,011,000 from £11,273,000 deficit to £9,262,000 deficit.
The cumulative deficit at the year-end comprised £153,000 for holiday pay
accrual, £2,527,000 for voluntary agreed PFI termination loan, £3,688,000 for
early retirement provisions, £2,783,000 for defined benefit pension obligations
and £111,000 for trading activities (see Note 16).
The College is reporting net total liabilities of £3,121,000 in its balance sheet
which is due to the reclassification of deferred Government Grant as deferred
income within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year
and due after more than one year as appropriate.
Key Changes 2017-18
On 13 July 2018, the Scottish Funding Council issued its accounts direction
for Scotland’s colleges for the 2017-18 year, along with supporting guidance.
There have been no significant changes in the accounting requirements for
2017-18, however there are a number of additional disclosure changes.
The key changes are:
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• additional guidance for the disclosure of the adjusted operating position
(taking the SORP position and removing non-cash adjustments) to ensure
consistency across the sector;
• inclusion of details of the adjusted operating position in the Performance
Report, so as to provide a better indication of the college’s operational cash
generative capacity;
• inclusion of non-financial information including social matters, respect for
human rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters;
• additional disclosures in the Remuneration and Staff Report, including
diversity issues and equal opportunity in employment;
• inclusion of time and cost information in respect of relevant Trade Union
officials in accordance with the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication
Requirements) Regulations 2017; and
• the Governance Statement must now include a statement of compliance with
the 2016 Code of Good Governance for Scottish Colleges, or provide an
explanation for any non-compliance. The Governance Statement must also
include details of any significant lapses of data security (or confirm that there
were none).
Action
The Board of Governors is asked to recommend approval of the annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2018.

Jennifer McLaren
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Support
11 December 2018
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The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue on 11 December 2018
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PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2018
Purpose and Activities
1

Purpose

The Performance analysis provides a detailed performance summary and analysis of how West
Lothian College measures its performance.
2

Performance and Overview

West Lothian College is a regional college based in Livingston serving individuals, communities
and the regional economy. West Lothian has the youngest and fastest growing population in
Scotland, and its population of approximately 180,000 is projected to increase by 11,000 by
2035.
The college provides a wide range of further and higher education courses to meet government
priorities on Developing the Young Workforce (DYW), address the skills needs of employers to
support inclusive economic growth, and widen access to education for all people in West
Lothian’s communities.
The college’s performance in achieving the activity targets agreed with the Scottish Funding
Council (SFC) has been strong, exceeding credit targets for eight consecutive years. This has
been matched with equally positive financial outcomes, supported by a strong commercial and
work based qualifications portfolio.
3

Legal Status

West Lothian College is a free standing corporate body under the provisions of the Further and
Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended by the Further & Higher Education (Scotland)
Act 2005 and subsequently the Post-16 Education (Scotland) Act 2013. The college is governed
by a Board of Governors and receives the majority of its funding directly from the Scottish
Funding Council (SFC). The college is listed on the Scottish Charity Register and is entitled, in
accordance with section 13(1) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, to
refer to itself as a charity registered in Scotland.
4

Vision

The college’s vision is to develop a highly skilled and enterprising workforce of the future. This
vision is underpinned by values of being welcoming to all, learner centred, and committed to
excellence.
5

Learner profile

A total of 8,099 students attended college in 2017-18, 28% on full time courses and 72% on part
time courses.
Just over half (51%) of full time students were aged 16-19 and 17% were 20-24. This was
markedly different for part time students, 68% of whom were over the age of 25 reflecting the
large volume of Scottish Vocational Qualifications (SVQs) delivered to employees in their place
of work. Seventy per cent of full time Further Education (FE) and Higher Education (HE)
students were under the age of 25, while 57% of FE part time and 85% of HE part time students
were over the age of 25.
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Overall, 62% of students were female, largely reflecting the high volume of SVQs in health,
social and childcare. There was a better balance of female/male students studying full time
qualifications, with 53% of full time HE students being female and 47% male. However, FE full
time courses were more imbalanced, with 58% female students and 42% male.
6

Curriculum planning

Curriculum planning for the region is informed by local and national priorities, by local partners
and by the labour market information provided in publications such as the Regional Skills
Assessment for West Lothian.
The college’s partnership approach ensures that the ambitions set out in our Outcome
Agreement align with the West Lothian Community Planning Partnership’s Local Outcome
Improvement Plan. The college is also a partner in the Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Region Deal, and seeks to maximise skills and employment opportunities for our students and
the people of West Lothian.
Collaborative working with schools, employers and other partners enables the college to develop
a curriculum portfolio that is relevant to industry and provides our students with the best possible
opportunities in a competitive jobs market. In addition, the college’s well-established international
partnerships offer students and staff exciting opportunities to enhance their learning through
educational exchanges.
The college offers a wide range of courses at FE and HE level, delivered in a variety of ways, in
areas relevant to economic and social inclusion. Subjects and industry sectors covered include
early years and childcare, engineering, construction, health and social care, business and
financial services, computing, creative industries, hospitality and tourism, hair and beauty, and
sport and fitness.
7

College/School Partnership

The college works in close collaboration with West Lothian Council and in partnership with all
secondary schools in the region. In 2017-18, the college’s schools portfolio consisted of 30
courses which attracted over 470 senior phase school pupils to vocational courses, Highers, and
Foundation Apprenticeships.
The college is a member of West Lothian’s Developing Young Workforce Steering Board which
has a remit is to plan, co-ordinate and monitor partners working together to ensure a joined-up
approach to providing vocational training opportunities for young people in West Lothian.
8

Economic context

According to the 2018 Regional Skills Assessment for West Lothian, there will be 33,500 job
openings from 2018-28. Of these, most will meet replacement demand to fill jobs by people
retiring from or leaving the workforce, however 3,600 job openings will be as a result of
expansion demand.
Employment growth is predicted each year over the next ten years in West Lothian. The
employment structure over the next ten years is predicted to be for 44% higher level
occupations, 22% for mid-level occupations and 34% for lower level occupations. The level of
skills required of employees match this employment structure, with a growing number of job
openings requiring people with qualifications at Scottish Credit and Qualifications Framework
(SCQF) level 7 and above. This is a challenge for the region which, compared to the Scotland
average, has considerably fewer people of working age with qualifications at this level.
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Although West Lothian has a lower proportion of youth and all-age unemployment than Scotland,
approximately 9,000 people (5% of the population) live in some of the most deprived areas in
Scotland and experience multiple deprivation.
9

Stakeholder Relationships

The college invests significantly in working with stakeholders to maximise opportunities for our
students, and is involved at both a strategic and operational level in the Developing Young
Workforce Regional Employer Group, the West Lothian Chamber of Commerce and West
Lothian’s Community Planning Partnership.
10

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

During 2017-2018, the college was successful in the management of all high level, financial,
reputational and operational risks. The college has continued to utilise shared services provided
by West Lothian Council and managed the associated risks and uncertainties.
Although the terms and conditions of lecturing staff and the pay award for support staff were
agreed in 2017-18, the financial risk of the impact of National Bargaining remained high with the
potential for industrial action in 2018-19. Looking ahead, there is a significant financial risk to the
college from 2020 if the total costs of national pay bargaining harmonisation and job evaluation
are not funded fully by the SFC.
During 2017-18, the college experienced a malware attack which resulted in limited access to IT
and systems for staff and students over a six-week period.
The strategic risk register is led by the Senior Team with regular monitoring and reporting to the
Board of Governors through the Audit Committee.
11

Going Concern

The Board of Governors has considered the college’s forecasts and financial projections and
considers that the college has adequate resources to meet its ongoing liabilities and continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Although the college has net liabilities, this is due to the change of treatment of deferred
Government Grant (capital) which is now recognised as deferred income within creditors and
allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year as
appropriate.
12

Performance Summary

Improving retention and attainment, particularly on FE full time courses, was a priority for the
college in 2017-18. The college-wide focus on improving FE full time attainment over the year
led to an increase of 3.2%.
West Lothian College

FE full time
HE full time
FE part time
HE part time

2015-16
(SFC
figures)
64.1%
66.3%
70.6%
65.5%

2016-17
(SFC
figures)
61.9%
72.5%
77.7%
74.6%

2017-18
(College
figures)
65.1%
70.1%
77.5%
80.6%

Change
on year
+3.2%
-2.4%
-0.2%
+6.0%

Change
over 3
years
+1.0%
+3.8%
+6.9%
+15.1%
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There was improvement over three years in all four indicators – FE full time, HE full time, FE part
time and HE part time. While there has been good improvement in HE full time over three years
(up by 3.8%) there was a decline over the year of -2.4%. Success for part time FE and HE
students increased over the year, despite significant increases in the volume of students - from
2,657 to 2,900 FE part time enrolments, and from 781 to 1,212 HE part time enrolments. FE part
time success improved by 6.9% over three years and HE part time success increased by 15.1%
over three years.
13

Performance Analysis

Of all students, 41% were aged 16-24 and had an overall success rate of 70%, an increase of
3% on the previous year. Successful outcomes for full time FE students aged 16-19 rose from
54% to 72% over the year. In 2017-18, the college had a focus on improving the success of
young male students and successful outcomes for FE full time 16-19 year old male students
increased by 9% over the year.
There were 62 declared care experienced students enrolled in 2017-18. Successful outcomes
for this group of students were 80% for FE full time and 66% for HE full time (just 3 students
were enrolled on HE full time courses). Given that the SFC National Ambition targets for care
experienced students by 2018-19 are 66% success for FE full time and 71% success for HE full
time, the college is making good progress on successful outcomes for this group of students.
The college delivered 8.1% of credits to students living in SIMD10 areas, exceeding our target of
6%. Successful outcomes for these students were considerably higher than the college average
for FE full time, FE part time and HE part time. Most SIMD10 students were enrolled on FT full
time courses and 80% achieved success, significantly higher than the college average of 65.1%.
Success on HE full time courses, which had the smallest number of enrolments from SIMD10
students, was 66%.
Flexible modes of study supported the vibrant West Lothian English for Speakers of Other
Languages (ESOL) community and 330 students enrolled on ESOL courses in 2017-18 with a
success rate of 74%.
14

Resources

While the College is in receipt of recurrent grant funding from the SFC, it also generates income
through Skills Development Scotland (SDS) educational contracts, by delivering a wide range of
commercial courses in professional qualifications in management and specialist subjects, as well
as providing a large portfolio of SVQs which are delivered in the workplace and the out of core
time letting of College facilities and accommodation. The college was successful in 2018 in being
awarded for a second three-year period a contract to provide training for all Panel members
working within the Children’s Hearings system. This is delivered by a dedicated team of staff
located throughout Scotland.
During this year the college worked very effectively with SDS and in partnership with West
Lothian Council to extend the range of foundation apprentices available to young people,
recruiting to five Foundation Apprenticeship frameworks and achieving high levels of both
retention and successful completion.
Facilitated by the college’s commercial activities, we were able to invest in new learning facilities,
including a Health Care Teaching Suite, a Digital Production Studio and a Collaborative learning
space.
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15

Key Performance Indicators

The college’s management and control ensure financial stability is sound. There are clear
management structures and reporting arrangements in place, with operating plans, performance
indicators and risk management processes in place to support delivery of Regional Outcomes.
To monitor progress against the Outcome Agreement the College works with a range of key
performance indicators, which are reviewed by the Senior Team and the Board of Governors on
a regular basis.
The tables below detail performance in Academic Years 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18
Credits

2015-16
2016-17
2017-18

SFC Target
43,499
43,499
43,988

Actual
44,669
44,085
45,326

% Target
103%
101%
103%

Withdrawal

Partial
Success
9.4%
11.7%
9.9%

Completed
successfully
64.1%
61.9%
65.1%

Partial
Success
17.1%
11.3%
12.6%

Completed
successfully
66.3%
72.5%
70.1%

Full-time FE

2015-16
2016-17
2017-18

26.4%
26.4%
25.0%

Full-time HE
Withdrawal
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18

16.6%
16.2%
17.3%

Part time FE

2015-16
2016-17
2017-18

Withdrawal

Partial Success

5.8%
8.9%
7.4%

23.6%
13.4%
15.1%

Withdrawal

Partial Success

6.6%
9.3%
11.2%

27.8%
16.1%
8.2%

Completed
successfully
70.6%
77.7%
77.5%

Part time HE

2015-16
2016-17
2017-18

Completed
successfully
65.5%
74.6%
80.6%
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The table below details financial performance in Financial Periods 2015-16, 2016-17 and 201718
Actual
2015-16

Actual
2016-17

Actual
2017-18

Deficit for the year as a % of total
income

(3.8%)

(1.7%)*

(5.3%)**

Deficit for the year as a % of total
expenditure

(3.6%)

(1.6%)*

(5.3%)

Staff costs as % of total income
(excludes exceptional costs)

67%

65%*

67%

Ratio of Current Assets to Current
Liabilities

(0.5)

(0.7)

(0.7)

14
33

35*
30

15
30

Days Cash to Total Expenditure
Debtor Days

*Excludes £1.9m deferred capital grant release as a result of an impairment loss
following interim revaluation of assets
**See Statement of Comprehensive Income (page 34)
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16

Financial Strategy

As a result of the college sector’s reclassification as a Central Government Department, the
college’s Financial Strategy is to:
•

Generate sufficient cash surplus to meet the SFC loan repayment obligations.

•

Gift aid any cash surpluses over and above that required to repay the SFC loan to The
Scottish Colleges Foundation.

•

Utilise the contribution from commercial and project activities for re-investment in the
College infrastructure.

•

Secure efficiencies across support and curriculum areas through continued delivery of
shared services and joint provision with West Lothian Council.

•

Ensure sufficient working capital to meet liabilities.

During 2017-18 the College:
•

Generated sufficient cash surplus to meet the SFC loan repayment obligations.

•

Utilised the contribution from commercial activities for re-investment in the College
infrastructure.

•

Secured efficiencies through continued delivery of shared services with West Lothian
Council.

•

Ensured sufficient working capital to meet liabilities.

17

Nature, Objectives and Strategies

The Board present its report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July
2018. The Board of Governors has approved these accounts on the basis the College is a going
concern. The audited financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost
convention in line with the principles and guidance set out in the Statement of Recommended
Practice, Accounting for Further and Higher Education (FE/HE, SORP) and with the Government
Financial Reporting Manual (FReM).
18

Scope of the Financial Statements

The Financial Statements cover all activities of the College.
19

Financial Position

Financial Results for the year ended 31 July 2018
The College generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of £939,000 (2017 deficit of £277,000), with total comprehensive income surplus of £1,712,000 (2017 – surplus of
£2,868,000). The total comprehensive income in 2017 included an unrealised surplus on
revaluation of assets of £2,221,000. The total comprehensive income in 2018 recorded an
actuarial gain in respect of pension funds of £2,651,000 (2017 – gain of £924,000). After
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transfer of £299,000 from the revaluation reserve, the cumulative deficit on the Income and
Expenditure account decreased by £2,011,000 from £11,273,000 deficit to £9,262,000 deficit.
The cumulative deficit at the year-end comprised £153,000 for holiday pay accrual, £2,527,000
for voluntary agreed Private Finance Initiative (PFI) termination loan, £3,688,000 for early
retirement provisions, £2,783,000 for defined benefit pension obligations and £111,000 for
trading activities (see Note 16).
The College is reporting net total liabilities of £3,121,000 in its balance sheet which is due to the
reclassification of deferred Government Grant as deferred income within creditors and allocated
between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year as appropriate.
Cash Budget for Priorities
Following their reclassification as central government bodies from 1 April 2014, colleges are now
also required to comply with Central Government budgeting rules. In addressing the impact of
these budgeting rules, Scottish Government and SFC committed to providing the cash budget
previously earmarked for depreciation for use on specified priorities.
Colleges have now each been given a fixed cash budget for priorities which must be spent on
agreed government priorities as outlined in the table below. Spend of the College’s cash budget
for priorities, and impact on the operating position for the academic year, is detailed below.

Table of cash budget for priorities (CBP) spend

Revenue

Year Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

2016-17 Pay Award

-

33

Total impact on operating position

-

33

Loan repayments

158

158

Early retirement provision payments

32

-

Total Capital

190

158

Total cash budget for priorities spend

190

191

Capital

The SFC has confirmed that a deficit resulting from the College following its guidance should be
treated as a ‘technical’ deficit and should not be interpreted, on its own, as a challenge to the
College’s ongoing financial sustainability. Audit Scotland accepts that a deficit arising from the
use of cash funding originally provided for non-cash depreciation does not indicate an underlying
financial sustainability concern.
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Adjusted Operating Position
The Statement of Comprehensive Income (SOCI) presents the financial performance during the
accounting period in accordance with the FE/HE SORP. The adjusted operating position is
intended to reflect the financial performance of the college after allowing for non-cash
adjustments and other material one-off or distorting items required by the FE/HE SORP. The
adjusted operating position is therefore designed to smooth any volatility in reported results
arising from Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102 and also to recognise that some of the
reported costs do not have an immediate cash impact on the college. This should give a better
indication of the College’s cash generative capacity.
2017-18
£’000

2016-17
(Restated)
£’000

(939)

(277)

1
2

343
848

199
645

3
4
4

158
32
63

158
107

(1)

302

Note
Deficit before other gains and losses
(FE/HE SORP basis)
Add back:
- Depreciation (net of deferred capital grant)
- Non-cash pension adjustments for the Lothian
Pension Fund
Deduct:
- CBP allocated to loan repayments
- CBP allocated to Early Retirement payments
- Balance of payments to Early Retirement
Provision (ERP)
Adjusted operating (deficit) / surplus

Note 1: Depreciation is a non-cash item and is therefore excluded when calculating the
adjusted cash operating position.
Note 2: The adjustments to the pensions charge represent the non-cash element of service cost
(ie including the present value of projected benefits resulting from the employee service in the
current year) less cash contributions paid.
Note 3: CBP is included in income but the loan repayment is not reflected in the costs therefore
this amount is adjusted.
Note 4: Cash payments in respect of the ERP are higher than the related interest charge
included in costs. The balance of the amount paid is therefore adjusted with part of this being
allocated against CBP.
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Taxation Status
The College is registered with the Office of the Scottish Charities Regulator as a Scottish Charity
and is exempt from corporation tax and capital gains tax. The College receives no similar
exemption in respect of Value Added Tax.
Cash Flows
Cash flow projections are prepared annually, broken down on a monthly basis to ensure that
these are sufficient to meet the needs of the College. These are reviewed monthly and reports
are provided to the Senior Team and the Finance and General Purposes Committee. Bank
balances are checked on a daily basis and day-to day surplus funds are deposited overnight in a
high interest bank account.
Liquidity
The College uses a number of ratios to assess the College’s liquidity. The two key ratios are
current assets: current liabilities and days cash to total expenditure. However as a result of
Office for National Statistics (ONS) reclassification the College is only able to hold minimum
cash reserves. At the end of 2017-18 current assets: current liabilities were 0.6 and days cash
to total expenditure was 15 days reflecting the ONS requirement. Targets for 2018-19 are 14
days cash to total expenditure and current assets: current liabilities 0.7.
Creditor Payment Policy
The College complies with the Confederation of British Industry (CBI) Prompt Payment Code
and has a policy of paying its suppliers within 30 days of invoice unless the invoice is contested.
All disputes and complaints are handled as quickly as possible. The proportion of year-end
creditors to the aggregate invoiced amounts during the year was 8%. The College did not pay
any late interest payments during the year.
The Scottish Public Finance Manual sets a Government target for the payment of invoices within
10 working days of their receipt. While this is a difficult target for the College to achieve, it
nevertheless strives to pay all invoices as promptly as possible.
20

Post-Balance Sheet Events

There are no post-balance sheet events.
21

Review of Resource outturn for year ended 31 March 2018

Following the reclassification of colleges as public bodies on 1 April 2014, the College has been
required to comply with government accounting and budgeting rules on a fiscal year basis (ie to
the end of March). The college is given a revenue resource budget (RDEL) and a capital
resource budget (CDEL) and must account for this budget on a fiscal year basis. The resource
budgets and final outturn for 2017-18 (1 April 2017-31 March 2018) are outlined below:

Resource budget for year ended 31 March 2018
Expenditure against resource budget
Net (overspend) / underspend/ against budget

RDEL
£’000

CDEL
£’000

13,707
13,786
(79)

653
653
-
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In addition, the college received a non-cash budget from the government to cover depreciation
costs. It should be noted that the figures in the table above have not been audited.
22

Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009

The College complied with the Scottish Government sustainability reporting in line with the
requirements of the Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009. During 2017-18 the College
participated in the College Energy Efficiency Pathfinder (CEEP) project and undertook a
programme of works which is expected to save 17 tonnes of carbon carbon per annum
23

Human Rights, Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery

West Lothian College is committed to upholding human rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
within West Lothian College and through the supply chain.
24

Future Performance

The College’s Curriculum Strategy identifies key target groups by committing to:
•

implementing the Developing the Young Workforce agenda through increasing the number
of Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM)-focused Foundation and
Modern Apprenticeships.

•

maintaining and extending employer partnerships that inform portfolio planning and course
design to better equip learners with essential knowledge and employability skills through
contextualised learning, real training and work experience opportunities.

•

improving life chances by increasing the volume of learners in the most deprived 10%
postcode areas in West Lothian.

•

increasing the number of Associate Student places and developing further articulation
routes that enable credit transfer for Higher National Certificates (HNCs) and Higher
National Diplomas (HNDs) for advanced standing into years 2 or 3 of university degrees.

•

increasing the volume and successful completion of courses for care experienced learners
by promoting opportunities and raising aspirations and successful outcomes to potential
students.

•

working with West Lothian Community Planning Partnership, support increasing numbers of
unemployed people at stages 2, 3 and 4 of the strategic skills pipeline to develop
employability skills to enable them to get a job and/or train for a career.

•

engaging with Equalities groups, including the Equality Challenge Unit and EQUATE to
improve gender balance and ensure appropriate support for the participation of groups
currently experiencing inequalities in vocational education including specifically disabled
people, young people who are care experienced, people from black and ethnic minorities
and others with additional support needs.

•

supporting upskilling of the working population of West Lothian through provision of work
based learning and through an accessible, vocationally relevant part-time portfolio.
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•

providing high quality English language provision for ESOL learners to enable participation
and integration in Scottish life.

The Performance Report is approved by the Principal on 11 December 2018.

Jackie Galbraith
Principal
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
1. Board of Governors Report
The members who served on the Board during the period were as follows:Name
Alex Linkston

Status
Regional Chair

Job Title
Chair, Forth Valley Health Board

Simon Ashpool

Board member

Learning Manager, Crisis UK

Thomas Bates
(appointed 23.08.17)

Board member

Director, Lareine Engineering Ltd.

Sue Cook

Self-employed consultant

Frank Gribben

Chair, Learning and
Teaching Committee;
Vice Chair
Board member

Graham Hope

Chair, Audit Committee

Chief Executive, West Lothian Council

Mhairi Harrington*

Board member

Iain McIntosh

Board member

Morag McKelvie

Colin Miller

Chair, Finance and
General Purposes
Committee
Board member

Principal and Chief Executive, West Lothian
College
Leadership Consultant, Edinburgh Napier
University
Vice President Human Resources, iQor

Richard Lockhart

Board member

Associate Director, Scottish Futures Trust

Moira Niven

Board member

Retired

Claire Probert
(appointed 23.08.17)

Board member

Associate Director, Grant Thornton LLP

Norman Ross

Board member

Retired; director Kilmorack Consulting Ltd

Angela Bell

Board member

Support Staff member

Alan Morton

Board member

Teaching Staff member

Sarah Kerr*
(resigned 31.03.18)

Board member

Student Association President.

Lorna Reid*

Board member

Student Association Vice President

Strategic Project Director, University of Glasgow

Partner, DWF solicitors

*Post holders have changed post year-end.
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Board of Governors
Name
Alex Linkston

Possible Attendance
4

Actual Attendance
4

Simon Ashpool

4

3

Thomas Bates

4

2

Sue Cook

4

3

Frank Gribben

4

1

Mhairi Harrington

4

4

Graham Hope

4

4

Richard Lockhart

4

3

Iain McIntosh

4

3

Morag McKelvie

4

4

Colin Miller

4

3

Moira Niven

4

4

Claire Probert

3

2

Norman Ross

4

3

Angela Bell

4

2

Alan Morton

4

4

Sarah Kerr

3

2

Lorna Reid

4

2

Possible Attendance

Actual Attendance

Graham Hope (Chair)

4

4

Simon Ashpool

4

4

Sue Cook

4

4

Colin Millar

3

3

Norman Ross

4

3

Audit Committee
Name
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Finance and General Purposes Committee
Name

Possible Attendance

Actual Attendance

Morag McKelvie (Chair)

4

4

Frank Gribben

4

3

Alex Linkston

4

4

Richard Lockhart

4

4

Claire Probert

3

2

Moira Niven

4

4

Mhairi Harrington

4

4

Angela Bell

4

2

Possible Attendance

Actual Attendance

Sue Cook (Chair)

4

4

Thomas Bates

3

3

Mhairi Harrington

4

3

Iain McIntosh

4

2

Colin Miller

1

1

Alan Morton

3

3

Sarah Kerr

3

2

Lorna Reid

4

4

Possible Attendance

Actual Attendance

Alex Linkston

3

3

Sue Cook

3

2

Graham Hope

3

3

Morag McKelvie

3

3

Learning and Teaching Committee
Name

Remuneration Committee
Name

Related Party Transactions
Due to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of its Board of Governors
(being drawn from local public and private sector organisations), it is inevitable that transactions
will take place with organisations in which a member of the College’s Board of Governors may
have an interest, and will be recorded as such in the Minutes of the Meetings and/or the Register
of Interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a member of the Board of Governors
may have a material interest are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with normal
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project and procurement procedures. The related party transactions due to/by the College for the
year ended 31 July 2018 and the amounts outstanding at this date are disclosed in note 24.
Statement to Auditors
In accordance with legislation, the Board of Governors certify that:
 so far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors
are unaware; and
 as members of the Board of Governors we have taken all the steps that we ought to have
taken in order to make ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the College’s auditors are aware of that information.
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1.

Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board of Governors

The Board of Governors are required to present audited financial statements for each financial
year.
In accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended by the
Further & Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently by the Post-16 Education
(Scotland) Act 2013, the Board of Governors is responsible for the administration and
management of the College’s affairs, including ensuring an effective system of internal control,
and is required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.
The Board of Governors is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose,
with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the College and enable it to
ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher
Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended by the Further & Higher Education (Scotland) Act
2005 and subsequently amended by the Post-16 Education (Scotland) Act 2013, the 2015
Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher Education, the
Government Financial Reporting Manual 2017-18 (FReM) where applicable and other relevant
accounting standards. In addition, within the terms and conditions of a Financial Memorandum
agreed between the Scottish Funding Council and the College’s Board of Governors, the Board
of Governors, through its designated office holder, is required to prepare financial statements for
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the College’s state of affairs and of the
surplus or deficit and cash flows for that year.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounts Direction issued by the
Scottish Funding Council which brings together the provisions of the Financial Memorandum
with other formal disclosures that the Scottish Funding council require the Board of Governors to
make in the financial statements and related notes.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors is required to:
•

Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

•

Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•

State whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

•

Prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the College will continue in operation. The Board of Governors is satisfied
that it has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and for
this reason the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements.

The Board of Governors has taken reasonable steps to:
•

Ensure that funds from the Scottish Funding Council are used only for the purposes for
which they have been given and in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the
Funding Council and any other conditions which the Funding Council may from time to
time prescribe;

•

Ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard
public funds and funds from other sources;
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•

Safeguard the assets of the College and prevent and detect fraud;

•

Secure the economical, efficient and effective management of the College’s resources and
expenditure.

The key elements of the College’s system of internal financial control, which is designed to
discharge the responsibilities set out above, include the following:
•

Clear definitions of the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of
academic and support departments;

•

A comprehensive medium and short-term planning process, supplemented by detailed
annual income, expenditure, capital and cash flow budgets;

•

Regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and quarterly reviews of
financial results involving variance reporting and updates of forecast outturns;

•

Clearly defined and formalised requirements for approval and control of expenditure, with
investment decisions involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to formal
detailed appraisal and review according to approval levels set by the Board of Governors;

•

Comprehensive Financial Regulations, detailing financial controls and procedures,
approved by the Audit Committee and the Finance and General Purposes Committee;

•

Professional internal audit team whose annual programme is approved by the Audit
Committee and endorsed by the Board of Governors and whose head provides the Board
of Governors with a report on internal audit activity within the College and an opinion on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s system of internal control, including
internal financial control.

Any system of internal financial control can, however, only provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Estates Strategy
The College Estates Strategy is evidence based and allows the College to continue with its
programme of aligning its estate to the emerging needs of learners and curriculum delivery
requirements going forward. The strategy allows for replacement of windows and window frames
and boilers as well as implementing the agreed programme of lifecycle maintenance so that the
fabric of the college buildings remain of a high standard.
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2.

Corporate Governance Statement

The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance. This
summary describes the manner in which the College has applied the principles of good
governance set out in 2016 Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the
Government’s Scottish Public Finance Manual. Throughout the period ended 31 July 2018, the
College has been in compliance with all the Code provisions set out in the 2016 Code of Good
Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s Scottish Public Finance Manual.
The College’s Board of Governors is responsible for the College’s system of internal control and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Board of Governors is of the view that there is a process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the College’s significant risks, that it has been in place for the year ended 31 July
2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements, that it is
regularly reviewed by the Board of Governors and that it accords with the 2016 Code of Good
Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s Scottish Public Finance Manual.
During 2017-18 the College suffered a malware attack. Immediate action was taken to minimize
the impact of the attack and specific measures such as strengthening the College’s anti-virus
software and tightening controls around guest Wi-Fi access were taken to mitigate against future
attacks.
The College’s Board of Governors comprises lay members, students and employees appointed
under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, as amended by the Further &
Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently by the Post-16 Education (Scotland)
Act 2013, the majority of whom are non-executive. The roles of Chairman and Vice-Chairman of
the Board of Governors are separated from the role of the College’s Principal.
The matters specifically reserved to the Board for decision are set out in the College’s Standing
Orders, by custom and under the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish Funding Council. The
Board acknowledges the responsibility for the ongoing strategic direction of the College,
approval of major developments and the receipt of regular reports from the Principal on the day
to day operations of its business.
The Full Board meets four times a year. In addition it holds an annual strategic meeting which is
dedicated to discussing the College’s strategic development. There are several sub-committees,
including a Finance and General Purposes Committee, a Learning and Teaching Committee, a
Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and a Nominations Committee. All of these
Committees are formally constituted with terms of reference. The Finance and General
Purposes Committee inter alia recommends to the Board the College’s annual revenue and
capital budgets and normally meets four times a year. The Learning and Teaching Committee
meets four times a year, and focuses on the quality of the student experience.
The
Remuneration Committee determines the remuneration of the most senior staff, including the
Principal and meets as required, normally once a year.
The Audit Committee meets four times a year, with the College’s external and internal auditors in
attendance where required.
The Committee considers detailed reports together with
recommendations for the improvement of the College’s systems of internal control and
management’s responses and implementation plans. It also receives and considers reports from
the Scottish Funding Council as they affect the College’s business and monitors adherence to
the regulatory requirements. Whilst the Principal attends meetings of the Audit Committee as
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necessary, she is not a member of the Committee. The Nominations Committee considers
candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and meets as required, normally at least once per year.
The Nominations Committee is responsible for selecting candidates for appointment by the
Board of Governors to vacancies in its membership. The Committee may use a number of
selection methods, including external advertising, personal contact, the encouragement of
nominations and the use of a search committee. The Committee considers the balance of
membership, including members’ experience and skills and identify any gaps. The Committee
also tries to ensure that the membership of the Board reflects its community. The Committee
makes its recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval for appointment.
The Board, and its sub-committees, participate in annual self-evaluation reviews of its
performance. This is facilitated by the Secretary to the Board using a self-evaluation
questionnaire with all questions being discussed by the Board or Committee as a group and their
consensus view recorded. Any actions for improvement are noted and followed up at
subsequent meetings of the Board or Committees. The evaluation of the effectiveness of
individual members is considered informally by the Chair of the Board or relevant Committee,
and if concerns are noted they follow these up with the member directly.
The Performance Report is approved by the new Principal. The previous Principal, Mhairi
Harrington, left the College on 3 August 2018 and the new Principal, Jackie Galbraith, took up
post on 6 August 2018. The new Principal has received full assurances over the Governance
arrangements in place at the College from the Senior Team for the year ended 31 July 2018.
The Board of Governors considers that the College has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Statement on System of Internal Control
We, the Board of Governors are aware of the need for effective internal control, and
acknowledge our responsibility for the system for such control operated by West Lothian
College. The system can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are
safeguarded, transactions authorised and properly recorded, and that material errors or
irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period.
Our review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is conducted through the work of
the Board of Governors, the Finance and General Purposes Committee and the Audit
Committee. West Lothian College also has an internal audit service, the work of which
concentrates on areas of key activities determined in accordance with the annual internal audit
plan approved by the Board of Governors. The internal auditors report to the Audit Committee,
and have direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee if required. The internal auditors
issue an annual report that gives an opinion of the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness of the
College’s internal control system.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the College’s system of internal control as follows:
•

•

The College’s risk management framework has been reviewed, including considering
management’s review of operational risks and the Audit Committee’s review of strategic
risks. This review has included considering whether risks are appropriately ranked based
on likelihood and impact and considering whether mitigating controls highlighted as being in
place are adequate.
Reports by management have been received and reviewed by the Board and Board
Committees which have provided information as to how risks are being managed and what
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•
•

internal controls are in place. The Board committees in place and their main roles are
outlined on pages 17-22.
Internal audit reports have been received on a range of areas within the College. The
internal auditors in their annual statement have concluded that the College operates
adequate and effective internal control systems.
External auditors have reviewed the key financial controls to the extent required, to ensure
the College’s financial statements are not materially misstated. The external auditors have
not identified any weaknesses in key controls and the wider scope work has identified
appropriate Governance procedures and management has adequate arrangements in place
covering standards of conduct.

The College also has a range of internal financial controls which include:
•
•
•
•

a budgeting system with an annual budget which is approved by the Board of Governors;
the provision of management information on a planned, regular basis and as required;
regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of monthly and annual
financial reports and key performance indicators which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts;
financial regulations, which identify policy and set up a control system within which
management can delegate authority whilst informing staff of correct financial procedures.

Going Concern
The Board of Governors has considered the college’s forecasts and financial projections and
considers that the college has adequate resources to meet its ongoing liabilities and continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Although the college has net liabilities, this is due to the change of treatment of deferred
Government Grant (capital) which is now recognised as deferred income within creditors and
allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year as
appropriate.

In conclusion, it is the opinion of the Board of Governors that the College complies with all the
provisions of the 2016 Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Scottish
Public Finance Manual and it has complied throughout the year to 31 July 2018.
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1.

Remuneration And Staff Report (FReM, Section 5, paras 5.3.15 to 5.3.27)

Remuneration Policy
The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board of Governors on the
service arrangements and remuneration of the Principal and determines the service
arrangements and remuneration of the other senior post holders.
Remuneration including salary and pension entitlements
Salary Entitlements 1
The following table provides detail of the remuneration and pension interests of senior
management.
12 months ended 31 July 2018
Actual
Pension
Salary
Benefit
Total
£’000
£’000
£’000

Name
Alex Linkston

12 months ended 31 July 2017
Actual
Pension
Total
Salary
Benefit
£’000
£’000
£’000

20-25

0

20-25

20 - 25

0

20 - 25

110 - 115

0

110-115

105 - 110

10-15

115-120

Simon Earp

65 - 70

5-10

70-75

20 - 25

0-5

20-25

George Hotchkiss

65 - 70

5-10

70-75

65 - 70

5-10

70-75

Jennifer McLaren

65 - 70

5-10

70-75

65 - 70

5-10

70-75

Mhairi Harrington*

*Mhairi Harrington left the pension scheme at the end of 2016-17 and left the College on 3
August 2018
Median Remuneration
Colleges are required by the FReM to disclose the relationships between the remuneration of
the highest paid official and the median remuneration of their workforce.
Based on the 12 month equivalent figures above, the banded remuneration of the highest paid
official in the organisation in the financial year 2017-18 was £110,000-£115,000 (2016-17
£110,000-£115,000). This was 3.7 times (2016-17 3.7 times (no change)) the median
remuneration of the workforce which was £30,000-£35,000 (2016-17 £30,000-£35,000 (no
change)).

1

Note:
a)
b)

c)

The salaries in the above table represent the amount earned in the financial year
The value of pension benefits is calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20 plus the real increase in any
lump sum less the contributions made by the individual. The x20 multiplier aims to bring public bodies in line with other
industries in disclosing an assessed cumulative pension benefit for a standard 20 year period which is the estimated life
span following retirement.
The details in this table are subject to audit
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Accrued Pension Benefits
Pension benefits for employees are provided through the Scottish Teacher’s Superannuation
Scheme (STSS), a defined benefit scheme, which is notionally funded and the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).
Both STSS and LGPS are career average salary pension schemes.
The scheme’s normal retirement age is the scheme member’s state pension age.
Contribution rates are set annually for all employees.
There is no automatic entitlement to a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute)
pension for lump sum up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004. The accrual rate guarantees a
pension based on final pensionable salary and years of pensionable service.
Senior Officials Pension
Pension benefits are provided to senior officials on the same basis as all other staff. The accrued
pension benefits for senior officials are set out in the table below, together with the pension
contributions made by the College.
Name

Accrued
pension at
pension age at
31 July 2018
£’000

Accrued lump
sum at pension
age at 31 July
2018
£’000

Real increase
in pension
1 August 2017
to 31 July 2018
£’000

Real increase
in lump sum
1 August 2017
to 31 July 2018
£’000

Mhairi Harrington-Principal

43

128

1

3

Simon Earp – Vice Principal

12

12

N/A

George Hotchkiss- Vice
Principal
Jennifer McLaren- Vice
Principal

20

60

<2 years’
service, no
pension
entitlement
1

10

0

3

0

CETV at 31
July 2018
£’000

CETV at 31
July 2017
£’000

Real increase
in CETV
£’000

1,000

955

14

16

5

11

George Hotchkiss- Vice Principal

466

430

21

Jennifer McLaren- Vice Principal

153

135

17

Name

Mhairi Harrington-Principal
Simon Earp – Vice Principal

2

Cash equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time.
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The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which
the person will first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on
account of its payment at that age; without exercising any option to commute pension
entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the effects of future inflation. The
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as a consequence of
their total Local Government service and not just their current appointment.
In considering the accrued pension benefits figures the following contextual information should
be taken into account:
(i)

(ii)

the figures for pension and lump sum are illustrative only in light of the assumptions
set out above and do not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual
may receive upon retirement.
the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the
employer and the scheme member have made over a period of time.

Real increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the
value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses
common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
Compensation for loss of office
No employees left under voluntary exit terms during the year.
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STAFF REPORT
Salaries and Related costs
2018

2018

2018

2017

Directly
employed staff
£’000

Seconded and
agency staff
£’000

Total

Total

£’000

£’000

8,958

0

8,958

8,246

Social security costs

848

0

848

775

Other pension costs

2,109

0

2,109

1,902

Restructuring Costs

7

0

7

10

11,922

0

11,922

10,933

292

0

292

272

Wages and salaries

Total
Average number of FTE

The college employed 253 females and 132 males during 2017-18 (headcount).
Facility Time
In accordance with the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) regulations 2017,
the College provided the following support through paid facility time for union officials working at
the College during the period 1 April 2017- 31 March 2018.
Relevant union officials
Number of employees who were relevant Full-time equivalent employee number:
union officials during the relevant period:
9

8.4

Percentage of time spend on facility time
Percentage:

Number of employees:

0%

0

1%-50%

9

51%-99%

0

100%

0
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Percentage of pay bill spend on facility time
Total cost of facility time:

17,428

Total pay bill:

10,884,759

Percentage of the total pay bill spend on 0.2%
facility time:

Paid trade union activities
Time spend on trade union activities as a 100%
percentage of total paid facility time hours:

Equal Opportunities
West Lothian College has published its Equality Mainstreaming Report 2017-20, which outlines
how we will meet our General and Public Sector Equality Duties and informs and guides decision
making and policy reviews. We have a range of policies which ensure that staff, learners and
visitors are treated equitably regardless of colour, race, nationality, ethnic or national origin,
religion or belief, disability, gender or gender reassignment, age and sexual orientation,
pregnancy and maternity, marriage or civil partnership.
We value diversity and aim to advance equality of opportunity, foster good relations and
eliminate discrimination, victimisation and harassment in all our activities.
Policies and procedures, work practices and terms and conditions of employment are
continuously reviewed and equality impact assessed to ensure compliance with legislation and
identified best practice.
The College considers all applications for a college course place from all members of the
community in respect of the qualifications and skills necessary to meet the entry requirements of
the course applied for.
The College considers all applications for employment from all members of the community in
respect of the qualifications and skills necessary to fulfil the requirements of the position.
Approved by the members of the Board on 11 December 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Alex Linkston
Chair

Jackie Galbraith
Principal
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of the Board of Governors of West
Lothian College, the Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Public Finance
and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the
Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for Scotland, we do not undertake to have
responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties.

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on financial statements
We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of West Lothian College for
the year ended 31 July 2018 under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and section
44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. The financial statements comprise
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Reserves, Balance Sheet, and
Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements:
• give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and
directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council of the state of the college's affairs as at 31
July 2018 and of its deficit for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further and Higher Education
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council, the Charities and
Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 14 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland)
Regulations 2006 (as amended).
Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing in the
UK (ISAs (UK)). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
college in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us
to report to you where:
• the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or
• the college has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about its ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
Responsibilities of the Board of Governors for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Governors Responsibilities, the Board of
Governors is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
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accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Board of Governors
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors is responsible for assessing the college's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to achieve reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.
Other information in the annual report and accounts
The Board of Governors is responsible for the other information in the annual report and accounts. The
other information comprises the information other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on matters prescribed by the Auditor General
for Scotland to the extent explicitly stated later in this report.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements in accordance with ISAs (UK), our responsibility is
to read all the other information in the annual report and accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement
in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on regularity of expenditure and income
Opinion on regularity
In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements were incurred
or applied in accordance with any applicable enactments and guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers.
Responsibilities for regularity
The Board of Governors is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. We are
responsible for expressing an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in accordance with the
Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.
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Report on other requirements
Opinions on other prescribed matters
We are required by the Auditor General for Scotland to express an opinion on the following matters.
In our opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by
the Scottish Funding Council.
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit
• the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared in
accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made
thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council; and
• the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared
in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made
thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the college and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Performance Report or Governance
Statement.
We are required by The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report to you if, in our opinion:
•
adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
•
the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report are not in
agreement with the accounting records; or
•
We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Lucy Nutley
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP
Apex 2
97 Haymarket Terrace
Edinburgh
EH12 5HD
December 2018

Lucy Nutley is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 21 of the Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Notes

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

12,647
3,140
2,049
1

13,625
3,020
1,971
2

17,837

18,618

11,922
5,821
800
233

10,933
5,038
789
1,921
214

18,776

18,895

(939)

(277)

-

-

Deficit for the year

(939)

(277)

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of assets
Actuarial gain /(loss) in respect of pension
schemes

2,651

2,221
924

Total comprehensive income for the year

1,712

2,868

Represented by:
Restricted comprehensive income
Unrestricted comprehensive income

1,712

2,868

1,712

2,868

Income
SFC grants
Tuition fees and education contracts
Other income
Investment income

2
3
4
5

Total Income
Expenditure
Staff Costs
Other operating expenses
Depreciation
Exceptional impairment loss
Interest payable

6
7
10
8

Total Expenditure
Deficit before tax
Taxation

9

The Statement of Comprehensive Income is prepared under the FE/HE SORP. The SORP does
not permit colleges to reflect the non-cash budget for depreciation in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Note 28 provides details of the adjusted operating position on a Central
Government basis.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
Income and
Expenditure
Account
£’000
Balance at 31 July 2016

Revaluation
Reserve

Total

£’000

(12,109)

4,408

(7,701)

(277)

-

(277)

Other comprehensive income

924

2,221

3,145

Transfers between revaluation reserve and
income and expenditure account

189

(189)

-

Total comprehensive income for the year

836

2,032

2,868

(11,273)

6,440

(4,833)

Deficit from statement of comprehensive
income

(939)

-

(939)

Other comprehensive income

2,651

-

2,651

Transfers between revaluation reserve and
income and expenditure account

299

(299)

-

Total comprehensive income for the year

2,011

(299)

1,712

(9,262)

6,141

(3,121)

Deficit from statement of comprehensive
income

Balance at 31 July 2017

Balance at 31 July 2018
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 JULY

Notes

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets

10

18,860

19,660

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

11
17

864
729

559
1,530

1,593

2,089

(2,428)

(2,923)

(835)

(834)

18,025

18,826

13

(14,675)

(15,290)

15
15

(2,783)
(3,688)

(4,416)
(3,953)

(3,121)

(4,833)

(9,262)
6,141

(11,273)
6,440

(3,121)

(4,833)

Less: Creditors; amounts falling due within one
year

12

Net Current Liabilities
Total Assets less Current Liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year
Provisions
Defined benefit obligations
Other provisions
Total Net Liabilities

Unrestricted Reserves
Income and expenditure account
Revaluation reserve

16

Total Reserves

The financial statements on pages 34 to 61 were approved by the Board of Governors
On 11 December 2018 and signed on its behalf on that date by:

Alex Linkston
Chair

Jackie Galbraith
Principal
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

Cash flow from operating activities
Deficit for the year

(939)

(277)

Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation
Exceptional Impairment Loss
Deferred capital grants released to income
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors due within one year
(Decrease) in provisions
Pension costs less contributions payable

800
(457)
(305)
(495)
(199)
719

789
1,921
(2,511)
218
413
(200)
524

(1)
233

(2)
214

(644)

1,089

1
-

2
89
(89)

1

2

(158)
(158)

(158)
(158)

(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents in
the year

(801)

933

Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year

1,530

597

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

729

1,530

Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income
Interest payable
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Capital grant receipts
Payments made to acquire fixed assets

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Repayments of amounts borrowed
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2018
1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are
considered material in relation to the financial statements.
a) Basis of Preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2015, and in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards FRS 102 and the 2017-18 Government Financial
Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by the Scottish Government. They conform to the Accounts
Direction and other guidance published by the Scottish Funding Council (FReM 2.2.6).
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the
College’s accounting policies.
b) Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of surplus land and certain fixed assets.
The accounting policies contained in the FReM apply International Reporting Standards as
adapted or interpreted for the public sector context. Where the FReM permits a choice of
accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the College for
the purposes of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by
the College in dealing with items that are considered material to the financial statements are set
out. (FReM 2.2.6).
c) Going Concern
The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and
performance are set out in the Performance Report. The financial position of the College, its
cash flow and liquidity are presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes. The
net liabilities are due to the reclassification of deferred Government grants as deferred income
within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than
one year as appropriate
The College’s forecasts and financial projections indicate that the College has a reasonable
expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going concern basis in the
preparation of its Financial Statements.
d) Recognition of Income
Income from the sale of goods or services is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
when the goods or services are supplied to the external customers or the terms of the contract
have been satisfied.
Fee income is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period in which students are studying.
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Income received in advance is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance
sheet and then released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period it is earned.
All income from short-term deposits and Investment income is credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on a receivable basis.
Funds the College receives and disburses as paying agent on behalf of a funding body are
excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
e) Grant Funding
Government revenue grants including the recurrent grants from the Scottish Funding Council are
recognised in income over the periods in which the College recognises the related costs for which
the grant is intended to compensate. Where part of a government grant is deferred it is
recognised as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one
year and due after more than one year as appropriate.
Grants from non-governmental sources are recognised in income when the College is entitled to
the income and performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of
performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on
the balance sheet and released to income as the conditions are met.
f) Capital Grants
Government capital grants are recognised in income over the expected useful life of the asset.
Other capital grants are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to
any performance related conditions being met,
g) Short Term Employment Benefits
Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences are recognised as
an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the college. Any unused
benefits are accrued and measured as the additional amount the college expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement.
h) Pension Schemes
Retirement benefits to employees of the College are provided by the Teachers' Superannuation
Scheme (Scotland) (STSS) and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF). These are defined benefit
schemes which are externally funded and contracted out of the State Earnings Related Pension
Scheme until March 2016.
i)

STSS

The College is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the STSS
on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, as required by FRS 102, accounts for the
scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The amount charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income represents the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the
year. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of periodic
valuations using the projected unit method.
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ii) LPF
The College’s share of LPF scheme assets and liabilities are valued by the LPF actuary,
Hymans Robertson. Contributions to the schemes are charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees working lives
with the College. The contributions are determined by an actuary on the basis of triennial
valuations. In accordance with FRS 102, the amount charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income represents the service cost expected to arise from employee service
in the current year.
The costs of enhanced early retirement benefits are borne directly by the College.
i)

Tangible Fixed Assets

In line with the FReM all tangible assets must be carried at fair value.
i)

Land and Buildings

Land and Buildings are measured using the revaluation model. Under the revaluation model
assets are revalued to fair value. Where appropriate Depreciated Replacement cost has
been used as a measure of fair value for land and buildings otherwise Market Value will be
used. The College has a policy of ensuring a full revaluation takes place at least every 5
years such that the fair value is not materially different to the current value. Depreciation and
impairment losses are subsequently charged on the revalued amount.
Freehold land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an indefinite useful life.
College buildings are depreciated over 30 years and transferred car parking areas are
depreciated over 25 years, both commencing in the first full financial year after the date of
transfer of the estate to public ownership (2 April 2007). Other additions to the estate are
depreciated over 10 years from the date they are brought into use.
Costs incurred in relation to land and buildings after initial purchase or construction, and prior
to valuation, are capitalised to the extent they increase the expected future benefits to the
College.
If a building is brought into use mid-way through a year the depreciation charge in the first
year will be pro-rated to reflect the number of months the asset was in use.
A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable.
Buildings under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’
certificates and other direct costs incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they
are brought into use.
ii)

Fixed Plant and Equipment

Equipment is capitalised at cost and carried at depreciated historical cost, which is used as
a proxy for fair value when it is expected to be in use within the business on a continuing
basis for at least 3 years. Depreciated historical cost is deemed to be more appropriate
than revaluing for equipment as it is common for such assets to reduce in value rather than
to increase as they are utilised by the College (FReM 6.2). Capitalised equipment is
depreciated over its useful economic life from the date it is brought into use as follows: -
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Fixed Plant
Equipment

5-29 years
4 years

Where equipment is brought into use mid-way through a year the depreciation charge in the
first year will be pro-rated to reflect the number of months that the asset was in use.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the date of
preparation of each Balance Sheet.
iii)

Operating Leases

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Any lease premiums or incentives are spread over the minimum lease term.
iv) Finance Leases
Leases in which the College assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the leased asset are classified as finance leases. Leased assets acquired by way of finance
lease and the corresponding lease liabilities are initially recognised at an amount equal to the
lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of
the lease.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of specific assets.
j)

Maintenance of Premises

The cost of maintenance is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in
which it is incurred.
k) Stocks
The Board of Governors agree that stocks be written off in the year of acquisition on the basis of
non-materiality.
l)

Cash

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are
repayable on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty.
m) Taxation
The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of the Trustee Investment and Charities
(Scotland) Act 2005 and, as such is a charity within the meaning of section 506 (1) of the Income
and Corporation Taxes Act (ICTA) 1988. The College is recognised as a charity by HM Revenue
& Customs and is recorded on the index of charities maintained by the Office of Scottish Charity
Regulator and therefore not liable for corporation tax.
Non-recoverable Value Added Tax arising from expenditure on non-trading activities is charged
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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The College benefits by being exempt from corporation tax on income it receives from tuition
fees, interest and rents.
n) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
o) Agency Arrangements
The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain Student Support Funds.
These funds are excluded from the College Statement of Comprehensive Income; movements
have been disclosed in the notes. Where the College has more discretion in the manner in which
specific funds are disbursed, and these funds do not meet the definition of agency funds, the
income and expenditure relating to those funds is shown in the College Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
p) Financial Instruments
The College only enters into basic financial instruments transactions that result in the recognition
of financial assets and liabilities like trade and other debtors and creditors and other loans to
related parties.
Debt instruments that are payable or receivable within one year, typically trade debtors and
creditors, are measured, initially and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or
other consideration expected to be paid or received.
q) Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements:
•

•

Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are
operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a
lease by lease basis.
Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the College’s tangible assets.
Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability
and expected future financial performance of the asset.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty
•

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual
values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are
assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re‐assessing asset
lives, factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken
into account.

•

Local Government Pension Scheme
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The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety
of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note
18, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
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2

SFC GRANTS

SFC Teaching & fee waiver grant
Childcare funds
Release of deferred capital grants (SFC)
Other SFC Grants

3

10,092
685
457
1,413

9,823
655
2,511
636

12,647

13,625

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

885
1,553
702

852
1,552
616

3,140

3,020

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

311
249
1,216
273

326
128
1,203
314

2,049

1,971

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

1

2

OTHER INCOME

Residence and catering
European funds
Other income generating activities
Other income

5

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

TUITION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS

FE Fees - UK
HE Fees - UK
SDS contracts

4

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

INVESTMENT INCOME

Other Interest Receivable
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6

STAFF COSTS

The average weekly number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed by the College
during the period was:
Year
Year
Ended
Ended
31 July 2018
31 July 2017
FTE
FTE
Teaching departments
Teaching support services
Administration
Premises
Catering and residences
Other Income-generating activities
Other staff

Analysed as:
Staff on permanent contracts
Staff on temporary contracts

169
32
38
23
9
18
3

160
27
35
22
9
16
3

292

272

258
34

245
27

292

272

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

8,958
848
2,109
7

8,246
775
1,902
10

11,922

10,933

9,777
1,419
719
7

9,255
1,144
524
10

11,922

10,933

Staff Costs for the above persons
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs
Restructuring costs

Analysed as:
Staff on permanent contracts
Staff on temporary contracts
Pension charge less contributions paid
Restructuring costs
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Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

6,932
979
1,544
616
209
731
185
719
7

6,482
946
1,447
576
192
661
95
524
10

11,922

10,933

Analysed as:
Teaching departments
Teaching support services
Administration
Premises
Catering and residences
Other income-generating activities
Other staff
Pension charge less contributions paid
Restructuring costs

Key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the College and are represented by the
Senior Team which comprises the Principal and three Vice Principals.
Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher
paid staff

2018

The number of key management personnel including
the Accounting Officer was:

2017

No.

No.

4

4

The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual
emoluments, excluding pension contributions but including benefits in kind, in the following
ranges was:
Key management personnel

£60,001 to £70,000
£110,001 to £120,000

Other staff

2018

2017

2018

2017

No.

No.

No.

No.

3
1

2
1

-

-

4

3

-

-
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Key management personnel emoluments are made up as follows:
2018

2017

£’000

£’000

Salaries
Benefits in kind

316
316

284
284

Pension contributions

37

50

Total emoluments

353

334

There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, nor
any salary sacrifice arrangements in place. The above emoluments include amounts payable to
the Accounting officer (who is also the highest paid officer) of:

Salaries
Benefits in kind

Pension contributions
Total emoluments

2018

2017

£’000

£’000

112
112

110
110

-

19

112

129

Compensation for loss of office paid to former key management personnel

Compensation paid to former post-holders
Estimated value of other benefits, including provision for
pension benefits

2018

2017

£’000

£’000

-

-

Overseas Activities
The following costs were incurred during 2017-18 in respect of overseas activities which
were carried out in accordance with the strategy approved by the board of governors:

Members
Senior post-holders
Other staff

Total
Cost
£
52,375

Contribution
Received
£
-

Net Costs To
College
£
52,375
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7

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Teaching departments
Teaching support services
Administration
Premises
Catering
Other income generating activities
Overspend on student support funds
Childcare fund costs
Other

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

673
234
1,435
1,701
179
473
15
685
426

603
270
1,353
1,233
170
494
655
260

5,821

5,038

21
14

33
13

-

-

35

46

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

233

214

233

214

Other Operating Expenses (Administration)
include:
Auditors Remuneration (including irrecoverable
VAT)
- Internal audit
- External audit
Other services provided by:
- Internal audit
- External audit
-

8

INTEREST PAYABLE

On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans
Pension finance costs

9

TAXATION

The Board does not believe the College was liable for any corporation tax arising out of its
activities during this period.
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10 FIXED ASSETS
Land &
Buildings
Freehold
£'000

Fixed Plant

Equipment

Total

£'000

£’000

£'000

66
-

20,520
(327)

Cost or valuation
At 31 July 2017
Additions
Disposals

18,656
(327)

1,798
-

At 31 July 2018

18,329

1,798

66

20,193

At 31 July 2017
Charge for Period
Disposals

841
594
(327)

12
186
-

7
20
-

860
800
(327)

At 31 July 2018

1,108

198

27

1,333

Net Book Value
At 31 July 2018

17,221

1,600

39

18,860

Net Book Value
At 31 July 2017

17,815

1,786

59

19,660

17,221

1,600

39

18,860

Depreciation

Financed by:
Capital Grant

The College’s land and buildings were independently valued by GVA James Barr as at 31 July
2017. This valuation has been incorporated into these financial statements. The basis of
valuation adopted was depreciated replacement cost. Had they not been re-valued, inherited
and owned land, buildings and fixed plant would have had an historic net book value of
£16,151,000 (2017: £16,709,000).
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11 TRADE AND OTHER RECOVERABLES

Trade Debtors
European Funding
Prepayments and accrued income
Amounts Owed by SFC

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

620
7
177
60

328
171
60

864

559

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

526
399
857
457
12
6
158
13

437
383
554
457
5
870
158
59

2,428

2,923

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

2,369
12,306

2,527
12,763

14,675

15,290

12 CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade Creditors
Taxation and Social Security
Accruals and Deferred income
Deferred Income – Deferred capital grant < 1 Year
Deferred Income – SFC capital grants
Deferred Income – SFC revenue grants
Amounts Owed to SFC
Unspent Student Funds

13 CREDITORS: Amounts falling due after one year

Amounts Owed to SFC
Deferred Income – SFC Capital grants
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14 MATURITY OF DEBT
SFC Loan is repayable as follows:
Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

158
158
632
1,579

158
158
632
1,737

2,527

2,685

In one year or less
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
In five years or more

The College voluntarily terminated its PFI contract in April 2007, at which point the title of the
College buildings transferred to the College. The College received total funding from SFC in
April 2007 of £27.7million to enable it to terminate the contract. This comprised a grant of
£22.16million and a repayable advance of £5.54million representing the College’s own
contribution towards the cost of the assets previously held under the PFI contract.
The £5.54million advance is interest free and was repayable in equal instalments over 16 years.
The first repayment was made in August 2010 and at 31 July 2018 the amount outstanding was
£2,526,992. In March 2014 the College made an upfront payment of £650,000 towards the loan
and negotiated a reduced annual payment of £157,937 per annum with the Scottish Funding
Council from April 2015.

15 PROVISIONS
Defined
Benefit
Obligations

Early
Retirement
Provision

Other
Provision

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

£'000

At 1 August 2017

4,416

3,953

-

8,369

Expenditure in the period
Other movements in period

(673)
(960)

(199)
(66)

-

(872)
(1,026)

At 31 July 2018

2,783

3,688

-

6,471

Defined benefit obligations relate to liabilities under the College’s membership of the Local
Government pension scheme. Further details are given at Note 18.
The early retirement provision is in accordance with a valuation carried out by Hymans
Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries at 31 July 2018.
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16 RESERVES
Analysis of income and expenditure account
I&E
Account
Trading
Activities

I&E
Account
Holiday
Pay

I&E
Account
PFI Loan

I&E
Account
Early
Retiremnt

£'000

£,000

£'000

(82)

(137)

(2,685)

Total
comprehensive
income for the year
(excluding
revaluation)

29

(16)

Transfer from
Revaluation
Reserve

299

-

At 31 July 2017

Repayments of PFI
loan

(158)

Payments for early
retirement

(199)

-

At 31 July 2018

(111)

(153)

£'000

I&E
Account
Defined
Benefit
Pension
£’000

£'000

(3,953)

(4,416)

(11,273)

66

1,633

1,712

-

-

-

299

158

-

-

-

199

-

-

(3,688)

(2,783)

(9,262)

-

(2,527)

Total

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash
Debt due within 1 year
Debt due after 1 year

At 1 August
2017
£'000

Cash Flows
£'000

Other
£'000

At 31 July
2018
£'000

1,530
(158)
(2,527)

(801)
158
-

(158)
158

729
(158)
(2,369)

(1,155)

(643)

-

(1,798)
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18 PENSION COMMITMENTS
The College’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Scottish Teachers’
Superannuation Scheme (STSS), and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF).

Total pension cost for the period

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

717

708

STSS contributions paid
LPF Pension scheme:
Contributions paid
FRS 102 (28) charge

673
719

670
524

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

1,392

1,194

Total Pension Cost for the period within staff costs

2,109

1,902

Contributions amounting to £120,000 (2017 £113,000) were payable to the schemes at 31 July
and are included within creditors.
Scottish Teachers Superannuation Scheme
The Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme is a notional fund valued every year by the
Government actuary. Contributions are paid by the College at the rate specified. The Scheme
is unfunded and contributions are made to the Exchequer. The payments from the scheme are
made from funds voted by the Scottish Parliament. The contribution rate payable by the
employer since 1 April 2015 is 17.2% of pensionable salaries.
Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard 102 (28.11) (FRS 102), the STSS
is a multi-employer pension plan. The College is unable to identify its share of the underlying
assets and liabilities of the scheme. Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of its
exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions as if it were a defined contribution
plan. The College has set out above the information available on the plan and the implications
for the College in terms of the anticipated contribution rates.
Lothian Pension Fund Scheme
The Lothian Pension Fund is valued every three years by professionally qualified independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit method, the rates of contribution payable being
determined by the trustees on the advice of the actuaries. In the intervening years, the LPF
actuary reviews the progress of the LPF scheme.
The Lothian Pension Fund is a funded defined-benefit plan, with assets held in separate funds
administered by City of Edinburgh Council. The total contributions made for the year ended 31
July 2018 were £887,000 and employees’ contributions totalled £214,000. The agreed
contribution rates for future years for the employer are 18.8% from 1st April 2018, 19.3% from 1st
April 2019 and 19.8% from 1st April 2020. For employees, contribution rates range from 5.5% to
12.0% depending on salary.
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Principal Actuarial assumptions
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2017
updated to 31 July 2018 by a qualified independent actuary.

Rate of increase in salaries
Future pensions increases
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
Inflation assumption (CPI)
Commutation of pensions – pre April 2009
Commutation of pensions – post April 2009

At 31 July
2018

At 31 July
2017

4.1%
2.4%
2.8%
2.4%
50%
75%

4.5%
2.5%
2.7%
2.4%
50%
75%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in
mortality rate. The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

Current pensioners
Future pensioners

Males

Females

21.7 years
24.7 years

24.3 years
27.5 years

The College’s share of assets in the scheme and the expected rate of return are:

Equities
Bonds
Property
Cash

Long term
rate of
return

Fair Value
at
31 July
2018
£'000

Long term
rate of
return

Fair Value
at
31 July
2017
£'000

2.8%
2.8%
2.8%
2.8%

16,106
2,092
1,464
1,255

2.7%
2.7%
2.7%
2.7%

15,572
2,396
1,198
798

Total fair value of employer assets

Actual return on employer assets

20,917

19,964

461

2,116
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The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan
is as follows:

Fair value of employer assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Net Pension Liability

Year Ended
31 July 2018
£'000

Year Ended
31 July 2017
£'000

20,917
(23,700)

19,964
(24,380)

(2,783)

(4,416)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan
are as follows:
Year Ended
31 July 2018
£'000

Year Ended
31 July 2017
£'000

Current service cost
Past service cost

1,392
-

1,194
-

Total

1,392

1,194

Net pension costs

129

121

Total

129

121

Return on pension assets
Change in demographic assumptions
Change in financial assumptions
Other experience

(84)
(26)
1,385
1,206

1.696
(668)

Total

2,481

1,028

Amounts included in staff costs

Amounts included in Pension Costs

Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income
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Movement in net defined benefit (liability) during year

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

Net defined benefit (liability) at start of period
Movement in period:
Current service costs
Employer contributions
Net interest on the defined liability
Actuarial gain or loss

(4,416)

(4,799)

(1,392)
673
(129)
2,481

(1,194)
670
(121)
1,028

Net defined benefit (liability) at end of period

(2,783)

(4,416)

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

Fair value of plan assets at start of period
Interest on plan assets
Return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Contributions by plan participants
Benefits paid

19,964
545
(84)
673
214
(395)

17,188
420
1,696
670
202
(212)

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

20,917

19,964

Year
Ended
31 July 2018
£’000

Year
Ended
31 July 2017
£’000

Defined benefit obligation at start of period
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions by plan participants
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience
Benefits paid

24,380
1,392
674
214
26
(1,385)
(1,206)
(395)

21,987
1,194
541
202
668
(212)

Defined benefit obligation at end of period

23,700

24,380

Asset and Liability Reconciliation

Changes in fair value of plan assets

Changes in the present value of defined benefit
obligations
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19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Financial Assets
Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost totalled £645,000 (2017:
£388,000) at the balance sheet date. This comprises trade debtors and amounts owed by SFC.
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost totalled £3,923,000 (2017: £3,735,000) at the
balance sheet date. This comprises trade creditors, accruals, unspent student funds and
amounts owed to SFC.
20 LOSSES AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS

Above SFC annual reporting
requirements

Debt write-off
Cash losses
Ex-gratia payments
Compensation payments

SFC
Requirement
Per Instance

2018
Number

2018
£Total

£3,000
£3,000
£1,000
£5,000

1
-

1,959
-

The ex-gratia payment was approved by the Scottish Funding Council in December 2017
21 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At 31 July the College had commitments of a capital nature as follows:

Committed but not contracted
Committed and contracted

2018
£000

2017
£000

-

50
6

The committed not contracted value for 2017 related to the planned purchase of an IT backup
and restore solution. The committed and contracted amount related to residual commitments in
respect of the extension works to the Skills Workshop and Gym Hall areas completed three
years ago.
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22 LEASE OBLIGATIONS
At 31 July the College had minimum lease payments under non‐cancellable operating leases as
follows:
2018
£’000

2017
£000

23
-

23
23
-

23

46

Other
Expiring within one year
Expiring between one and five years
Expiring in more than five years

During 2017/18 the College paid £26,000 in operating lease rentals.
23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no contingent liabilities at Balance Sheet date.
24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Owing to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of the board of governors
being drawn from local public and private organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take
place with organisations in which a member of the board of governors may have an interest. All
transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with
the College’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.
The College had transactions during the year or worked in partnership with the following publicly
funded or representative bodies in which members of the Board of Governors hold or held official
positions.
Name

Organisation

Position

Mr Thomas Bates

Lareine Engineering Ltd

Director

Mr Graham Hope

West Lothian Council

Chief Executive

Mr Ian McIntosh

Edinburgh Napier University

Leadership Consultant
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The value of the transactions due to/by the College for the twelve months ended 31 July 2018,
and the amount outstanding at this date was as follows:
Organisation

Year ended 31 July 2018

Year ended 31 July 2017

Total Value of
Transactions
£’000

Balance
Outstanding
£’000

Total Value of
Transactions
£’000

Balance
Outstanding
£’000

1
72
329

28
73

134
352

24
4

2
103
-

11
-

2
107
2

54
-

Due to WLC
Lareine Engineering Ltd
West Lothian Council
Edinburgh Napier
University

Due by WLC
University of Edinburgh
West Lothian Council
Edinburgh Napier
University

The total expenses paid to or on behalf of the Governors during the year was £967 ; 2 governors
(2017: £500 ; 2 governors). This represents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of
pocket expenses in attending Governor meetings and other events in their official capacity.
The Chair of the Board received a salary in accordance with the directions issued by the Scottish
Government. The total paid to the Chair over the period was £22,532 (2017: £21,000)
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25

FE BURSARIES AND OTHER STUDENT SUPPORT FUNDS

Balance b/fwd
Allocations
received in year
Expenditure
Repaid to SFC
College
Contribution
Virements

Balance c/fwd

FE
Bursary
£’000

FE
Discr’y
£’000

EMAs
£’000

Other
£’000

2017-18
Total
£’000

2016-17
Total
£’000

59

-

(31)

-

28

25

2,532

193

303

195

3,223

3,074

(1,970)

(569)

(299)

(210)

(3,048)

(2,857)

(95)

-

-

-

(95)

(26)

-

-

-

15

15

-

(513)

376

-

-

(137)

(188)

13

-

(27)

-

(14)

28

Residual cash balances and the corresponding creditor / (debtor) are included in the balance
sheet. FE Bursaries and Student Support Funds are available solely for students; the College
acts only as paying agent. The grants and related disbursements are therefore excluded from
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
26 CHILDCARE FUNDS

Balance b/fwd
Allocations received in year
Expenditure
College contribution
Virements
Balance c/fwd

2017-18
£’000

2016-17
£’000

-

-

548

467

(685)

(655)

-

-

137

188

-

-

Residual cash balances and the corresponding creditor are included in the balance sheet.
Childcare Funds are reported gross in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

27

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There have been no significant post balance sheet events.
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28

IMPACT OF DEPRECIATION BUDGET ON STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Following reclassification, colleges received a non-cash budget to cover depreciation but this
additional budget is not recognised under the FE/HE SORP accounting rules. Colleges may
show a deficit equivalent to net depreciation as a result of having to meet Government
accounting rules and the requirement to spend the entire cash allocation.
Under the FE/HE SORP, the college recorded an operating deficit of £939,000 for the year
ended 31 July 2018. After adjusting for the non-cash allocation provided under government
rules, the college shows an ‘adjusted’ deficit of £749,000 on a Central Government basis.

Deficit before other gains and losses (FE/HE
SORP basis) for academic year
Add: Depreciation budget for government funded
assets (net of deferred capital grant) for academic
year
Operating deficit on Central Government
accounting basis for academic year

2017-18

2016-17

£’000

£’000

(939)

(277)

190

190

(749)

(87)

The deficit is attributable to other factors reflected in the adjusted operating table (see page 13)
and the college is therefore operating sustainably within its funding allocation.
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Appendix 1
Accounts Direction
The following note is taken from the 2017-18 SFC Accounts Directions and has been
included as required by SFC. It does not form part of the Financial Statements.
2017-18 Accounts direction for Scotland’s colleges

1

It is the Scottish Funding Council’s direction that colleges comply with the 2015
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher
Education (SORP) in preparing their annual report and accounts.

2

Colleges must comply with the accounts direction in the preparation of their
annual report and accounts in accordance with the Financial Memorandum
with the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) or the Regional Strategic Body (for
assigned colleges).

3

Incorporated colleges are also required to comply with the Government
Financial Reporting Manual 2017-18 (FReM) where applicable.

4

Incorporated colleges are reminded that they must send two copies of their
annual report and accounts to the Auditor General for Scotland by 31 December
2018.

5

The annual report and accounts should be signed by the chief executive officer
and by the chair, or one other member of the governing body.

6

Incorporated colleges should reproduce this Direction as an appendix to the
annual report and accounts.

Scottish Funding Council
13 July 2018
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Action: For Discussion

Agenda Item 18.59 (iii)
Paper 10

West Lothian College
11 December 2018

Board of Governors
Annual Report to the Board of Governors and the Auditor General for
Scotland 2017-18
The attached Report summarises the findings from the year-end audit for the
year ended 31 July 2018.
The conclusion of the auditor’s is:
• an unqualified opinion, without modification, will be issued on the financial
statements;
• an unqualified regularity opinion will be issued , meaning that in the
auditor’s opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income
recognised in the financial statements have been applied for the
purposes intended;
• the college has effective arrangements, including budgetary control, that
help the Board members scrutinise finances; and
• the college has governance arrangements in place that provide appropriate
scrutiny of decisions made by the Board and are reflected in the
governance statement.
Action
For discussion.

Jennifer McLaren
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services
11 December 2018

BoG/111218/iShare

1

Annual Audit Report
to the Board of Governors and the
Auditor General for Scotland
West Lothian College
Year ending 31 July 2018
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Mazars LLP
Apex 2
97 Haymarket Terrace
Edinburgh
EH12 5HD
The Audit Committee
West Lothian College
Almondvale Crescent
Livingston
West Lothian
EH54 7EP
29 November 2018

Dear Members
Annual Audit Report – Year ended 31 July 2018
We are pleased to present our Annual Audit Report for the year ended 31 July 2018. The purpose of this document is to
summarise our audit conclusions.
The scope of our work, including identified significant audit risks and other areas of management judgement, was outlined in
our Audit Strategy Memorandum which we presented on 7 June 2018. We have reviewed our Audit Strategy Memorandum
and concluded that the original significant audit risks and other areas of management judgement remain appropriate. We
would like to express our thanks for the assistance of your team during our audit.
If you would like to discuss any matters in more detail then please do not hesitate to contact me on 07387 242 052.

Yours faithfully

Lucy Nutley
Mazars LLP

Mazars LLP – Apex 2, 97 Haymarket Terrace, Edinburgh, EH12 5HD
Tel: 0131 313 7900 – www.mazars.co.uk
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership
registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London
E1W 1DD.
We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK and Ireland by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit
registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861.
VAT number: 839 8356 73

1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Purpose of this report and principal conclusions
This Annual Audit Report sets out the findings from our audit of West Lothian College (‘the College’) for the year ended 31 July 2018,
and forms the basis for discussion at the Audit Committee meeting on 29 November 2018.
Our responsibilities are defined by the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’)
issued by Audit Scotland. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the outstanding work, at the time of issuing this report we have the
following conclusions:

Opinion on
the financial
statements

We anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion, without modification, on the financial statements.

Opinion on
regularity

We anticipate issuing an unqualified regularity opinion, meaning that in our opinion, in all material
respects the expenditure and income recognised in the financial statements have been applied for the
purposes intended.

Opinion on
other
requirements

Wider scope
work

We anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion on the matters prescribed by the Auditor General for
Scotland. Namely that the remuneration and staff report, performance report and governance statement
have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation

We anticipate concluding as follows against the wider scope dimensions for smaller bodies:
• The College has effective arrangements, including budgetary control, that help the Board members
scrutinise finances; and
• The College has governance arrangements in place that provide appropriate scrutiny of decisions made
by the Board and are reflected in their governance statement

Our proposed audit opinion is included in the draft auditor’s report in Appendix B.

Misstatements and internal control recommendations
Section 3 outlines the misstatement noted as part of our audit as at the time of issuing this report. If any additional misstatements are
noted on completion of the outstanding work, these will be reported to the Audit Committee.
As part of our audit we have considered the internal controls in place that are relevant to the preparation of the financial statements. We
do this to design audit procedures that allow us to express an opinion on the financial statements; this does not extend to expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control or to identify any significant deficiencies in their design or operation.
We have identified no recommendations for the improvement of internal controls at the College during our audit. In addition, there were
no recommendations from the prior year which required to be followed up.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

Status of our audit work
We have substantially completed our work on the financial statements and wider scope work for the year ended 31 July 2018. At the
time of preparing this report the following matters remain outstanding:

Audit area

Description of outstanding matters

Financial statements

A final review of the Annual Report and Financial Statements will be completed on receipt
of the final draft document

Our audit approach
We provided details of our intended audit approach in our Audit Strategy Memorandum in June 2018. We have not made any changes
to our audit approach since we presented our Audit Strategy Memorandum to the Audit Committee.
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1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

Materiality
Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of financial statements as a
whole. Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
We set materiality at the planning stage of the audit at £339k using a benchmark of 2% of gross expenditure. Our final assessment of
materiality, based on the final financial statements and qualitative factors is £376k, using the same benchmark.
Initial threshold
£’000

Threshold

Final threshold
£’000

Overall materiality

339

376

Performance materiality

272

300

10

11

Trivial threshold for errors to be reported to the Audit Committee

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of the financial information
needs of the users of the financial statements. In making our assessment we assume that users:
•

have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts;

•

have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

•

understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

•

recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, judgement and the
consideration of future events; and

•

will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and qualitative factors

Performance Materiality
Our audit testing is based on a level of performance materiality, which is a percentage of overall materiality, but also dependent on the
level of inherent risk assessed on the area being tested. It is lower than overall materiality as it helps to reduce the risk that the total of
the uncorrected or undetected misstatements does not exceed materiality for the financial statements as a whole. It is based on
between 50 – 80% of overall materiality depending on the risk level. Our initial assessment of performance materiality is based on low
inherent risk, meaning that we have applied 80% of overall materiality as performance materiality.
Misstatements
We aggregate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial. We set a level of triviality for individual errors
identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the Audit Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we consider would
not need to be accumulated because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not have a material effect on the financial
statements. This level was set at 3% of materiality.
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2.

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Set out below are the significant findings from our audit. These findings include:
•

our audit conclusions regarding significant risks and key areas of management judgement outlined in the Audit Strategy
Memorandum;

•

our comments in respect of the accounting policies and disclosures that you have adopted in the financial statements. On
page 12 we have concluded whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the financial reporting
framework and commented on any significant accounting policy changes that have been made during the year; and

•

any significant difficulties we experienced during the audit.

Significant risks and key areas of management judgement
As part of our planning procedures we considered the risks of material misstatement in the College’s financial statements that required
special audit consideration. Although we report identified significant risks at the planning stage of the audit in our Audit Strategy
Memorandum, our risk assessment is a continuous process and we regularly consider whether new significant risks have arisen and
how we intend to respond to these risks. No new risks have been identified since we issued our Audit Strategy Memorandum.

Management override
of controls

Description of the risk
In all entities, management at various levels within an organisation are in a unique position to
perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Due to
the unpredictable way in which such override could occur, we consider there to be a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and thus a significant risk on all audits.
How we addressed this risk
We addressed this risk through performing audit work over:
•

Accounting estimates impacting on amounts included in the financial statements;

•

Consideration of identified significant transactions outside the normal course of business; and

•

Journals recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in preparation of the
financial statements.

Audit conclusion
Satisfactory assurance has been gained over the presumed risk of management override. We have
no matters to report.
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2.

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Revenue
recognition

Description of the risk
There is a presumption under International Standards on Auditing that there is a significant risk of fraud and
error in the timing of revenue recognition leading to the material misstatement of revenue overall. This is
because revenue is an area of particular focus by all users of financial statements and can be subject to
judgements as to when income for services should be recognised.
This risk only applies to the non-grant income generated by the College. The risk has been rebutted in
relation to grant income received by the College, given the highly regulated nature of this income.
How we addressed this risk
We addressed this risk through performing work over:
•

The design and implementation of controls management has in place to ensure income is recognised in
the correct period;

•

Cash receipts around the year end and to ensure they have been recognised in the right year; and

•

The judgements made by management in determining when income for the services is recognised.

Audit conclusion
Satisfactory assurance has been gained over the presumed risk of revenue recognition. We have no
matters to report.
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2.

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key areas of management judgement
Key areas of management judgement include accounting estimates which are material but are not considered to give rise to a
significant risk of material misstatement. These areas of management judgement represent other areas of audit emphasis.

Valuation of
pension liabilities

Description of the management judgement
The College makes contributions to two pension schemes – the Scottish Teachers Superannuation Scheme
(STSS) and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF). While both are defined benefit schemes, it is not possible to
identify the College’s share of the underlying assets and liabilities in the STSS and it is therefore accounted
for as a defined contribution scheme.
The College’s share of the LPF’s underlying assets and liabilities is identifiable and a net liability is
recognised in the accounts.
Given the scale of the liability recognised in the accounts, a misstatement in the reported position could be
material to the financial statements.

How our audit addressed this area of management judgement
We considered the College’s arrangements, including the existence of any relevant controls, for making
estimates in relation to pension entries within the financial statements.
We also considered the reasonableness of the actuary’s assumptions used in providing the College with
information in the financial statements through the use of our internal experts.

Audit conclusion
Our audit work has provided satisfactory assurance over the valuation of the pension liability reported in the
accounts and the actuarial assumptions used to calculate the liability. We have no matters to report.
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2.

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Valuation of land
and buildings

Description of the management judgement
The College holds a significant level of land and buildings – reporting a net book value of £17.8m as at 31
July 2017.
In line with the requirements of the Government Financial Reporting Manual, the College has adopted a
formal revaluation policy of an external valuation every five years, with a desktop, interim valuation
performed during the five year period. The interim valuation was performed as at 31 July 2017, so there is
no revaluation in the current year.
The College policy meets the requirement of the FE SORP that assets are valued sufficiently regularly so
that the carrying value of the asset is not materially different from its fair value.
The College is also required to assess on an annual basis whether there are indicators of impairment to
assets at the reporting date.
Given the significance of the value of fixed assets held, a misstatement in the valuation could be material to
the financial statements.

How our audit addressed this area of management judgement
We undertook a range of substantive procedures including:
•

Review of management’s assessment as to whether the value still reflects the prior year valuation;

•

Review of the reconciliation between the College’s asset register and general ledger; and

•

Considered the College’s impairment review process for land and buildings.

Audit conclusion
Our audit work has provided satisfactory assurance over the valuation of the land and buildings. We have
no matters to report.
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2.

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial Performance
The College is required to report financial performance under the HE/FE SORP, resulting in the reported surplus/deficit of £1,712k in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. However, as a central government body, the College is also required under the Accounts
Direction from the Scottish Funding Council to report financial performance as an ‘adjusted operating position’. We set out these
required positions below.
2017/18
£’000

2016/17
£’000

Operating income

17,837

18,618

Staff costs

11,922

10,933

Operating expenditure

6,854

7,962

Operating Deficit for the year (FE/HE SORP basis)

(939)

(277)

The decrease in income of £781k mainly relates to a reduction in the release of SFC deferred grants during the year compared to the
prior year, while other income sources generally showed increases. The overall accounting deficit has increased by £662k as a result of
the decreased income.
Staff cost increases have been primarily driven by the outcome of national bargaining. The percentage increase is reflective of the sector
as a whole. Overall expenditure has decreased due to the impairment of asset values in the prior year, which has subsequently reduced
the annual depreciation charge on some assets. The remaining expenditure is reasonably consistent with the prior year aside from
premises expenses where £578k was spent on window repairs during the current year. This expenditure was offset by a grant received
from the SFC.
All other expenditure is reasonably consistent with the prior year.
While showing an accounting deficit, we highlight that:
•

The College met its student credit target confirming the level of funding in the financial statements;

•

The College achieved its financial targets in line with its plan; and

•

There were no significant changes to the reported position during the year.

Executive summary

10

Audit of the
financial
statements

Internal control
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements

Wider scope work

Our fees

Appendices

2.

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Adjusted operating position
The table above sets out the financial position in accordance with the SORP requirements. The table below reflects the ‘adjusted
operating position’ as required by the Accounts Direction set by the SFC. The adjusted operating position removes more volatile
accounting entries, such as the valuation of pensions and those that do not have an immediate cash impact on the College. Full details
of the adjustments included are shown on page 13 in the accounts.
2017/18
£’000

2016/17
£’000

Deficit before other gains and losses

(939)

(277)

Add back:
- Depreciation (net of deferred capital grant release)
- Non-cash pension adjustments for the Lothian Pension Fund

343
848

199
645

Deduct:
- CBP allocated to loan repayments
- CBP allocated to Early Retirement payments
- Balance of payments to ERP

158
32
63

158
107

Adjusted operating (deficit/)/surplus

(1)

302

The College’s position has more or less achieved a break even adjusted operating position in the current year. This is encouraging as
the deficit before other gains and losses was significantly higher than in the previous year. The College is operating sustainably within its
funding allocation.
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2.

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices
We have reviewed the College’s accounting policies and disclosures and concluded they comply with the requirements of the 2015
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education and the Government Financial Reporting Manual
2017/18 , appropriately tailored to the College’s circumstances.
Our audit fieldwork commenced on 1 October 2018, with the first draft of the annual report and accounts being received from the
Finance Manager on 2 October 2018 which was later than anticipated. The draft annual report and accounts were of an acceptable
quality, although several further versions were issued due to financial and disclosure adjustments being made.
Producing quality supporting working papers is a crucial part of compiling financial statements that are complete and materially accurate.
They also support the delivery of an efficient audit. Working papers provided for audit were good and staff were responsive to our
requests during the audit.

Significant difficulties during the audit
During the course of the audit we did not encounter any significant difficulties and we have had the full co-operation of management.
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3.

SUMMARY OF MISSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
There were no unadjusted misstatements identified during the course of the audit above the trivial threshold of £11k.
The table below outlines the misstatements that have been adjusted by management during the course of the audit.

Adjusted misstatements 2017/18
Statement of
Comprehensive Income
Dr (£’000)
1

Balance Sheet

Cr (£’000)

Dr: Bad debt provision
Cr: Expenditure

Dr (£’000)

Cr (£’000)

14
14

Being release of bad debt provision for debt repaid post year end.
2

Dr: Employer suspense account
Cr: Expenditure

19
19

Release of funds in suspense account that have been fully reconciled.
3

Dr: Debtors
Cr: Income

2
2

Being monies received from CITB not processed to income.
4

Dr: Prepayments
Cr: Expenditure

14
14

Being correction of 2018/19 expenditure incorrectly processed in 2017/18.

The total effect of the adjustments above were to decrease expenditure (and therefore decrease the accounting deficit)
by £47k.
Disclosure amendments 2017/18
The audit review process suggested amendments to the Corporate Governance Statement to ensure this is in line with the Accounts
Direction issued by the Scottish Funding Council.
A number of other minor presentational amendments were made following review of the draft Annual Report and Accounts and
discussion with management.
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4.

WIDER SCOPE

Our approach to wider scope work
The Code requires us to conclude and make a judgement on the four dimensions of wider scope work. These are:
•

financial sustainability;

•

financial management;

•

governance and transparency; and

•

value for money.

In recognition that audit work should be risk based and proportionate to the nature and size of the audited body, the Code allows auditors
to determine whether application of the full wider scope work is appropriate in smaller bodies. At the planning stage, we considered that
the audit of West Lothian College should be carried out under the small body provisions of the Code. We have reached this conclusion
through our assessment of:
•

the relative size of the College;

•

the relative simplicity of the College’s functions;

•

the College’s risk profile; and

•

the results of our full review of wider scope dimensions in 2016/17 that did not indicate any areas of higher risk.

In line with the Code requirements, our work has therefore focused on financial sustainability and the governance statement.
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4.

WIDER SCOPE
FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

Dimension
Financial sustainability extends the going concern assumption from the financial statements, looking forward two to five years, reviewing
and assessing arrangements for financial planning and affordable and sustainable service delivery in this timescale.
Our conclusion
West Lothian College has adequate financial planning arrangements in place.
Financial Planning
A review of the minutes of the Finance Committee and onwards to the Board demonstrated effective challenge of the financial position
by members throughout the year.
In its annual review of the FE sector, Audit Scotland’s ‘Scotland’s Colleges 2018’ noted that the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) now
requires colleges to prepare six-year financial forecasts, with the current forecasts running from 2016-17 to 2021-22. The SFC has been
working with sector representatives to develop a set of common assumptions that colleges should use for longer-term financial
forecasting. These assumptions are used to produce a financial forecast return (FFR) which is submitted to the SFC annually.
The College has a 6 year plan (which runs from 2017/18 to 2022/23), which is in line with the SFC requirements. There are inherent
uncertainties around SFC funding for the College and student support funds, which provide difficulties in forecasting accurately.
The College’s forecast as presented to, and approved by the Board is as follows:
Forecast
2018/19
£000

Forecast
2019/20
£000

Forecast
2020/21
£000

Forecast
2021/22
£000

Forecast
2022/23
£000

Total income

18,513

19,268

20,004

20,097

20,078

Staff costs

13,468

14,045

14,742

14,939

14,951

Total expenditure

5,897

6,075

6,114

6,010

5,979

Deficit before other gains & losses

(852)

(852)

(852)

(852)

(852)

Add back:
- Depreciation (net of deferred capital grant release)
- Non-cash pension adjustments for the LPF

325
813

325
813

325
813

325
813

325
813

Deduct:
- CBP allocated to loan repayments and other capital items

258

258

258

258

258

Underlying operating result

28

28

28

28

28

The figures above are based on the following:
Income assumptions provided by the SFC with additional credits and grants assumed in 2020/21 onwards with additional lecturing
costs incorporated as appropriate;
A largely flat income level for other/alternative income levels – but incorporates as element of growth the College consider achievable.
The College has recently been notified that the re-tender for the training contract with Children's Hearings Scotland has been
successful which will provide additional income (and costs) for 3 years;
Increase in operational expenditure over the 6 years from £18.8m to £19.8m; and
Salaries increasing slightly from being 67% to being 72% of total expenditure.
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4.

WIDER SCOPE
FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

The forecast on the previous page was submitted to the SFC as their FFR. However, on request from the SFC, a further FFR has now
been developed, with the following differences:
- The additional credits and grants assumed in 2020/21 onwards with additional lecturing costs incorporated as appropriate have been
removed from the forecast; and
- The SFC had advised that adjustments in relation to the pension should be removed, so the non-cash balances are not added back in
the calculation.
Forecast
2018/19
£000

Forecast
2019/20
£000

Forecast
2020/21
£000

Forecast
2021/22
£000

Forecast
2022/23
£000

Underlying operating result (including growth – Scenario 1)

28

28

28

28

28

Underlying operating result (excluding growth – Scenario 2)

(4)

(4)

(95)

(135)

(278)

Decrease in underlying operating result

(32)

(32)

(123)

(147)

(306)

We understand that the Board, with the new Principal, are reviewing the projected outcomes of the forecast and are considering
efficiency savings that can be implemented to mitigate the funding gap identified.
We consider that financial planning is appropriately managed by the College, and that scrutiny and discussion over future financial plans
are built into the various committee and Board meetings.
Asset Management and Estates Strategy
An Estates Strategy 2015-2025 is in place. It was introduced to complement the College strategic and operational plans. The key aim of
the Estate Strategy is to ensure maintenance of high quality fit for purpose facilities, minimum environmental impact and operational
sustainability. The Board of Governors, through the Finance & General Purposes Committee monitors the strategy, and it is reviewed
every 3 years in conjunction with the Corporate Plan.
During the year, Gardiner & Theobald were appointed by the Scottish Funding Council in January 2017 to provide a summary of the
conditions of the estates within the Scottish Further Education sector, being the first independent review of the college estate in Scotland
for 10 years.
The West Lothian College survey showed an estimate of £2 million of costs over the 5 year period from 2017-18 to 2022-23, with only
£17k being identified as urgent. The report states that expenditure of this level is to be expected with buildings approaching 20 years old.
The work marked as urgent has already been completed, and the remaining works are currently being planned.
We consider that appropriate attention is given to the estate and assets, and that their maintenance is factored into long term plans and
discussions.
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WIDER SCOPE
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Dimension
Governance and transparency covers the effectiveness of scrutiny and governance arrangements, leadership and decision making and
transparent reporting of financial and performance information.
Our conclusion
West Lothian College has governance arrangements in place that provide appropriate scrutiny of decisions made by the
Board, these are reflected in the governance statement

Governance arrangements
Our work in this area has considered the overall governance arrangements in place at the College, reviewed the financial and
performance reporting to the Board of Governors, and reviewed the minutes of committees to inform our assessment of the
appropriateness of the governance structure. We have also attended Audit Committees during the year.
Subsequent to the year end, the Principal of the College resigned on 3 August 2018 and a new Principal, Jackie Galbraith took up post
on 6 August 2018. The new Principal will be approving and signing the Performance Report and she has received full assurances over
the Governance arrangements in place at the College from the Senior Team for the year ended 31 July 2018. This has been
appropriately disclosed in the Governance Statement.
During 2017/18, the Board consisted of 18 members, 8 female (including the Principal) and 10 male. The Board continues to work
towards a gender balance that meets with the objective of the Gender Representation on Public Boards (Scotland) Bill which was
introduced by the Scottish Parliament in June 2017 with an implementation date of 2022.
The key committees comprise, and are chaired by former Board members, with each also containing the Principal, with the exception of
the Audit Committee. However, we note that the Principal attended the Audit Committee on a regular basis. The new Principal has
continued these arrangements. In addition, the Chair of the Board is also not permitted to be a member of the Audit Committee.
Appropriate College officers attend committees and present reports as required.
The Board and each of the various the committees (including the Audit Committee) meet 4 times a year. Minutes of these meetings are
published to the College’s website in a timeous fashion following the meetings, showing transparency. Committee papers are detailed
and provide a good overview of the content of the meetings.

Governance Statement
As part of our audit we have read the governance statement included in the annual report. The governance statement sets out the
corporate governance framework in place throughout the reporting year, the internal controls in operation, the work of internal audit and
the overall efficiency and effectiveness of the governance framework.
The governance statement confirms the college’s compliance with the 2016 Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges.
We are required to read and provide an opinion on the governance statement. In our opinion, the information contained within is
consistent with the financial statements. We also consider that the governance statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and further directions made by the Scottish Funding Council.
Internal audit
An effective internal audit service is an important element of any organisation’s governance arrangements. Internal audit provide the
College with independent assurance on internal control and corporate governance processes. The internal audit function at the College
is provided by Scott Moncrieff. Internal audit have attended Audit Committees throughout the year and have produced a number of
reports to support the overall Head of Internal Audit Opinion.
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5.

OUR FEES

Fees for work as the College’s appointed auditor
We reported out proposed fees for the delivery of our work in our Audit Strategy Memorandum, presented to the Audit Committee in
June 2018. Having substantially completed our work for the 2017/18 financial year, we can confirm that our final fees are as follows:
Proposed fee

Final fee

2017/18

2017/18

£12,880

£12,880

Pooled costs

£830

£830

Contribution to Audit Scotland costs

£720

£720

£14,430

£14,430

Area of work
Auditor remuneration

Total Fee

We confirm that these fees are in line with the scale fee set by Audit Scotland. We also confirm that we have not undertaken any nonaudit services for the College in the year.
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APPENDIX A
DRAFT MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER
Dear Sirs
LETTER OF REPRESENTATION
We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the college’s accounts for
the period ended 31st July 2018.
We acknowledge as members of the Board of Governors our responsibility for ensuring:
a) the financial statements are free of material misstatements including omissions;
b) that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College as at 31st July 2018;
c) all the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the transactions undertaken by the College have
been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting records;
d) all other records and related information, including minutes of all management meetings, have been made available to you;
e) the accounting policies used are detailed in the financial statements and are consistent with those adopted in the previous financial statements and
are in accordance with the Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) under the terms of the Further and Higher Education
(Scotland) Act 1992; and
f)
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Financial Memorandum issued to the Board of Governors by the SFC.
Scott-Moncrieff act as Internal Auditors to the College. All reports issued to the College and our responses to them have been made available to you.
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control systems to prevent and detect fraud. We have disclosed to you
the results of our risk assessment that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud. There have been no irregularities (or allegations of
irregularities) involving management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
The College has no liabilities or contingent liabilities other than those disclosed in the accounts.
All claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, received have been properly accrued for in the financial statements.
There have been no events since the balance sheet date that require disclosure or which would materially affect the amounts in the accounts, other than
those already disclosed or included in the accounts. Should further material events occur, which may necessitate revision of the figures included in the
financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you accordingly.
The College has had at no time during the year any arrangement, transaction or agreement to provide credit facilities (including loans, quasi-loans or
credit transactions) for the Board of Governors nor to guarantee or provide security for such matters.
We confirm that we have disclosed to you all related party transactions relevant to the College and that we are not aware of any further related party
matters that require disclosure in order to comply with the requirements of charities legislation, the Statement of Recommended Practice for Further and
Higher Education accounts or accounting standards.
The College has not contracted for any capital expenditure other than as disclosed in the accounts.
The College has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the College’s assets, except for those that are disclosed in the
financial statements.
We are not aware of any irregularities, including fraud, involving existing management or employees of the College, nor are we aware of any breaches or
possible breaches of statute, regulations, contracts, agreements or College's Constitution and Articles of Government which might result in the College
suffering significant penalties or other loss. No allegations of such irregularities, including fraud, or such breaches have come to our attention.
We confirm that we are not aware of any possible or actual instance of non-compliance with those laws and regulations which provide a legal framework
within which the College conducts its business.
We confirm that, in our opinion, the College is a going concern on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than
adequate for the College’s needs. We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. We believe that
no further disclosures relating to the College’s ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements.
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We confirm that no unadjusted misstatements have been brought to our attention.
We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and,
where appropriate, of supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of the above representations to you.

Yours faithfully

.………………………………………….. Chair of Board

…………………………………………….. Principal
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of the Board of Governors of West Lothian College, the Auditor General for Scotland and the
Scottish Parliament
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no
other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for Scotland, we do not undertake to
have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties.
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on financial statements
We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of West Lothian College for the year ended 31 July 2018 under the Further
and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. The financial statements
comprise the [specify precisely the titles of the primary statements used by the college such as the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Reserves, Balance Sheet, and Statement of Cash Flow] and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements:
•
•
•

give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish
Funding Council of the state of the college's affairs as at 31 July 2018 and of its surplus [deficit] for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder
by the Scottish Funding Council, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 14 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland)
Regulations 2006 (as amended).

Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing in the UK (ISAs (UK)). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the college in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial
Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
• the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
• the college has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about its ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
Responsibilities of the Board of Governors for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Governors’ Responsibilities, the Board of Governors is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Board of
Governors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors is responsible for assessing the college's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to achieve reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
Other information in the annual report and accounts
The Board of Governors is responsible for the other information in the annual report and accounts. The other information comprises the information other
than the financial statements, the audited part of the remuneration and staff report, and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on matters prescribed by the
Auditor General for Scotland to the extent explicitly stated later in this report.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements in accordance with ISAs (UK), our responsibility is to read all the other information in the annual
report and accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on regularity of expenditure and income
Opinion on regularity
In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements were incurred or applied in accordance with any applicable
enactments and guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers.
Responsibilities for regularity
The Board of Governors is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. We are responsible for expressing an opinion on the
regularity of expenditure and income in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.

Report on other requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland
In our opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has been properly prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council.
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit
• the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made
thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council; and
• The information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions
made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We are required by The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report to you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
• the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report are not in agreement with the accounting records; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Lucy Nutley,
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP
Apex 2
97 Haymarket Terrace
Edinburgh
EH12 5HA

December 2018
Lucy Nutley is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 21 of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000
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INDEPENDENCE

As part of our ongoing risk assessment we monitor our relationships with you to identify any new actual or perceived threats to our
independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your auditors.
We can confirm that no new threats to independence have been identified since issuing the Audit Strategy Memorandum and therefore
we remain independent.
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Health and Safety Data Analysis Report July-September 2018
Accidents, Incidents and Near Misses.
Introduction
The monitoring, recording and reporting of accidents, incidents and near misses are a
legal requirement which the College actively promotes across the campus. As well as
meeting our legal obligation it allows us to identify where and how risks arise, as each
report is fully investigated by the College Health and Safety Officer. Appendix 1 shows
details of all investigations for this timeframe.
During this reporting period there have been thirty HSF1 forms completed relating to
accidents/incidents and near misses. Certain work-related injuries, cases of disease
and near misses must be reported to the Health and Safety Executive (HSE), there
were no reportable cases recorded.
In the same period in 2017 there were thirty two HSF1 completed by first aiders. The
information gathered allows us to categorise and consider any possible trends. The
following graphs detail the type of accidents recorded to date for 2018 compared to
previous five years. Pre-existing conditions as well as accidents such as burns and
cuts form the main issues first aid staff are dealing with. Pre-existing conditions have
spiked to an all-time high this period. As this is something out with our control we offer
first aid treatment until the person can seek further medical help if required. In
previous reports we have acknowledged that accidents with ‘trade tools’ can happen
until students gain confidence in handling items such as saws in joiner or knives in
hospitality.

Breakdown by type of accident 2018
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Trend analysis 2013-2018
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Health and Safety Management
The College has the following arrangements in place to control health and safety risks
in order to meet the legal requirements and show commitment to all stakeholders:
Health, Safety and Environment Committee
Last HS&E Committee meeting was held on
Minutes from meeting have been posted on
iShare
Action points against H&S Officer currently
outstanding
Next meeting scheduled for
Employer’s Liability Insurance
Zurich Employers Liability Insurance
Interventions
HSE Inspections in the last 12 months
Improvement Notices issued in last 12 months
Prohibition Notices issued in last 12 months
Improvements issued by Fire Service in last 12
months
Risk assessments
Number of risk assessments due for review

Number of risk assessments to be rewritten
Number of generic risk assessments due for
review
Health and Safety Report July to September 2018
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12 September 2018
Yes
None
6 December 2018
Expires on August 2021
0
0
0
0
All available on ishare
0 all risk assessments will now be
stored on ishare and will be
reviewed as part of the H&S Audit.
0
All reviewed summer 2018

Fire Risk Assessment
Fire Risk Assessment in place
Review Date
Health and Safety Policy
Policy Statement approved by
Next Review date
Responsibilities currently unassigned
Health and safety Procedures
Accident / Incident reporting
Lone Working
Inspection and Auditing
Emergency Evacuation
Work Placement
Excursions
COSHH
First Aid
Lock out / Tag out
Noise at Work
Fire Safety Actions
Outstanding actions related to fire inspection
Overdue actions related to fire inspection
Last emergency evacuation drill (daytime)
Last emergency evacuation drill (evening)
Next emergency evacuation drill (daytime)
Next emergency evacuation drill (evening)

Yes
September 2019
Jackie Galbraith
May 2019
0
Review Date
June 2021
May 2021
July 2021
July 2021
August 2019
June 2021
April 2021
June 2021
June 2021
June 2021
0
0
September 2018
September 2018
February 2019
February 2019

Scheduled events and Training
Six Health and Safety Committee meetings were scheduled on an annual basis and all
took place. Six emergency evacuation drills have taken place in the last twelve
months. Three were scheduled to take place during office hours and three in the
evening during the academic year. During this period day and evening evacuations
have taken place, a few issues were highlighted as needing to be addressed.
A planned Health and Safety Audit was carried out in Hospitality section of Terrace 3,
as was a Health and Safety walk round in Terrace 1. Following these events a detailed
action plan was issued to the Centre Heads and the Facilities Manager. Full details of
the actions highlighted can be seen in Appendix 2. The department risk assessments
were also reviewed for both these areas as a part of this process.
The Head of Quality and Learner Services has scheduled meetings with all Centre
Heads and Support Managers to discuss the training needs of the individual teams. To
date Lone Working is the one Health and Safety related request which has been
highlight by three teams. The College has Lone Working training packages on Moodle
which these staff can access and tool box talks will also be delivered to these teams.
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Changes to Legislation/Guidance
There have been no significant changes to health and safety-related legislation in the
UK in the reporting period.

Consultations
There are currently no health and safety-related public consultations which relate to the
work of the College.
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Appendix 1 – Health and Safety Officers Investigation Findings

No.

Date

Accident/Incident/
near miss

HSF1 Detail

Investigation

1

22-Aug

accident

Visitor was walking into the
campus and tripped over a raised
drain in the square. She grazed
her nose that was bleeding and
swollen. First aider attended and
applied an ice pack.

2

28-Aug

first aid

Student who has a pre-existing
condition took an epileptic fit,
which lasted 15 minutes. First
aider attended along with
lecturer and an ambulance was
called, student was taken to
hospital.

3

28-Aug

accident

4

29-Aug

first aid

Student was using a chisel in
joinery when it slipped and cut
hand. First aider attended and
cleaned wound and applied a
plaster.
Member of staff was using a
peeler in canteen and cut finger.
First aider attended and applied
finger dressing.

5

29-Aug

first aid

Facilities have reviewed
the surface levels on the
square and some of the
slabs had dropped. A
contractor has been
instructed to repair
areas. Now completed
Student has attended
college on another
course, a care plan was
in place but was to be
reviewed by new
department on his first
week, took ill before
that was carried out.
Staff were familiar with
students case. Care
plan and risk
assessment now
updated and in place.
Student was using the
chisel on a piece of
wood and it slipped,
they had been trained
on how to use correctly.
The staff member
realise the blade was
attached the wrong way
and tried to change
position cutting her
finger in the process.
No further action
required.

6

03-Sep

first aid

App1 H&S Quarterly July-Sept ‘18

Student complaining of chest
pain, first aider attended and
student informed he had
previously been to doctors and
A+E and told he suffers panic
attacks. First aider advised to go
back to A + E.
Student experienced a seizure in
class, first aider was called and
when attended student was
already in recovery position.
Started to respond but then had
another seizure. An ambulance
was called and she was taken to
hospital.

1

Student does not have a
care plan as not aware
of any health condition.
See points 9 and 17.

7

04-Sep

first aid

8

04-Sep

first aid

9

04-Sep

first aid

10

05-Sep

first aid

11

05-Sep

first aid

12

06-Sep

first aid

App1 H&S Quarterly July-Sept ‘18

Student was struggling to breath
due to having asthma. First aider
was called and was asked to take
inhaler but did not have it with
them. Parent brought to college
and once taken felt better.
Student was having chest pains, a
first aider attended. Parent was
called to collect and taken to get
checked at A&E.
Student collapsed with pains in
stomach. First aider attended
and they called for an ambulance
and was taken to hospital. The
student had been taken to
hospital the previous day for
same symptoms.
Student has a condition in both
knees. She was walking across
the campus and her knee
dislocated. Student sitting when
first aider arrived, first aider went
to collect wheelchair and when
returned knee had returned to its
normal position.
Student came to reception to ask
for a first aider. He was
complaining of chest pains, sat in
the library with first aider, no first
aid required. Went home with a
friend, he was advised to go to
doctors.
Lecturer called first aider as
student was becoming
increasingly unwell throughout
the morning. The student was
Type 1 diabetic. First aider took
student to first aid room and gave
him sweet bar as thought he was
taking a hypo.

2

No further action
required.

No further action
required.

Same student no 6.

No further action
required.

No further action
required.

Student was a
vulnerable adult and
was awaiting call about
accommodation that
evening so asked to stay
in first aid room, First
aider though he was
feeling better so
checked on him every
30 mins then sent him
over to student support
for monetary help and
advice.

13

06-Sep

first aid

14*

07-Sep

first aid

15

07-Sep

accident

16

12-Sep

first aid

17

13-Sep

accident

18

13-Sep

accident

19

17-Sep

first aid

App1 H&S Quarterly July-Sept ‘18

Student left the first aid room to
make way to the street building
but was found by another
member of staff in square,
another first aider was called.
First aider got him to test his
levels where they were extremely
high, student had not taken any
insulin, was taken back to the
first aid room where an
ambulance was called and he was
taken to hospital.
Student reported to reception
they had a pain in calf muscle. A
first aider was called and advised
rest, pain relief and to visit GP

Student is now under
student support and
external bodies. The
case was discussed at
first aid meeting, if
presented with a
diabetic get them to
test levels hypo and
hyper have similar
symptoms.

Student was working with a
fellow student to fix a conduit
box to the ceiling when is slipped
from his hand and hit student on
the nose. No first aid was
required student received a
minor graze.
Student had self-harmed and
came into college. Cuts irritated
by clothes, First aider called,
cleaned, and dressed wounds.
Student scalded hand with hot
water from drink; first aider
attended and ran hand under
cold water.
Lecturer struck hand against table
then started to feel dizzy. First
aider attended and dressed
finger, which was bleeding. Sat
down and made comfortable
until able to travel home and
arrange doctor’s appointment.
Student had not been well before
college but felt worse once on
campus. Student is asthmatic
and had forgotten her inhaler.
First aider attended and called an
ambulance as student felt dizzy,
ambulance took student to
hospital.

No further action
required.

3

Student referred to
student support to
discuss mental health
issues.
Same student as no 6
and 9. Referred to
student support.
No further action
required.

No further action
required.

20

20-Sep

accident

21

20-Sep

first aid

22

20-Sep

first aid

23

21-Sep

first aid

24

24-Sep

first aid

25

24-Sep

first aid

26

24-Sep

first aid
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Student was out of college at an
excite venue with class and
lecturer. She had been exercising
and was standing when she fell
forward onto the running track
causing a bleeding nose and chin.
The lecturer and xcite staff
provided first aid and student
was placed in the recovery
position until ambulance arrived.
Student who was diabetic was
taking a hypo, the first aider was
called, the student had taken
medicine and sat until felt better
to return to class.
Student was found outside sitting
on the ground by the first aider.
Student was feeling dizzy as had
not eaten anything, First aider
gave her food and drink, she was
also complaining of mild back
pain. Care assistant attended and
aided student back to class.
The student has epilepsy and a
comprehensive care plane is in
place, all first aiders are aware of
his condition. The first aider
attended and called for an
ambulance. The student came
round but did not want to go to
hospital. Parent came to collect
student and take home.
Student was having an asthma
attack and was short of breath,
first aider was called and student
asked to take inhaler. An
ambulance was called and she
was taken to hospital.
Student was on a break and
started to feel unwell, she went
to reception to ask for a first
aider, a first aider attended she
then took a seizure which lasted a
few minutes, student went home
in a taxi once she felt better.
Student was on a break and
walking when felt a pain in the
back and sat down, first aider was
called and student placed in a
wheel chair and taken home in a
taxi.
4

Student had not eaten
all day and had felt
dizzy. The lecturer
accompanied the
student to the hospital
until a parent arrived.
The student had broken
their jaw in two places.

Informed Schools officer
as student is 16 or
under

Student is in assisted
programmes and had a
care assistant assigned.

No further action
required.

The parent called the
college and asked to
inform all first aiders of
her condition and what
to do in future.
Same student as 6/9/17
Department are
creating a care plan for
this student.

Was not doing any
activity in class that
would result in back
pain. No further action
required.

27

25-Sep

accident

Student was using a hacksaw
when cut the top of her hand, a
first aider was called, pressure
and a dressing placed on hand.
Student was able to continue
with class.

28

26-Sep

sports injury

29

27-Sep

accident

30

27-Sep

first aid

Student was doing circuits and
felt a pain in his knee. The first
aider was called and the leg was
already elevated. An ice pack
was applied and student felt well
enough to continue with class
that was course work and not
physical.
Student grabbed a hammer from
another student and expected
some resistance, and as a result
hit her nose. Nose was bleeding
and lecturer applied a plaster to
the cut, was able to return to
class.
Student had hurt arm/shoulder in
the morning before coming to
college; a first aider was called as
she couldn’t move it. Arm was
placed in a sling and advised to go
to A+E if didn’t get any better

*Redacted under s.33 Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002
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5

Student had been show
how to use hand tools
correctly and retold
during class by
technician. The
technician was asked to
cover class, he had to
leave room, and he
asked another lecturer
in workshop to keep an
eye on class. When he
returned the student
had cut hand. Informed
Schools officer as was
16 or under.
Informed Schools officer
as student was 16 or
under.

Students shown how to
use tools correctly and
advised about
tomfoolery, informed
schools officer of
incident as student was
16 or under.
No further action
required.

Appendix 2 College Audit
The following department has been audited and results and actions are noted below:
Hospitality and Communities results of audit
Topic
Safe Place of work

Actions
actions

Detail
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Safe systems of work

actions

Work Equipment

action

Accident reporting and
investigation

actions

Health and Welfare
COSHH

actions

Information, instruction
and training
PPE

action

•

Update risk assessments store centrally
No record of Training
Safe working procedures to be displayed
Disposal of gas canister
Drip trays missing from extractors
Outstanding action from RA for fridge
Separate accident book being keep- all to be
centrally with H&S officer only
First aid boxes have items out of date
COSHH assessment overdue for review
Label flammable store
Chemicals stored not belonging to department
Dermatitis to be included in COSHH from
catering activities
All training on equipment to be recorded

actions

•

Records of PPE issue to be kept

•
•
•
•
•

Corrective Actions of Health and Safety Walk Around
T1 Construction and MV
Issues identified
completed

Additional information
Outstanding- 4 items have been ordered and awaiting
26 fitting. 2 items work in progress to be completed by
December.
20

Not completed
Outstanding
Responsibility

6

C&MV
Facilitties

App 2 H&S Quarterly July -Sept ’18
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About West Lothian College
West Lothian College is a regional college based in Livingston serving individuals,
local communities and the regional economy with a vision to develop a highly skilled
and enterprising workforce. The population of West Lothian is over 180,000 and
projected to increase by 11,000 by 2035. The region has one of the youngest and
fastest growing populations in Scotland.
In 2017-18 a total of 8,095 students attended the college, 28% on full time courses
and 72% part time. Reflecting demographic and economic demand, the number of
students attending the college has grown each year and the college has consistently
delivered above the target credit activity agreed with the Scottish Funding Council.
The college is a major employer in the region with 360 staff who mainly work at the
campus in Livingston, delivering a broad range of vocational courses through seven
curriculum centres and a centre for workforce development. Fifteen specialist staff
are dedicated to delivering the national training contract for 3,000 Children’s Hearing
Service panel members.
To upskill staff working in over 600 businesses in West Lothian and across Scotland,
the college delivers a broad range of Scottish Vocational Qualifications, primarily in
Social Care and Childhood Practice. In 2017, the college achieved STEM Assured
reaccreditation and established a Regional STEM Hub in 2018, building on its former
successful STEM Advisory Group.
Collaborative working is a particular strength of the college and it works in close
partnership with West Lothian Council, West Lothian Community Planning
Partnership and employers to deliver a curriculum offering that is relevant to industry
and provides students with the best possible learning pathways to achieve success
in a competitive jobs market. The college is a partner in the Edinburgh and South
East Scotland City Region Deal, seeking to maximise skills and employment
opportunities for the people of West Lothian. A range of well-established
international partnerships offers students and staff exciting opportunities to enhance
their learning through educational exchanges.
Based on a well-established school/college partnership agreement, the college
works with all eleven secondary schools in the region and, each year, provides over
400 senior phase school pupils with access to vocational qualifications, Highers and
Foundation Apprenticeships. The college was an early adopter of Foundation
Apprenticeships and delivered 80 starts in the period 2017-18, with an ambitious
target to deliver 194 in 2019-21.
The college’s Regional Outcome Agreement for 2018-21 sets out the key objectives
for the next three years.
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Evaluation Methodology
Evaluation activities throughout the year were based on Education Scotland’s quality
evaluation framework, How good is our college? Evaluation activities have been well
supported by Education Scotland and have included Board of Governor and college
management evaluation, individual curriculum and service team evaluations, whole
college evaluation, and student evaluation feedback gathered through the Student
Association SPARKLE evaluation tool and engagement with the SPARQS Student
Engagement evaluation framework for Scotland.
The Evaluative Report and Enhancement Plan is based on analysis of college wide
evaluation reports prepared over the year by curriculum and service managers and
staff teams. At course team level, trend analysis of key performance indicators for
student retention and attainment rates over three years was used to provide
quantitative evidence for evaluation along with additional data reports on student
retention and success by equalities characteristics and student destination analysis
reports.
At college level, performance indicator data was evaluated to show trends over a
three year period and in comparison with high benchmarks from published sector
averages.
Students are involved at all stages of evaluation and class ambassadors gather
feedback at course level from every class which is fed into the Student Association.
The Student Association produces SPARKLE evaluation reports from this data which
are then used by staff to inform improvements to learning and teaching practice and
general service delivery.
Employer and stakeholder engagement plays an important part in evaluation, and
proactive relationships are critical to the success of students in areas such as
childcare, construction and health and social care. Strategic discussions with all
head teachers across the region and the local authority are important in reviewing
and agreeing school-college provision.
Evaluation statements in this report are quantified using the Education Scotland
criteria noted in the table below:
Almost all
Most
Majority
Less than half
Few

Over 90%
75-90%
50-74%
15-49%
Up to 15%

This report is validated by a range of evidence listed in Annex C.
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The Student Voice
The college listens to and acts on feedback from our students. The Student
Association works in partnership with the college to operate a systematic annual
evaluation of learning and teaching and service delivery through their SPARKLE
model. The model sits as a separate and additional layer of student-led evaluation,
adding to the college-led student on-course evaluation survey and the Scottish
Funding Council Student Satisfaction and Engagement Survey.
Using SPARKLE, every class group is able to contribute to an evaluative discussion
twice in the academic year. The evaluative feedback from each class group is
collated and analysed by the Student Association and presented to the Student
Engagement Committee and to course teams through the Quality Compliance and
Learner Services Committee. Feedback is used at all levels to inform evaluation and
quality improvement.
Positively, the SPARKLE model has enabled the Student Association to gather more
feedback from students than in previous years. In 2017-18, the Student Association
found that engaging class representatives in a monthly evaluation event of this scale
was overly ambitious and led to inconsistencies in reporting where some
representatives did not gather data from classes. The college and the Student
Association are working together to reduce the volume of work involved and to
support classes with dedicated time to participate in SPARKLE for 2018-19.

Grade Outcomes
High Level Principle
Outcomes and Impact
Delivery of learning and services to support learning
Leadership and Quality Culture
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Proposed Grade
Good
Good
Good

Outcomes and Impact
3.1 Wellbeing, Equality and Inclusion
Areas of Positive Practice
Statutory Duties
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The college meets its duties under the general and specific duties of the Equality
Act and effectively promotes consideration of protected characteristic groups in
all aspects of college life and work through a range of staff and student
developments.
The college meets its legislative reporting requirements through review of the
Equalities Mainstreaming and Gender Pay Gap Report.
The Equalities Committee monitors and reports on progress of the Equalities
Action Plan to the Board of Governors.
The college monitors and reports on the staff experience through HR
representation on the Equalities Committee and a staff survey conducted in
2017-18 highlighted high levels of staff satisfaction and engagement.
An effective process of Equalities Impact Assessment is used to promote
consideration of the impact of college practices on individuals or groups with one
or more protected characteristics.
The Gender Action Plan is monitored and reported on at monthly meetings of the
Equalities Committee.
The college contributes positively to tackling inequalities at a regional level
through shared priorities of the West Lothian Community Planning Partnership
and the Developing the Young Workforce (DYW) regional group.
The college meets its duties as a corporate parent through a robust Corporate
Parenting Plan and effective engagement with external partners.
The Safeguarding team is an effective cross-college team that is well promoted to
students and staff. Staff on the Safeguarding team are qualified and trained to
properly address identified safeguarding concerns.

Inclusion and Equality
•
•

•
•
•

The college consistently promotes a positive culture of fairness and respect for
all.
Student diversity and success is recognised widely across the college and
celebrated through events including the graduation ceremony, Student of the
Month curriculum centre awards, Equalities Week, the Student Association
LGBTi Club, and hosting the annual West Lothian PRIDE march and rally.
The application process was reviewed in 2017 by Equate Scotland to remove
barriers for potential students with a protected characteristic.
The college has a robust process to assess and support the individual needs of
students with a protected characteristic. Student feedback describes the college
environment as welcoming and inclusive.
All students are encouraged to declare additional or support needs at enrolment
so that required support can be put in place at the earliest possible point in the
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•
•

•

•

•
•
•

learner journey. Increasingly, applicants are invited to declare needs prior to
enrolment.
In almost all cases, the College responds efficiently and effectively to requests for
additional support, ensuring that barriers to learning are removed through the
provision of appropriate and reasonable adjustments.
Sustained and effective efforts are made to identify students who are care
experienced or young carers to ensure that appropriate support is provided.
There were 61 declared care experienced students in 2017-18. Successful
outcomes for this group of students were 69% for FEFT and 67% for HEFT (just
3 students were enrolled on HEFT courses). Given that the SFC National
Ambition targets for care experienced students by 2018-19 are 66% success for
FEFT and 71% success for HEFT, the college is making good progress on
successful outcomes for FEFT students.
The college delivered 8.1% of credits to students living in SIMD10 areas,
exceeding our target of 6%. Successful outcomes for these students were
considerably higher than the college average for FEFT, FEPT and HEPT. Most
SIMD10 students were enrolled on FTFE courses and 80% achieved success,
significantly higher than the college average of 65.1%. Success on HEFT
courses, which had the smallest number of enrolments from SIMD10 students,
was 66%.
Student success is celebrated consistently throughout the year at a range
ceremonies, through the publication of case studies and dissemination on a
variety of digital and social media platforms, resulting in positive impact on the
wider community.
Flexible modes of study supported the vibrant West Lothian ESOL community,
and 330 students enrolled on ESOL courses in 2017-18, with a success rate of
74%.
The Student Association achieved 4 Stars for the Healthy Body, Healthy Mind
Award in 2017-18, reflecting the college’s high level of commitment to students’
health and wellbeing.
Staff and students maintain a respectful and inclusive culture through a
partnership approach to promote awareness and understanding of LGBTI, mental
health, period poverty and gender based violence.

Areas for development
•
•
•

While the Gender Action Plan promotes activity across all curriculum and service
areas, further action is required at course level to address gender imbalance on
traditionally male/female dominated courses.
There is an increased demand for support for the mental health problems faced
by students, placing considerable strain on both support and curriculum staff.
The college has not yet developed, in collaboration with students, an Equally
Safe strategic framework to prevent gender based violence on campus.
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3.2 Equity, Attainment and Achievement for all Learners
Areas of positive practice
Learner Success over time
•
•
•

In 2017-18, the college implemented a focused strategy to improve retention and
attainment for FE full time students which has had a positive impact in reversing
the previous downward trend.
Staff are knowledgeable about their students and understand the factors that
contribute to withdrawal and partial success.
Three year trends in performance are positive for all KPIs and summarised in the
table below:
West Lothian
College

FE full time (FEFT)
HE full time (HEFT)
FE part time (FEPT)
HE part time (HEPT)
•

•
•

•

•
•

2015-16
(SFC
published
figures)
64.1%
66.3%
70.6%
65.5%

2016-17
(SFC
published
figures)
61.9%
72.5%
77.7%
74.6%

2017-18
(College
figures)

Change
on year

Change
over 3
years

65.1%
70.1%
77.5%
80.6%

+3.2%
-2.4%
-0.2%
+6.0%

+1.0%
+3.8%
+6.9%
+15.1%

There has been improvement over three years in all four indicators. In FEFT
courses, this was a result of reducing partial success by 1.8% and improving
retention by 1.4%. In FEPT, withdrawals reduced from 8.9% to 7.4%. For HEPT
students, partial success reduced from 16.1% to 8.2% over the year. Conversely,
the contributory factors in declining successful outcomes for HEFT students were
increases over the year in partial success and withdrawals.
The focus on improving FEFT attainment over the year led to an increase of 3.2%
over the year. Based on 2016-17 sector figures, it is likely that the college will be
close to or just above the sector average for FEFT.
While there has been good improvement in HEFT over three years (up by 3.8%)
there was a decline over the year of -2.4%. It is likely, based on sector figures for
each of the last six years that the college might be below the sector average for
HEFT.
Success for part time FE and HE students increased over the year, despite
significant increases in the volume of students: from 2,657 to 2,900 FEPT
enrolments; and from 781 to 1,212 HEPT enrolments. FEPT success improved
by 6.9% over three years and HEPT success increased by 15.1% over three
years. Sector averages for FEPT and HEPT for 2016-17 were 77.1% and 78.6%
respectively, compared with West Lothian’s 2017-18 performance of 77.5% and
80.6%.
The Support for Learning team worked proactively with 147 students with
declared learning and guidance needs. These students achieved 67% completed
success in 2017-18, an increase of 10% on the previous year.
Just over half (51%) of full time students in 2017-18 were aged 16-19 and 17%
were 20-24 years old. This was markedly different for part time students, 68% of
whom were over the age of 25, reflecting the large volume of SVQs delivered to
employees in their workplace. Seventy per cent of full time FE and HE students
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•
•

•

•

•

were under the age of 25, while 57% of FE part time and 85% of HE part time
enrolments were over the age of 25.
41% of all students were aged 16-24 and had an overall success rate of 70%, an
increase of 3% on the previous year. Successful outcomes for full time FE
students aged 16-19 rose from 54% to 72% over the year.
In 2017-18, the college focused on reversing the downward trend in FE full time
student outcomes and, in particular, on improving the results of young male
students. Quality improvement plans were deployed effectively with the positive
impact of improving attainment by 3.1% for FEFT students. Successful outcomes
for FEFT 16-19 year old male students increased by 9% over the year.
Positive destinations for college leavers in 2016-17 was 97.3%, above the
national average of 95.0% and above almost all other college regions. Of these,
72.9% of students went on to further and higher level study, and 24.3% gained
employment.
In 2017-18, the college started a greatly increased number of modern
apprenticeships, including 77 contracted directly with SDS, and 138 subcontracted by industry bodies such as CITB and SECTT. Working in partnership
with SECTT and employers, the college offers a pre-apprentice course, where
successful full-time FE students move onto the 3 year apprenticeship.
In Carpentry and Joinery in 2017-18, 26 modern apprenticeships were delivered
with a 100% complete success rate, evidencing effective learning and teaching.
The increase in apprenticeship delivery has been a motivating factor for students,
and has impacted on FEFT success over the year, particularly amongst young
male students.

Essential Skills including skills for life and work
•

•

•

Most courses include a substantial work placement or realistic work experience,
and student feedback validates this as valuable preparation for employment. The
college has very effective arrangements for increasing and enhancing employer
engagement for this purpose.
Volunteering opportunities are available to students in all curriculum areas
through a strategic and targeted approach to our partnership with the West
Lothian Volunteer Network. In 2017-18, 139 students were recognised for their
positive work in volunteering.
A pilot in two curriculum areas, Childhood Practice and Sport and Fitness, to
implement an integrated, contextualised, project based approach to the delivery
of essential skills in 2017-18 achieved improved results for Communication and
ICT core skills units.

Equity for Learners
•
•

All students on the Women in STEM course in 2017-18 achieved positive
destinations.
A dedicated team of staff support students with learning or mental health needs.
In 2017-18, the college implemented a targeted guidance model of support for
learning for students on eighteen high risk FEFT courses, which removed barriers
to learning for vulnerable students and enabled staff to put early support
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•
•

mechanisms in place. 147 students were supported, including 115 FE full time
students, 67% of whom went on to achieve a successful outcome.
Project Search students achieved 100% success for the second consecutive year
and positive partnerships secured permanent, full time work for leavers.
The Independent Living course was revised and achieved significantly improved
success of 87%, an increase of 23% on the previous year. The New Directions
course was revised with increased volunteering opportunities for students, with
increasing success over two years.

Areas for development
•
•

•
•

Successful outcomes for FEFT increased in most curriculum areas across the
college, although there are a number of subject areas with success rates lower
than the college average.
While there has been good improvement in HEFT over three years (up 3.9%)
there was a decline over the year of -2.3%. Some curriculum areas improved
HEFT outcomes over the year, however, the majority experienced a decline in
student success. In particular, there was a significant drop in successful
outcomes for 16-24 year old female students.
Gender imbalances remain on traditionally male/female dominated courses and
there is insufficient evidence of gender actions being embedded at course team
level.
An integrated, contextualised model of essential skills delivery is not applied
consistently across the college.
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Delivery of Learning and Services to Support Learning

2.2 Curriculum
Rationale, design and development
•
•
•
•
•

National priorities such as Developing the Young Workforce (DYW), STEM, and
early years education are reflected in curriculum design and development.
The college supports the DYW national agenda well and in 2017-18 delivered
4,592 credits to school pupils at S3 or above against a target of 3,153.
The curriculum portfolio is reviewed annually for relevance using national and
regional labour market intelligence including Skills Investment Plans and the
Regional Skills Assessment to inform analysis and planning.
Operationally, there is a well-developed process of curriculum planning to ensure
the curriculum portfolio is informed by feedback from employers and schools.
In almost all curriculum centres, staff evaluate course design effectively and take
account of student feedback to make appropriate changes to course content,
scheduling and approaches to learning and teaching.

Effectiveness and appropriateness of the curriculum
•
•
•

•
•

The curriculum is well planned to ensure smooth transitions for students from
school to college to employment or further and higher levels of study.
Curriculum teams respond well to external drivers and, in almost all cases, adapt
the curriculum offering successfully to meet emerging needs.
Almost all curriculum centres have effective partnership arrangements with
employers and use these well to provide work related opportunities and
placements for students. More effective employer engagement in some
curriculum centres has led to significant improvement in successful outcomes for
students over the year.
Students and external partners are consulted on curriculum design and content
on the majority of courses. Feedback is used effectively to enhance the delivery
of teaching, scheduling and work placements.
62% of all enrolments were female, largely reflecting the high volume of part time
SVQs in health, social and childcare. There was a better balance of female/male
students studying full time qualifications, with 53% of HEFT students being
female and 47% male.

Skills for learning, life and work
•
•
•

In most courses, there is effective provision for students to engage in a
substantial placement or realistic work experience that supports knowledge and
skills development.
Award-winning international study exchanges for over 100 students build
confidence and prepare students well to take up further opportunities for learning
or employment.
In the majority of courses, students are able to plan and personalise their own
learning through flexible learning and project based study options.
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•

Students are supported to develop employability and career management skills
through Personal Development Planning units on FE full time courses,
engagement with employers, campus sessions with Skills Development Scotland,
and engagement with a Bridge2Business advisor.

Learning Pathways
•
•

•

In almost all subject areas, learning pathways are planned in consultation with
external partners including employers, schools and universities to provide
students with a range of entry and exit points.
The college has effective arrangements for articulation with university partners to
enable students to articulate with advanced standing from identified courses. The
learner journey is shortened for many HE students with direct entry into years two
and three of degree study. For example, the third year of BA Business is
delivered in the college to successful HND students.
Improved student outcomes have been achieved in subjects such as
Construction and Engineering where the learner journey has been planned to
include transition to apprenticeships. This has proved to be an important
motivating factor for full time FE students who are keen to progress to
apprenticeships.

Areas for development
•

•

While there is an established process of annual curriculum planning, a strategic
approach to a longer term review of the curriculum - informed by feedback from
employers, schools, the local authority and community planning partners - is
required to inform the operational planning process and ensure the college is
responding to the future skills needs of the region.
The gender balance on FEFT courses was 58% female and 42% male,
suggesting an imbalance in curriculum provision attractive to young male
students.

2.3 Learning, Teaching and Assessment
Areas of positive practice
Learning and engagement
•
•

Lesson observations involving almost all teaching staff demonstrated that most
lecturers use a range of learning methodologies that enable students to
personalise their learning and enhance engagement in coursework.
Most staff engage well with Student Association. Class ambassadors work well
with curriculum managers and staff to enhance the learning experience through
student feedback.

West Lothian College Evaluative Report 2017-18
10

Teaching
•
•

•
•

•
•

All course teams conduct robust equality impact assessments on learning,
teaching and assessment materials, ensuring approaches are fair and inclusive
and provide opportunities for all students to succeed.
The college has a robust process of teaching observations which evidence that
lecturers plan lessons well and employ a range of effective learning and teaching
approaches, which result in high levels of student engagement in the learning
experience. In 2017-18, 91% of lecturing staff participated in an observation and
there is a strong desire from staff to continue with these.
The majority of teaching rooms are well resourced and meet industry standards,
and the college estate is maintained through a planned rolling schedule of works.
Staff are highly skilled, subject experts who bring industry experience to the
learning experience. The college’s Workforce Plan recognises the challenges of
maintaining a highly skilled workforce and outlines steps to mitigate risks
associated with staff recruitment.
Staff use a range of teaching methodologies and contextualise learning to meet
different learning needs in most lessons.
There are effective processes to ensure that staff engage in career long
professional development opportunities to update industry knowledge and skills.
For example, staff in a range of curriculum areas participated in the CDN College
Expo 2018.

Assessment
•
•

Staff use a range of formative and summative assessment techniques to assess
progress and help students improve performance. In almost all cases, staff use
assessments effectively to promote learning and motivate students to attain.
Summative assessment is robust and staff maintain quality standards well. In
2017-18, the college achieved 57 external verification reports of high confidence
from a range of awarding bodies.

Evaluation of the learning experience
•
•
•
•

A well-established quality enhancement process supports the evaluation of the
learning experience on a college-wide basis and at team level.
Course teams engage well with the evaluation process and are committed to
quality improvement and enhancement of the overall learning experience. Staff
store evidence on Moodle to share best practice.
Progress on quality improvement plans is reviewed at course team meetings.
Curriculum staff have good knowledge of individual students and potential issues
that may impact on retention and overall attainment. They use course risk
assessment to identify students at risk at an early stage and work collaboratively
with support staff to put appropriate support in place.
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Areas for development
•
•
•
•

Curriculum staff carry out regular unit evaluations with individual classes to inform
operational delivery and improvement, but there is inconsistent involvement of
students in course team and evaluation meetings.
A lack of digital skills is impacting on some lecturers’ ability to make effective use
of new learning and assessment tools. While pockets of good practice are
evident, Moodle usage is inconsistent.
While the evaluation process is robust and well understood, there is insufficient
evidence of specific evaluation of learning and teaching approaches (pedagogy).
Targets for student success are not set at curriculum centre and course level.

2.4 Services to Support Learning
Management of services to support learning
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

All service teams work collaboratively with curriculum managers to ensure that
problems such as incorrect registers, attendance marking, results issues, and
appeals are resolved quickly and effectively to help students to remain on course.
College schools liaison staff work well in partnership with Heads and Depute
Heads of secondary schools to support senior phase pupils in the transition to
college.
Effective arrangements through the admissions, student advice and marketing
teams provide accessible information, advice and support for potential and
existing students.
The new online bursaries application process is fast, flexible and user friendly,
and enables bursaries to be put in place at the start of the session.
Good progress has been made over the year on improving the management
information system and performance data to enable more informed decision
making by managers.
Managers and staff work in partnership to ensure students are well supported to
make informed course choices and to develop career management skills.
The student induction process is well planned and provides all students with a
welcoming and consistent early course experience.

Services which contribute to achievement, attainment and progression
•
•
•

•
•

A dedicated Support for Learning team provides effective learning and guidance
support for students with a declared need.
A short term counselling service supports students with emotional and/or mental
health concerns.
The college works well in partnership with a range of external agencies such as
DeafAction, Breathing Space, West Lothian Drug and Alcohol Support, One
Parent Family Scotland, and Penumbra to ensure students are properly referred
and receive the right support at the right time.
The Student Association works well in partnership with the college to implement
initiatives that enhance the overall student experience.
The Student Association promotes volunteering opportunities which add value to
the learning experience and enable students to build essential skills.
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•
•
•

Staff in the Support for Learning and Student Funding teams provide highly
effective support for vulnerable students and are instrumental in keeping students
on course.
Finance staff are available on a drop-in basis for students who have financial
queries or who need immediate help. Hardship cases are identified and fast
tracked to discretionary funds, supporting students to stay on course.
STEM ambassadors in all curriculum centres, a cross-college STEM club and a
range of activity organised by the college’s STEM Advisory Group benefit
students in all curriculum areas.

Services which contribute to progression to a positive destination
•

•

•
•

The Employer Engagement team works effectively with over 500 employers to
identify and design appropriate work placements for college students. Almost all
courses have a work placement, volunteering opportunity or realistic work
experience. Curriculum and service staff work collaboratively to support students
to take up these opportunities
Effective articulation arrangements enable students to progress onto university
courses with advanced standing. For example, HND Computing students are
able to progress to third year in Computing or Computer Networking degrees at
Napier University.
Regular opportunities are available for students to engage in career management
planning with staff and a Skills Development Scotland advisor who is available to
students on campus twice a week.
Schools liaison staff, Foundation Apprenticeship staff and the Workforce
Development team work well with each other, and with all curriculum centres, to
facilitate student transitions from school into Foundation and Modern
Apprenticeships.

Areas for development
•
•
•
•

The college’s IT infrastructure does not fully meet the needs of students and is
impacting negatively on the quality of their experience at college.
Facilities in some teaching areas need to be updated to remain relevant to
industry and provide high quality learning experiences for students, for example
the training kitchens, construction and engineering workshops, and the gym.
The college has identified a need to improve social learning spaces as well as
more quiet study areas for students. More private spaces are required to support
the increasing number of vulnerable students who require one to one support.
An increasing number of students declaring mental health problems is placing a
considerable burden on support and curriculum staff.
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Leadership and Quality Culture

1.1 Governance and Leadership of Change
Governance and leadership
•
•
•

•

•

•
•

The Board of Governors provides clear strategic direction and effective
leadership for the college, as well as challenge and scrutiny to senior
management to effect change for the benefit of students.
The Board of Governors has a sound understanding of how well the college is
delivering on its strategic objectives and encourages senior management to
continue improve key performance indicators.
The Learner Attainment Sub Group, established by the Board of Governors,
exhibits strong leadership and robustly challenges the college to improve
performance, and to provide timely and accurate performance information to
enable strong and effective decision making. The sub group has identified issues
which have led to improvements in data, structures and attainment.
The Board has a strong focus on student success and, through the Learning and
Teaching committee, receives regular reports detailing progress towards targets
on student enrolments, student satisfaction, retention, performance indicators,
college leaver destination information, and external verification activity.
Board members place great value on student engagement and prioritise the work
of the Student Association at committee meetings. The Student Association is a
key partner and involved in all relevant Committees. Board members engage in
college and Student Association events, as well as in college-wide evaluation and
development events.
The Board conducts an independent evaluation of committee performance and
develops planned actions for improvement.
The Student Association structure was reviewed for 2017-18 to create the two full
time sabbatical posts of Student President and Vice President to provide stability
and improve engagement in college committees.

Developing a shared vision, values and aims
•
•
•

•

College values are understood and exhibited by all staff. Almost all managers act
as positive role models, exhibiting these values in leadership and management
activities.
Managers work effectively with Scottish Funding Council and Education Scotland
to create shared aims and targets through the development of the Outcome
Agreement and the Evaluative Report and Enhancement Plan.
The college management team participates in strategic planning events
throughout the year to develop the college vision and aims. The Opening Doors
campaign enabled managers to communicate a shared vision of the college’s
aspirations.
College strategies, such as the newly developed People Strategy, present a clear
vision and are developed collaboratively with the college management team.
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Planning for continuous improvement
•
•
•
•

The Senior Management team leads the college well, and provides direction for
curriculum and service managers to engage proactively with emerging national
priorities.
Almost all curriculum and service managers lead teams effectively and support
continuous improvement.
The college has a robust process to monitor, report and drive continuous
improvements through the college committee structure.
In 2017-18 there was significant investment in professional development of the
college management team, which culminated in the development and
presentation by managers of a three year vision for each curriculum centre.

Areas for development
•
•
•

A few teams do not involve the Student Association consistently and proactively
in operational activities.
While good progress has been made over the year to improve the quality of
management information, performance data is not yet available early enough to
support timeous and effective decision making.
Further work is required to develop the strategic capacity of college managers
and in the consistent management of poor performance.

1.4 Evaluation Leading to Improvement
Analysis and evaluation
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

All teams take very good account of DYW in evaluation and planning processes.
This has resulted in the introduction of new provision to support senior phase
vocational pathways.
In all cases, external verification reports are very positive with significant
strengths identified in the majority of curriculum areas.
The Student Association further developed the SPARKLE evaluation tool to
provide better quality feedback to inform improvements to learning, teaching and
assessment practices.
The college management team effectively leads on the deployment of the
QUILTS evaluation model and has engaged teams well in the evaluation process.
The systematic deployment of the teaching observations process in 2017-18 led
to healthy reflection on the effectiveness of teaching approaches.
Staff make good use of performance indicators, including unit and three year
results, to evaluate trends in student success and plan for improvement.
Improvement actions are developed from analysis across of performance
indicators, destination reports, student survey feedback and employer feedback.

Collaborative approaches to evaluation and data sharing
•

The college seeks feedback from students through a range of mechanisms
including face to face evaluation events and online surveys.
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•
•

Working collaboratively, the Student Association and staff produced a You Said,
We Delivered poster, reflecting actions taken in response to student feedback.
The college works effectively with external partners to share data, in line with
GDPR arrangements, to ensure we meet statutory reporting requirements.

Impact on students’ success and achievements
•
•

•

•

The impact of evaluation activity and improvement plans has been positive in
2017-18 with increased complete success rates in FEFT, FEPT and HEPT
indicators.
Students achieved success in external competitions in 2017-18, including a
Carpentry and Joinery student who won the final of the Skill Build 2017
competition, and a Beauty student who won a place in the World Skills Beauty
heats to participate in the finals in November 2018 in Birmingham.
Modern Apprentice students achieved very good outcomes, for example 100% of
year one Carpentry and Joinery apprentices achieved complete success and
year two apprentices achieved 95% complete success. Advanced Craft Modern
Apprenticeships achieved 100% complete success in 2017-18.
In 2017-18, 100 students participated in Erasmus-funded international student
exchange opportunities, all of whom achieved an accredited work experience unit
as an outcome from this.

Areas for development
•
•
•

While significant improvements have been made by the Student Systems team
on data capture and analysis, further improvements are required to ensure that
managers have access to real-time data for analysis and decision making.
Not all managers make effective use of external benchmarks, learning and
teaching observation feedback, and good practice in the sector to inform quality
improvement plans.
The process of evaluation does not, in all cases, use input from students
effectively to support evaluation at course team level and there is still a tendency
to focus on evaluating operational issues rather than on focused reflection on key
aspects of learning, teaching and assessment leading to improved student
outcomes.

West Lothian College Evaluative Report 2017-18
16

Capacity to Improve
West Lothian College has a strong quality culture and a motivated workforce who are
committed to going further and aiming higher for all students.
Over the year, the college reversed the downward trend in FE full time student
outcomes, and of young male students in particular, both of which saw good
improvement. However, while there was improvement in most subject areas, further
work is required to continue to improve FEFT outcomes. HEFT success declined
over the year, particularly amongst young female students, and this will be a priority
area for the college in 2018-19.
In 2017-18, managers led effectively on the implementation of a comprehensive
programmes of teaching observations, in which almost all teaching staff participated.
Lecturers are keen to continue with these observations and the college plans to build
on this to further support the evaluation of learning and teaching.
The college’s partnership arrangements with employers continue to be effective in
enhancing opportunities for students to succeed through work placements and this
contributed to improvement in attainment over the year. The college will build on
these relationships and on further engagement with employers to shape the
curriculum for 2019-22.
Managers and staff are encouraged to work as partners with the Student
Association, and empowered to make changes that improve the student experience.
However, the college recognises that this is not consistent across all curriculum
areas and this will be monitored closely over the year.
The quality and accessibility of performance data were improved over the year,
supporting managers to address downward trends in overall student outcomes and
in individual courses. However, the college recognises that there is still work to be
done to develop business intelligence systems that provide high quality, accurate
and real-time data to managers, staff and students. This improvement in systems will
need to be supported with development of all managers, so that they understand
how to access, interrogate and present the data available to them.
While the college estate is well-maintained, the college recognises that some areas
are no longer fit for purpose and require significant investment. The college has a
particular challenge with a dated and insecure IT infrastructure, with evidence that
the student experience is suffering as a result. Significant investment is required in
estate and IT to support successful student outcomes.
The college has demonstrated a clear capacity to improve through systematic
approaches to evaluating the quality of services, the implementation of effective
quality improvement actions, and the achievement of improved outcomes for
students.
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Annex A – Progress on the 2017-18 Enhancement Plan
The college made good progress on enhancement plan actions identified in the
October 2017 Evaluative Report.
A key action centred on leadership of quality improvements leading to improved
learning and teaching practice. In all curriculum centres, managers led quality
improvement plans which were robustly monitored for progress on outcomes. There
is early evidence that this process has encouraged staff to share teaching practices
within and across course teams which is being further developed in 2018-19.
There was a high level of team engagement in evaluation activities throughout the
year, supported by Education Scotland, completing actions on embedding the
Quality Improvements in Learning, Teaching and Services (QUILTS) evaluation
methodology.
With regard to curriculum design, good progress has been made in all curriculum
centres to review the curriculum offering and course design with resulting significant
achievements in complete success. In addition, service teams have progressed
actions on systems developments and carried out quality improvements that have
improved data reporting and supported improved evaluation.
Most actions in the 2017-18 Enhancement Plan have been achieved, with the
following areas of work continuing into 2018-21:
•
•
•
•

Evaluation of learning and teaching practice leading to improvement for students
Employer engagement to inform curriculum design and learning and teaching
approaches
Curriculum design and planning
Data systems development

These actions will continue to be progressed and monitored through the
Enhancement Plan for 2018-21.
Arrangements for monitoring progress on the 2018-21 Enhancement Plan
actions
The Enhancement Plan will be monitored and reported on by the Head of Service
Quality and Learner Services to Senior Management.
Enhancement Plan actions will be linked to Outcome Agreement targets and
integrated into the college operational planning process to produce one plan
incorporating actions for improvement.
Monthly progress will be reviewed through the Curriculum and Quality and Learner
Services Committees and quarterly progress updates reported to the Senior
Management team, the Board of Governors Learning and Teaching Committee, and
the college’s Curriculum Committee.
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Annex B - Performance against National Measures
2017/18 Targets displayed in brackets (where applicable) below actuals.
Measure 1- Core credits delivered against target Credit delivery for 16-19, 2024, SIMD10, Protected Characteristics

1a

1b(i)
1b(ii)

1c

1d

Total credits delivered
2017-18
2016-17
2015-16

Credits delivered to students
aged 16-19 and 20-24
Credits delivered to full-time
students aged 16-19 and
20-24
Credits delivered to students
in the most deprived 10%
postcode areas
Credits delivered to students
from different protected
characteristic groups:
White
Mixed
Asian
Black
Other
BME
Disability
Care experienced

Target

Actual

Difference

43988
43499
43088

45326
44085
44391

1393
586
1303

2017-18
# Credits
25641
(26534)

2017-18
%age
57%
(60.3)

2016-17
# Credits

2016-17
%age

25673

58.2%

21501
(21600)

67.8%
(50)

21500

48.8%

3,640
(2610)

8.03%
(6)

2,362

5.32%

43538
236
648
575
209
1569
(1522)
7622
(8700)
576

95.9%
0.5%
1.43%
1.3%
0.5%
3.5%
(3.5)
16.8%
(20)
1.3%

42440
149
800
457
215

96.3%
0.3%
1.8%
1%
0.5%

1566

3.6%

7528

17.1%

1382

3.1%

Measure 2 – Credit delivery for Senior Phase, SHEP and S3

2a

2b

Number of senior phase age
school pupils studying vocational
qualifications

Credits delivered to senior
phase age pupils studying
vocational qualifications

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

245
(339)

195

81

2017-18
# Credits

2017-18
%age

2016-17
# Credits

2016-17
%age

986
(1356)

2.2%

1023

2.3%
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2c

2d

Credits delivered to learners
at S3 and above as part of
school college provision
Credits delivered at HE level
to learners from SHEP
schools

1999
(1685)

4.4%

2622

5.9%

1775
(728)

3.9%

1465

3.3%

2017-18
# Credits
10093
(10932)

2017-18
%age
22.3%
(25.6)

2016-17
# Credits

2016-17
%age

11592

26.3%

Measure 3 – Credit delivery for STEM

3

Credits delivered to learners
enrolled on STEM courses

Measure 4 – Proportion of students successfully achieving a recognised
qualification

FE full time
FE part time
4a
HE full time
HE part time

4b

Part time

4d

4e

2016-17
61.9%

2015-16
64.1%

77.7%

74.6%

72.5%

66.3%

74.6%

65.5%

121
(77.7%)
68 (78.1)

120
(77.9%)

105 (72.4%)

256
(82.8%)
78 (72.2)
277
(69.5%)
(n/a)

184 (76%)

162 (71%)

259
(64.3%)

186 (54.1%)

20 (71%)
(n/a)

73 (64.4%)

28 (77.8%)

588
(71.9%)
(n/a)

522
(68.3%)

652 (73.6%)

Proportion of enrolled MD10
students successfully achieving a
recognised qualification

Full time

4c

2017-18
65.4%
(66)
78.2%
(75)
69.8%
(73)
78.1%
(75)

Proportion of senior phase age
pupils successfully completing a
vocational qualification
Proportion of full time enrolled care
experienced students successfully
achieving a recognised qualification
Proportion of full time FE enrolled
students aged 16-19 successfully
achieving a recognised qualification
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Measure 5 – Apprenticeship starts

5

2017-18
138
(70)

Number of apprenticeships starts

2016-17

2015-16

92

48

Measure 6 – Learners with work placement or work experience opportunities

6

Number of full time learners with
“work placement experience” as part
their programme of study

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

224
(721)

n/a

n/a

Measure 7 – Learners who articulate to university with advanced standing
2017-18

7

2016-17

2015-16

Number and proportion of
successful learners who have
achieved HNC or HND qualifications
articulating to degree level courses
with advanced standing

Measure 8 – Learners with a positive destination after qualifying

8

Number and proportion of full-time
college qualifiers in work, training
and/or further study 3-6 months
after qualifying

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

Not yet
available

97%

96%

Measure 9 – Learner satisfaction with college experience

9

The percentage of students overall,
satisfied with their college
experience

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

92.8%

90.5%

88%

2017-18
Data not
yet
available

2016-17

2015-16

2,369
tCO 2 e

2,813 tCO 2 e

Measure 10 – Gross carbon footprint

10

Gross carbon footprint
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Annex C - Evaluation Evidence Base
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

College KPIs for 2017-18
Equalities Committee Action Plan 2017-18
Gender Action Plan 2017-18
Board of Governors Evaluation Report 2017-18
College management team evaluation event feedback August 2018
Curriculum centre and service teams self-evaluation reports and action plans for
2017-18
Education Scotland external engagement feedback 2017-18
Scottish Funding Council Statistical Performance Indicator Report 2016-17
West Lothian College Internal Destination Reports (FE & HE) 2017
Scottish Funding Council Student Satisfaction and Engagement Survey 2017
Student Association Reports 2017-18
Employer Engagement Report 2017-18
STEM Advisory Group minutes of meetings 2017-18
Scott Moncrieff Internal Audit Reports 2017-18
Awarding bodies External Systems and External Verification Reports 2017-18
Schools Report 2017-18
QUILTS Course Team evidence
QUILTS Teaching Observation records
School Leavers Destination Report 2016-17
Student Association SPARKLE Evaluation of Learning and Teaching Reports
Student Association SPARQS Evaluation Report
Student On Course Evaluation Survey Feedback
Internal Student Systems Data Reports
World Café whole staff evaluation event feedback August 2018
Curriculum team employer engagement feedback 2017-18
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Annex D – 2018-21 Enhancement Plan
Key Area for Development: Data Quality and Usage
Strategic Action
Improve real time data
quality, accuracy and
availability for effective
decision making and
consistent reporting and to
enable self-service

Strategic
Lead
Vice Principal
Finance and
Curriculum/
Student
Systems
Manager

Milestone actions 2018-19

Milestone actions 201920
Improved data quality and
real time data reporting in
place by Dec 2019

Milestone actions 202021
Further improve data
quality and real time data
reporting by Dec 2020

Further develop internal staff
capability to manipulate
system for improved data
reporting by June 2019

Pilot Staff Advantage by
June 2020

Roll out Staff Advantage to
all staff by June 2021

Pilot Student Advantage by
Feb 2019

Roll out Student
Advantage to all students
by June 2020

Evaluate impact of
Student Advantage on
retention and attainment
by June 2021

Further develop Unit-e
functionality by June 2019

Roll out PowerBi dashboard
by June 2019

Examine the student
experience and Performance
Indicators to understand the
impact of gender and
intersectionality

Curriculum
Managers

Effectively use performance
data to analyse young female
HEFT student outcomes and
to inform quality
improvements by June 2019
Effectively use performance
data to evaluate the course
offering to actively improve
gender balance by meeting
gender targets for student
recruitment by June 2019
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QI
2.2

Evaluate data quality and
reporting by June 2020
Proactively understand the
student population with
regard to gender
intersectionality issues
and how we work with
these students by June
2020

Use intelligence to inform
curriculum and gender
action planning by June
2021

3.2

Drive increased student
participation in internal and
external surveys to improve
strategic reporting

Vice Principal
Curriculum
and
Enterprise

Integrated Student
Satisfaction and Engagement
Survey into the College
Student On Course
Evaluation Survey by Nov
2018
Roll out revised, integrated
survey to students by Feb
2019

Plan to involve the Student
Association in strategic
groups to improve
consistency of evaluation of
data

Vice Principal
Curriculum
and Planning

Student Association to
participate in monthly
meetings with the Principal
by June 2019
Student Association to be
part of the membership of the
quarterly steering group with
the Scottish Funding Council,
the College and the Student
Association.

Strategic and operational
planning processes to be
reviewed and strengthened
to improve the use of data
analytics in decision making.

Vice Principal
Curriculum
and
Planning/
Curriculum
Managers/
Student

The Student Engagement
Committee should meet
quarterly with Student
Association representation by
June 2019
Student Systems to improve
availability of data analytics
and SFC PI slicer tool to
managers by Dec 2019
Curriculum Managers to
utilise data analytics to inform
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Evaluate response rate
achieved by August 2019

Evaluate response rate
achieved by August 2020

2.4

Plan to drive increased
response rate by Nov
2019

Plan to drive increased
response rate by Nov
2020

Student Association to
participate in monthly
meetings with the Principal
by June 2020

Student Association to
1.1
participate in monthly
meetings with the Principal
by June 2021

The Student Engagement
Committee should meet
quarterly with Student
Association representation
by June 2020

The Student Engagement
Committee should meet
quarterly with Student
Association representation
by June 2021

Data analytics and SFC PI
statistical analysis to be
proactively used to inform
strategic and operational
planning by June 2020

Data analytics and SFC PI
statistical analysis to be
proactively used to inform
strategic and operational
planning by June 2021

1.4

Systems
Manager

operational curriculum
planning and PI analysis by
June 2019
Strategic planning process to
proactively use data analytics
and sector benchmarks to
inform decision making by
June 2019

Key Area for Development: Curriculum Planning and Portfolio Review
Strategic Action
Develop a balanced
curriculum plan to embed the
gender action plan at course
level and address
imbalances in gender
focused course offerings and
to understand gender
intersectionality

Strategic
Lead
Vice Principal
Curriculum
and Planning

Milestone actions 2018-19

Milestone actions 201920
Analyse impact of gender
actions on recruitment by
May 2019

Milestone actions 202021
Analyse impact of gender
actions on course
recruitment by May 2020

Develop curriculum plan
2019-20 by Dec 2018

Review gender actions for
curriculum planning by
June 2019

Review gender actions for
curriculum planning by
June 2020

Effectively use performance
data to analyse young male
student outcomes and to
inform quality improvements
by June 2019

Curriculum planning for
2020-21 completed by Oct
2019

Curriculum planning for
2021-22 completed by Oct
2020

Include identified gender
specific courses in the
curriculum plan by June
2020

Include identified gender
specific courses in the
curriculum plan by June
2020

Curriculum planning event to
include gender actions by
Nov 2018

Proactively understand the
student population with
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QI
3.1

Carry out a fundamental
review of overall STEM
provision within the
Curriculum Portfolio

Heads of
Service

Ensure that the West Lothian
STEM Hub includes gender
imbalance as a key priority
Deliver a Women into STEM
course in Jan 2019

Establish Centre Gender
Champions from male/female
staff by June 2019
Support partner organisations
to promote gender neutral
career management
decisions in young people
and to promote events such
as Girls mean Business by
Oct 2019
Ensure the Equalities
Committee leads on gender
related activities by June
2019
Build on the college’s work
on encouraging girls and
women into sports.
Develop a campaign to
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regard to gender
intersectionality issues
and how we work with
these students by June
2020
Utilise Centre Gender
Champions to promote
STEM and other courses
in schools.
Evaluate impact of STEM
Hub and Equalities Action
plans by June 2019
Work with SHEP schools
to raise awareness of
STEM and other careers
by June 2019

Evaluate impact of STEM
Hub and Equalities action
plans by June 2020

3.2

recruit men into childcare.
Develop a campaign to
recruit men into health and
social care.
Adapt the College model for
a consistent approach to
Essential Skills delivery

Head of
Service

Evaluate impact of current
model on selected courses
by June 2019

Develop an adapted
model for Essential Skills
delivery in 2020-21

Implement adapted model
by August 2020

3.2

Establish a curriculum
planning and design process
driven by government
priorities, labour market need
and informed by employer
engagement

Vice Principal
Curriculum
and Planning

Plan the college
management team schedule
to include two curriculum
strategy planning events by
Oct 2018

Conduct one curriculum
strategy planning event by
Oct 2019

Conduct one curriculum
strategy planning event by
Oct 2020

2.2

Implement curriculum
change by Nov 2019

Implement curriculum
change by Nov 2020

Roll out employer
engagement plan by Dec
2019

Roll out employer
engagement plan by Dec
2020

Utilise feedback and
evaluation from Employer
engagement to inform
curriculum planning

Utilise feedback and
evaluation from Employer
engagement to inform
curriculum planning

Improve validated
approaches to evaluation
and curriculum planning
through working with
employers

Curriculum
Managers

Conduct one curriculum
strategy planning event by
Nov 2018 and build change
into the curriculum plan for
2019-20
Establish an employer
engagement plan by Dec
2018
Hold one Employer
engagement event by June
2019
Build on the College’s
Strategic Partnership with
West Lothian Chamber of
Commerce and Federation of
Small Businesses to ensure a
coherent approach
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2.2

Develop a consistent model
to ensure effective and
shortened learner journeys

Vice Principal
Curriculum
and
Planning/
Curriculum
Managers

Build on our partnership with
the DYW Regional Group to
coherently engage with
employers
Review articulation
partnership agreements with
external College and
University partners by June
2019
Review advanced standing
arrangements with external
partners by June 2019
Draft current learner journeys
in all curriculum centres by
June 2019

Key Area for Development: IT Infrastructure and Estates Development
Strategic Action
Strategic
Milestone actions 2018-19
Lead
Develop the Estate to
Vice Principal Carry out consultation
provide fit for purpose
Finance and
exercise with curriculum and
teaching, quiet and social
Curriculum/
service centres by Nov 2018
spaces for students
Facilities
Manager
Work up a Business Case for
complete refurbishment of
Street Building to enhance
the student experience.
Develop a 3 year Estates
Plan by Feb 2019
Estates Plan to be deployed
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Develop a Learner
Journey Action Plan to
reduce learner journeys in
three curriculum centres
by Dec 2019

Develop a Learner
Journey Action Plan to
reduce learner journeys in
three curriculum centres
by Dec 2020

Re-negotiate articulation
and advanced standing
arrangements with
external college and
University partners in light
of revised learner journeys
by June 2020

Re-negotiate articulation
and advanced standing
arrangements with
external college and
University partners in light
of revised learner journeys
by June 2021

Milestone actions 201920
Carry out planned
improvements in the
estate and teaching and
learning facilities by June
2020

Milestone actions 202021
Carry out planned
improvements in the
estate and teaching and
learning facilities by June
2021

2.2

QI
2.4

Further develop flexible
learning opportunities for
staff and students through
Moodle

Develop the IT Infrastructure
to improve the IT offering
and enable digital learning

Head of
Service/ IT
Depute
Manager/
Curriculum
Managers

Vice Principal
Finance and
Curriculum/
IT Depute
Manager

by June 2019 subject to
funding availability
Ensure IT Infrastructure is in
place to support Moodle
development
Develop Moodle strategy by
June 2019 in partnership with
curriculum centres and the
Student Association
Develop a Strategy for a fit
for purpose IT Infrastructure.

Build Moodle options for
students in line with
revised curriculum
strategy and planning by
Dec 2019

Evaluate impact of Moodle
development strategy on
student attainment by
June 2020

2.3

Implement Infrastructure
plan by Dec 2020 subject
to availability of funding.

Review and evaluate
progress on IT
infrastructure
developments by June
2021

2.4

Milestone actions 201920
Review the FE portfolio
offering for 2020-21 by
Dec 2019

Milestone actions 202021
Review the FE portfolio
offering for 2021-22 by
Dec 2020

QI

Analyse impact of revised
FE course framework on
retention and attainment
by Dec 2019

Analyse impact of revised
FE course framework on
retention and attainment
by Dec 2020

Review the shared services
agreement with West Lothian
Council by March 2019
Develop the IT Strategy and
Plan for 2018-2021 by June
2019

Key Area for Development: Attainment
Strategic Action
Strategic Lead

Milestone actions 2018-19

Develop a revised and
consistently applied model
for FE delivery

Review the FE portfolio
offering for 2019-20 by Dec
2018

Vice Principal
Curriculum and
Planning

Review the FE course
framework structure by Dec
2018 to inform a revised
delivery model for 2019-20
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3.2

Develop a delivery model for
core skills and generic units.

Prepare students better for
self-directed study options

Restructure and strengthen
the delivery model for the
HE curriculum to
consistently improve
attainment

Vice Principal
Curriculum and
Planning

Analyse impact of revised
FE delivery model on
retention and attainment
by Dec 2019

Analyse impact of revised
FE delivery model on
retention and attainment
by Dec 2019

Introduce 2 units for
online delivery by Dec
2019

Evaluate impact of on-line
delivery on retention and
attainment by Dec 2020

Prepare students better to
progress onto HE courses.

Evaluate progression to
HE from FE courses by
Dec 2019

Continue to focus on
improving retention through
course risk assessment by
Dec 2018

Continue to focus on
improving retention
through course risk by
Dec 2019

Continue to focus on
improved outcomes for
young male learners by June
2019 through effective
evaluation of performance
data
Review the HN portfolio
offering for 2019-20 by Dec
2018

Effectively use
performance data to
ensure improved
outcomes for young male
learners by June 2020

Investigate the introduction
of a support element for HE
courses most at risk by June
2019
West Lothian College Evaluative Report 2017-18
30

Evaluate progression to
HE from FE courses by
Dec 2019
Continue to focus on
improving retention
through course risk by
Dec 2020
Effectively use
performance data to
ensure improved
outcomes for young male
learners by June 2021

Adopt new generation HN
course methodologies by
June 2020

Upskill staff to deliver new
generation HN standards
by Dec 2021

Explore a model to extend
Support for Learning
guidance model to
identified HN courses by
August 2020

Roll out an identified
Support for Learning
guidance model to all HN
courses by June 2021

3.2

Develop a proactive
strategic partnership with
centre heads to ensure the
most effective use of
Support for Learning
resources

All Curriculum Centres to
consistently enhance their
partnership with the Student
Association

Head of
Service/
Curriculum
Managers

Upskill staff on quality
standards to deliver new
generation HN qualifications
by June 2019

Develop learning and
development plan to
include future skills and
reinforce the Workforce
Plan by June 2020

Consult with internal and
external partners to inform
development of a consistent
approach by Dec 2018

Roll out a revised
guidance model to
identified courses by Sept
2019

Evaluate impact of
revised model on
retention and attainment
by June 2021

3.2

Evaluate impact of
revised model on
retention and attainment
by June 2020
Course Team Meeting
agenda to include
consistent evaluation of
learning and teaching
approaches by Dec 2019

Course Team Meeting
agenda to include
consistent evaluation of
learning and teaching
approaches by Dec 2020

2.3

Ensure evaluation of
learning and teaching
approaches inform quality
improvement plans by
June 2019

Ensure evaluation of
learning and teaching
approaches inform quality
improvement plans by
June 2020

Evaluate impact of the
strategy by June 2020

Redevelop the strategy
for 2021-23 by June 2021

Evaluate impact of current
model on retention and
attainment by June 2019

Curriculum
Managers

Course Team Meeting
agenda to include consistent
evaluation of learning and
teaching approaches by Dec
2018

Enhance the model for
Course Team meetings to
include a regular focus for
sharing best practice and
evaluation of learning and
teaching approaches by Feb
2019
Develop a College wide
Health and Wellbeing
Strategy for 2018-21 that

Head of
Work in partnership with the
Service/Student Student Association to
Association
develop a Strategy by Dec
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2.4

includes actions to address
gender based violence.

President

2018
Establish a short life working
group to progress a Gender
Based Violence action plan
by March 2019

Establish ourselves as an
ACES Aware college by Feb
2019

Student Association to
achieve Healthy Body,
Healthy Mind 5 Stars by
June 2019
Develop a plan for a
consistent approach to
improving Learner
Attainment

Head of
Service

Work with Course teams to
ensure there is learner
representation at all
evaluation meetings by Dec
2018
Work with Course teams to
ensure course team minutes
reflect robust evaluation of
learning and teaching
practice by June 2019
Engage with schools
validated self evaluation
process to inform Learner
Attainment Plan
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Evaluate and review
progress on the action
plan by August 2020

Evaluate and review
progress on the action
plan by August 2021

Evaluate impact of ACES
aware activity on retention
and attainment by June
2020

Evaluate the impact of
ACES aware activity on
retention and attainment
by June 2021

Review impact of Healthy
Body, Healthy Mind
project by June 2020

Roll out Learner
Attainment Plan for 201920 cohort of learners
Conduct internal audit of
course team minutes for
evidence of evaluation of
learning and teaching
approaches by June 2020

Review impact of Learner
Attainment Plan on
performance by June
2020

Conduct internal audit of
course team minutes for
evidence of evaluation of
learning and teaching
approaches by June 2021

3.2

Consult with managers, staff
and learners to develop a
College Learner Attainment
Plan by March 2019
Conduct staff briefings on
implementation of the
Learner Attainment Plan by
May 2019
Develop a college wide
Learning and Development
plan to include digital
upskilling for staff

Improve learning and
teaching approaches
through building on the
process of Teaching
Observations

Head of
Service

Head of
Service/
Curriculum
Managers

Carry out Centre training
needs analyses to consult
with staff and inform
planning by Oct 2018
Develop a college wide
Learning and Development
plan, taking account of the
Workforce Plan, by June
2019
Develop a Learning and
Teaching evaluation plan by
June 2019

Establish outputs to be
achieved from teaching
observations by June 2019
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Implement college wide
training plan by June
2020

Evaluate college wide
training plan by Dec 2020

2.3

Implement the evaluation
of learning and teaching
plan by August 2020

Evaluate outputs from
evaluation of learning and
teaching plan by June
2021

2.3

Evaluate impact of
outputs from teaching
observations by June
2020

Action: To Approve
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Board of Governors
Remuneration Committee Remit Review
The Remuneration Committee remit was last reviewed in June 2017 and it has been
agreed that the remit should be reviewed on an annual basis.
No changes are recommended at this review.
The remit of the Committee was recommended for approval by the Board at the last
Remuneration Committee meeting on 18 September 2018.

Action
The Board is asked to approve the Remuneration Committee Remit.

Karine McNair
Secretary to the Board of Governors
11 December 2018

BoG /111218/iShare

BOARD OF GOVERNORS
TERMS OF REFERENCE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Review cycle

1 year

Last Reviewed by the Board of Governors

December 2018

Last Approved by the Board of Governors

December 2018

Date of next review

December 2019

RemCom/180918/USB

Board of Governors
Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference
CONSTITUTION AND MEMBERSHIP
1. The Board shall establish a Committee of the Board to be known as the
Remuneration Committee.
2. The Committee and its Chair will be appointed by the Board and will consist of
Members with no executive responsibility for the management of the College.
Membership of the Committee will comprise –
•
•
•

Chair of Remuneration Committee – Vice-Chair, Board of Governors;
Chair, Board of Governors; and
Chairs of the Board Committees.

3. The Principal shall not be a member of the Committee.
4. The Committee may, if it considers it necessary or desirable, co-opt members
with particular expertise.
5. A quorum shall be one half of the Members entitled to vote on the question
before the meeting.
AUTHORITY
6. The Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate any activity within its
terms of reference. It is authorised to seek any information it requires from
any employee and all employees are directed to co-operate with any requests
made by Members.
7. The Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain independent professional
advice, with any costs of such advice to be paid for by the College, and to
secure the attendance of non-members with relevant experience and
expertise if it considers this necessary.
PROCEEDINGS

8. The Committee shall meet as required, but, normally, at least once per year.
9. The Principal will normally be in attendance, except for matters relating to her
salary or terms and conditions of employment.
10. The Secretary to the Board shall act as the Clerk to the Committee.

RemCom/180918/USB

DUTIES

11. The Committee shall consider and agree the salaries of the members of the
senior management team (which includes the Principal) and the managers
within the pay envelope for all salary awards agreed by the Finance and
General Purposes Committee as part of its consideration of the College
budget for the year.
12. The Committee shall take account of the following –
a) that the senior management team and managers should be fairly rewarded
for their performance and contribution to the College’s overall performance;
b) where, in terms of senior management team and managers’ remuneration,
the College stands in relation to other comparable institutions in the sector;
c) the relationship between the remuneration of the senior management team
and managers and that of other employees of the College;
d) the benefits granted to the senior management team and managers; and
e) the adequacy of pension arrangements and also the cost implication of
pension arrangements, including the pension effect of remuneration
proposals.
Reporting Procedures
13. The Committee shall provide the minutes of its meetings to the Board.
14. The Committee shall highlight any matter which it feels is of particular
importance to the Board.

RemCom/180918/USB

Action: To Approve
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Board of Governors
Nominations Committee Remit Review
The Nominations Committee remit was last reviewed in June 2017 and it has been
agreed that the remit should be reviewed on an annual basis.
No changes are recommended at this review.
The remit of the Committee was recommended for approval by the Board at the last
Nominations Committee meeting on 18 September 2018.

Action
The Board is asked to approve the Nominations Committee Remit.

Karine McNair
Secretary to the Board of Governors
11 December 2018

BoG /111218/iShare

BOARD OF GOVERNORS
TERMS OF REFERENCE
NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Review cycle

1 year

Last Reviewed by the Board of Governors

December 2018

Last Approved by the Board of Governors

December 2018

Date of next review

December 2019

Board of Governors
Nominations Committee
Terms of Reference
CONSTITUTION AND MEMBERSHIP
1. The Board shall establish a Committee of the Board to be known as the
Nominations Committee.
2. The Committee and its Chair will be appointed by the Board and will consist of
Members with no executive responsibility for the management of the College.
Membership will comprise –
•
•
•

Chair
Vice-Chair; and
Chairs of the Board Committees.

3. A quorum shall be one half of the Members entitled to vote upon the question
before the meeting.
4. The Committee may, if it considers it necessary or desirable, co-opt members
with particular expertise and/or form sub-committees, if required.
AUTHORITY
5. The Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate any activity within its
Terms of Reference. It is authorised to seek any information it requires from
any employee and all employees are directed to co-operate with any request
made by the Committee.
6. The Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain independent professional
advice, with any costs of such advice to be paid for by the College, and to
secure the attendance of non-members with relevant experience and
expertise if it considers this necessary.
PROCEEDINGS
7. The Committee shall meet as required, but, normally, at least once per year.
8. The Chair of the Board shall be the Chair of the Committee.
9. The Secretary to the Board shall act as the Clerk to the Committee.
10. The Principal shall not be a member of the Committee but may support the
Committee as required, in attendance.

DUTIES
11. The duties of the Committee shall include –
•

maintaining an overview of the membership and skills mix of the Board;

•

keeping the membership of Committees under review and proposing
changes as required;

•

overseeing the process to fill any vacancies on the Board taking account
of Ministerial Guidance and all relevant equality and diversity legislation
and guidance; and recommending appointments for the approval of
Scottish Ministers;

•

developing and recommending to the Board policies and procedures for
the induction and development of Board members;

•

maintaining an overview of Board member attendance at Board and
Committee meetings, participation in induction training, and participation in
the appraisal cycle;

•

advising the Board if a member no longer meets the eligibility criteria for
Board membership, and recommending removal;

•

advising the Board on any requests from members to be absent for a
period over six consecutive months; and recommending removal of a
Board member if they have been absent for more than six consecutive
months without permission of the Board;

•

considering any potential breaches by Board members of the Model Code
of Conduct and advising the Board accordingly;

•

advising the Chair where concerns arise about the ability of a member to
fulfil their duties and recommending removal of a Board member if such
concerns remain;

•

advising the Board on matters concerning the appointment and terms and
conditions of the Board Secretary; and

•

advising the Board on matters relating to governance.

Reporting Procedures
12. The Committee shall provide the minutes of its meetings to the Board.
13. The Committee shall highlight any matter which it feels is of particular
importance to the Board.

Action: For Information
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Board of Governors
The Board approved the Board Development Plan for 2018-19 at the meeting on
19 June 2018.
The Plan includes action points to:
•

Include the Board Development Plan as a regular Board agenda item; and

•

Maintain the Board Development Plan as a live document following
discussion and input at Board and other meetings

Update of the plan is attached.

Karine McNair
Secretary to the Board of Governors
11 December 2018
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1

West Lothian College Board Development Plan June 2018 – May 2019
No.

Action

Planned delivery

When /how delivered:

Increased organisational knowledge; improved transparency & visibility; ensuring the learner voice is central to decision making
1.1

Focus on learning and teaching issues at Board meetings including campus visits,
presentations, structured discussions

50% of Board meetings

23.08.18 LASG presentation

1.2

Include campus visits to Committee meetings

1 visit a year per
committee

22.11.18 F&GP NHS Hub
03.12.18 L&T – Collaborative
Classroom

25% of members a year 1

25.10.18 – TB (LASG)
25.10.18 – MN & NR (L&TC)

•
1.3

identifying whether most beneficial to be at the start or end of meeting

Board Members sit in on other Committee meetings
•

Currently 18.75%

open invitation issued at each Board Meeting as a prompt

1.4

Organise opportunities for Board members to meet with SA President & Vice
Presidents

1 formal meeting a year

1.5

Increase diversity of methods used to share news about work of the Board
including staff newsletter, social media

Ongoing; 2 x updates on
progress a year

1.6

Arrange for one meeting (e.g. Committee, Board, away day, strategic discussion)
to take place in a Partnership Centre in West Lothian

One meeting a year Audit Committee
planning

1

College Newsletter – Dec 2018

Excluding Chair & Principal (Chair attends L&TC regularly but best practice not to attend Audit; Principal attends all meetings)
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West Lothian College Board Development Plan June 2018 – May 2019
No.

Action

Planned delivery

When /how delivered:

25.10.18 – LASG ‘Deep Dive’
SQA Results
03.12.18 – L&TC ‘Deep Dive’
Applications

Increased strategic overview
2.1

Explore additional ways to support discussion around strategic issues at
Committees

L&T ‘deep dive’ Sept 18
postponed to Nov 18

2.2

Consider options for less formal discussion around key issues (seminars; within
Board meetings)

Ongoing

2.3

Review benchmarking strategy after 2017 Away Day discussion

December ‘18

2.4

Organise annual Strategic Away Day for Board Members

Annual, by end May ‘19

Planned for 16 May 2019

Best practice in governance
3.1

Include Strategic Risk Register in Board agenda on annual basis

September ‘18

3.2

Provide briefing on Board member responsibilities to register and declare interests

2 year cycle (next
briefing June 2019)

3.3

Keep in view the need to bring in / retain private sector non-execs; continue to
raise issue with Scottish Government as appropriate

Ongoing; % of non-exec
members

3.6

Consider establishment of Chairs Forum – considered 20/06/17 and agreed to
keep as option for longer term development

Ongoing

BOG/111218/iShare
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West Lothian College Board Development Plan June 2018 – May 2019
No.

Action

Planned delivery

When /how delivered:

Improved Board Diversity
4.1

Review Board participation in shadowing scheme

Board Meeting 19/6/19

4.2

Highlight importance of improving Board diversity in recruitment material

Ongoing

4.3

Identify specific options to target vacancies including to organisations, groups &
individuals

Board Meeting 19/6/18
Discussion on Gender
Equality

Continuous Improvement
5.1

Simplify the self-appraisal form for Board member review meetings
•

May 2019

Board agreed review after 2 cycles

5.2

Introduce system to track training and development actions agreed at Board
member review meetings

5.3

Deliver Financial Statements Training (identified as a common training need)

5.4

Maintain Board Development Plan as live document following discussion and
input at Board and other meetings

Ongoing

5.5

Committee Self-evaluations

March - June ‘19

BOG/111218/iShare

July 18 – after review
meeting
Dec 18 – 6 months
reminder
Mazars – September 18

18.09.18 – Training delivered
by Mazars
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West Lothian College Board Development Plan June 2018 – May 2019
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